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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG
LIMITED (THE "STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should
make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other
characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited
to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded
on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will
be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and
expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever
arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the
contents of this report.

This report, for which the board (the “Board”) of the directors (the
“Directors”) of Zhongjin Technology Services Group Company Limited
h AR S ER (7 B R 22 B] (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange for the purpose of giving information
with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge
and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and
complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive,
and there are no other matters the omission of which would make
any statement herein or this report misleading.

Should there be any discrepancy between the English and Chinese versions, the
English version shall prevail.
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Company Profile
NG Wl

Zhongjin Technology Services Group Company Limited A & &I AR 75
£ E B’ B B R 2 A (formerly known as ZZ Capital International
Limited R 1E & A B FE AR A &) (the “Company”, together with
its subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”) (Stock Code: 08295) is
an investment holding company with its headquarter based in
Hong Kong. It was established in 2010 and is listed on GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

The Group has acquired KingNine Holdings Limited (“KingNine")
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “KingNine Group”) on 15
October 2020 (the “Acquisition”), which constituted a very
substantial acquisition and connected transaction of the Company
under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the
Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”). The KingNine Group’s
principal activities include the provision of the following services in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"):

(@)  Back-office services (primarily provision of customer service
solutions, and setting up of contact service systems and
centres);

(b)  Comprehensive marketing services; and
(¢)  Data centre services

The Group’s another subsidiary, ZZCl Corporate Finance Limited
("ZZCF"), is licensed with the Securities and Futures Commission
of Hong Kong (“SFC") for carrying on type 1 (dealing in securities),
type 4 (advising on securities), type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities. It
provides a diversified range of corporate advisory and assets
management services.

In furtherance of the Group'’s business, a subsidiary of ZZCF, J#=3I|
AES D RIEREEZESEE AR A (Asian Capital (Qianhai)
Investment Management Limited*) has been established in 2016,
which has been approved by Shenzhen Municipal Government
Financial Services Office as a Qualified Foreign Limited Partnership.

Moreover, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, ZZCl
Credit Limited, holds a money lenders licence, where the Group
can complement its financial services capabilities by providing
finance against marketable securities.

Further information about the Group is available on the
Company’s website at www.zhongjintechnology.com.

*  For identification purpose only

Zhongjin Technology Services Group Company Limited
P ERERBEBRRMD AR AT (BI#EZZ Capital
International Limited RIEE KB HRAR) ([A
naEll - EREMBARSE I AEE]) (RHR
5% 08295) M —HMAHMEANBENREZRA
Ao HRN2010F K - WERBBERZFAAR
NE)([HE3ZFT]) GEM £ »

AREE R 20204 10 A 15 HUEE KingNine Holdings
Limited ([ KingNine ) 5 £ ¥ & 2 7] (448 [ KingNine
SEDTWEEHE]D  ZWESFHEBREBEERN
GEM#EH £ A ([GEM LT RI D) A AR A
HIFEE B AWIEETE R @S © KingNine &£ [E %
EEBEERNFEAREME(HEDRHEAT
AR 7%

@ ®‘eRB(EBRUEPRBERTRRE
SHHRIRIS RS AL

() ZEEZHERH K
© BEFLIRS

AEEzZ—HWBAR — FEEALERER
RAR(THEEREERE])  HEAESFLY
EEHERZES((RES]) 2HEAE - AT
ER1R(BEFRD)  FARGLEFRHER)
FoH(IRERERHER) RFIB(RHREE
BIR)SMEED  HMEHRZTICEEBRLE
EERR -

RIEEAEEER  PHEHEAGEREN KM
B RYFEBEEREREESERERA
AIE R 2016 AL - WHERYIT ARBUT & Bh3
RRGHAZHERABIRIERAEBA -

BE  ARRZEMBARTEEAEERRA
AR A REARR  AEEAREHAEREZR
B M E S B AR AR

ERASHENE - PENFIE

www.zhongjintechnology.com°

NGIE DS



ZHONGJIN TECHNOLOGY SERVICES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED & RHF RIS EBR D AR A T

2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT £ #R

t

Corporate Information
ARER

DIRECTORS =)

Executive Directors HITES

Mr. NIU Zhanbin (Chairman) S B E (EE)

Mr. JIJANG Yulin (Chief Executive Officer) BRI (TR AEE)

Mr. WU Hui (Chief Operating Officer) REELE (HEELZE)

Independent Non-Executive Directors BYEHTES

Mr. Stephen MARKSCHEID
Mr. ZHANG Weidong
Mr. ZENG Liang

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Stephen MARKSCHEID (Chairman of Committee)

Mr. ZHANG Weidong
Mr. ZENG Liang

NOMINATION COMMITTEE
Mr. NIU Zhanbin (Chairman of Committee)

Mr. Stephen MARKSCHEID
Mr. ZHANG Weidong

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Mr. ZENG Liang (Chairman of Committee)

Mr. NIU Zhanbin
Mr. ZENG Liang

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. WU Hui
Ms. CHAN Sau Mui Juanna

COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. WU Hui

Stephen MARKSCHEID %t 4
RETR LA
BRIEA

BEREES

FATRSEE
EEELs

REZES

G EREE(ZEEEE)
Stephen MARKSCHEID %t 4
REREA
FMESES
DREE(ZEEFE)

A4 E3E R A4

REREE

RERK

REfE
RFEEL LT

BRI

REERE

Stephen MARKSCHEID %4 (Z 8 23 /%)



ZHONGJIN TECHNOLOGY SERVICES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED & RHY RIS EB R BB R A 7

2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT R

Corporate Information
NEIER

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. CHAN Sau Mui Juanna

REGISTERED OFFICE

P.O. Box 309
Ugland House
Grand Cayman
KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

11/F, 8 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

MaplesFS Limited
P.O. Box 1093
Boundary Hall
Grand Cayman
KY1-1102
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
Level 54

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

BDO Limited

DEWE
EAE L L

A SR

P.O. Box 309
Ugland House
Grand Cayman
KY1-1104
Cayman Islands

Y ANER S

)
ERAETEHEIE

BB 2R

MaplesFS Limited
P.O. Box 1093
Boundary Hall
Grand Cayman
KY1-1102
Cayman Islands

EERRDBFERLSE
BEBAESLABRAR

B

ERREHR 183

AR,

5418

ZEED

BRI EREETMEEMERAR



ZHONGJIN TECHNOLOGY SERVICES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED & RHF RIS EBR D AR A T
2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT £ #R

+

Corporate Information
NAEFR

LEGAL ADVISORS EEER

Deacons KT RENTT

Jingtian & Gongcheng LLP BRABEMEBLE

Linklaters FF)EREEMEISAT

Maples and Calder BLIEEMER

Shihui Partners R RN E AT

BANKERS ERIBIT

Bank of Ningbo B IRTT

China CITIC Bank International Limited

China Merchants Bank

Hua Xia Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
The Bank of East Asia, Limited

WEBSITE

www.zhongjintechnology.com

STOCK CODE

08295

fERT (BB AR AR
BRERITRNDBR AR
FEEIRTT
PETRHRITERNHBRAA]
EERRBERRITROER AT
BB LBESRITARLDA
RGRITERAT]

A uh

www.zhongjintechnology.com

IR AR ER

08295



ZHONGJIN TECHNOLOGY SERVICES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED 4 RHE RS EB R BB R A 7
2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT 3§

T . . . T
Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWER DN
Dear Shareholders, BRARER -

| am pleased to present the 2020/2021 annual report of Zhongjin
Technology Services Group Company Limited 7 & RBHY RI§ £ B
f& 5 B PR 2 &) (formerly known as ZZ Capital International Limited
RIEA AN AR A F) (the “Company”),and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2021 (the
“Year").

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

As disclosed in the announcement dated 10 September 2020 and
the circular dated 18 September 2020 (the “Circular”) published
by the Company, it entered into a share purchase deed on 10
September 2020 (the “Share Purchase Deed”) with regard to the
acquisition of the entire issued capital of KingNine Holdings
Limited (“KingNine"”) (the “Acquisition”) which constituted a very
substantial acquisition and connected transaction of the Company
under the GEM Listing Rules. Unless otherwise defined herein, all
capitalized terms used in this report shall have same meanings as
those defined in the Circular.

According to the Share Purchase Deed, the total consideration for
the entire issued share capital of KingNine is RMB850 million, of
which approximately RMB180 million be settled by allotment and
issuance of the Company’s shares, RMB250 million be settled in
the form of a closing fund and RMB420 million be settled in the
form of cash. Up to 31 March 2021, the Company had issued
638,022,754 shares as the consideration shares, fully settled the
closing fund and paid RMB140 million as the tranche | of the cash
consideration. In accordance with the Share Purchase Deed, the
tranche Il to tranche V of the cash consideration in the aggregated
amount of RMB280 million (subject to the adjustment as set out
in the Share Purchase Deed) will be paid in four installments of
RMB70 million each on 31 July 2021, 31 July 2022, 31 July 2023
and 31 July 2024 respectively.

KingNine and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “KingNine Group”)
is an emerging leading outsourced customer service provider with
its principal place of business located in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC") which mainly provide back-office services
(through the Contractual Arrangements as defined below),
comprehensive marketing services and data centre services.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Dalian Kingwisoft Technology Co., Ltd.* (AX:E 4 Z g8 R ARD
B R A 7)) ("Dalian Kingwisoft”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
the “DalLian Kingwisoft Group”), which are among the entities
acquired in the Acquisition, engage in business of provision of
value-added telecommunications services that is subject to
restrictions imposed by relevant PRC laws on foreign investors of
foreign-invested telecommunication enterprises which engage in
the provision of value-added telecommunications services.

Due to such restrictions under the relevant PRC laws, and as
advised by the PRC legal advisor of the Company, it was not viable
for KingNine to directly hold any equity ownership in the Dalian
Kingwisoft Group. Instead, KingNine, in line with common
practice in industries in the PRC subject to restrictions imposed by
the PRC laws on relevant foreign investors and/or foreign
ownership on foreign-invested enterprises, achieves effective
control over, and receives the entire economic benefits generated
by the Dalian Kingwisofts Group through a series of contractual
agreements entered between Kingwisoft Technology Co., Ltd.*
(2 E/mE R AR RQF) (the “"WFOE”), an indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary of KingNine established in the PRC, on one
hand, and each of Dalian Kingwisoft and its registered
shareholders, on the other hand (the “Contractual
Arrangements”).

The completion of the Acquisition (the “Completion”) took place
on 15 October 2020. Following the Completion, KingNine has
become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the
financial results, assets and liabilities of the KingNine Group have
been consolidated into the consolidated financial statements of
the Company. Please refer to the Company’s announcements
dated 19 August 2019, 10 September 2020 and 15 October
2020, and the Circular for further details of the Acquisition.

Save as aforementioned, the Group had no material acquisitions

or disposal of subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the
Year.

* for identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Profit Guarantee

Mr. Hu Shilong and Ms. Liu Yingying (the “Guarantors”) have
undertaken to the Company pursuant to the Share Purchase Deed
that the audited consolidated net profit attributable to the equity
holders of KingNine in accordance with HKFRS for any given profit
guarantee period would not be less than the guaranteed profit in
respect of such profit guarantee period. The Company has
undertaken to the Guarantors that subject to the compliance of all
applicable laws and regulations (including the GEM Listing Rules
and the directors’ fiduciary duties and duties of skill, care and
diligence), it would use reasonable endeavours to procure the
directors of Dalian Kingwisoft nominated by it to act in the
interests of the Group as a whole during the entire profit
guarantee period.

The profit guarantee period means each of the following periods
(together the “Guarantee Period”):

(@)  the financial year of the KingNine Group commenced on 1
April 2019 and ended on 31 March 2020;

(b)  the financial year of the KingNine Group commenced on 1
April 2020 and ending on 31 March 2021;

() the financial year of the KingNine Group commencing on 1
April 2021 and ending on 31 March 2022;

(d) the financial year of the KingNine Group commencing on 1
April 2022 and ending on 31 March 2023; and

(e)  the financial year of the KingNine Group commencing on 1
April 2023 and ending on 31 March 2024.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Profit Guarantee (Continued)

The guaranteed profit means the audited consolidated net profit
attributable to the equity holders of KingNine in accordance with
HKFRS, as set out below:

(@) in respect of the Guarantee Period commenced on 1 April
2019 and ended on 31 March 2020, RMB60 million;

(b) in respect of the Guarantee Period commenced on 1 April
2020 and ending on 31 March 2021, RMB90 million;

() in respect of the Guarantee Period commencing on 1 April
2021 and ending on 31 March 2022, RMB120 million;

(d) in respect of the Guarantee Period commencing on 1 April
2022 and ending on 31 March 2023, RMB150 million; and

(e) in respect of the Guarantee Period commencing on 1 April
2023 and ending on 31 March 2024, RMB180 million;
(together the “Guarantee Profit”).

In the event that the actual amount of the audited consolidated
net profit attributable to the equity holders of KingNine for any
Guarantee Period is less than the Guaranteed Profit in respect of
such Guarantee Period in accordance with HKFRS, the Guarantors
are expected to compensate the Company by paying the
Company an amount in cash equal to (((A - B)/C) x D) — E,
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR DM

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Profit Guarantee (Continued)
where:

A = the sum of: (i) the amount of the Guaranteed Profit in
respect of such Guarantee Period; and (i) the amount of the
Guaranteed Profit in respect of each Guarantee Period
preceding such Guarantee Period;

B = the sum of: (i) the actual amount of the audited consolidated
net profit/net loss attributable to equity holders of KingNine
for such Guarantee Period; and (ii) the actual amount of the
audited consolidated net profit/net loss attributable to equity
holders of KingNine for each Guarantee Period preceding
such Guarantee Period,;

C = RMB600,000,000 (i.e. the sum of the amount of the
Guaranteed Profit in respect of each Guarantee Period);

D = RMB779,392,971 (i.e. the Consideration less the amount of
the Consideration paid, or payable, by the Company to
Zhongzhi Xinzhuo); and

E = the sum of the amount of any such compensation which has
been paid by the Guarantors in respect of each Guarantee
Period preceding such Guarantee Period.

If the actual audited consolidated net profit attributable to the
equity holders of KingNine in accordance with HKFRS as shown in
its audited accounts (the “Actual Net Profit”) for any Guarantee
Period is less than the Guaranteed Profit in respect of such
Guarantee Period (the “Shortfall”), the Guarantors shall
compensate the Company the Shortfall in cash (the
“Compensation”) in accordance with the formula above. The
Compensation paid will not be returned by the Company to the
Guarantors in the subsequent Guarantee Period even if the Actual
Net Profit in the subsequent Guarantee Period is higher than the
Guaranteed Profit in respect of such subsequent Guarantee Period.

In the event that the accumulated amount of Actual Net Profit for
the Entire Guarantee Period is zero and the Shortfall for the Entire
Guarantee Period is therefore RMB600,000,000, the
Compensation obliged to be paid by the Guarantors for the
Shortfall equals the amount of Consideration paid by the
Company (other than the amount of the Consideration paid by
the Company to Zhongzhi Xinzhuo).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Profit Guarantee (Continued)

In the event that KingNine records an accumulated actual audited
consolidated net loss attributable to the equity holders of
KingNine in accordance with HKFRS for the Entire Guarantee
Period and the Shortfall for the Entire Guarantee Period is
therefore greater than RMB600,000,000, the amount of
Compensation obliged to be paid by the Guarantors will exceed
the Consideration paid by the Company (other than the amount
of the Consideration paid by the Company to Zhongzhi Xinzhuo).

It was agreed that the Compensation payable in respect of any
Guarantee Period as referred to above shall be settled by the
Guarantors within ten Business Days after the signed or certified
audited consolidated financial statements of in respect of
KingNine such Guarantee Period is approved by the board of
directors of KingNine.

The Share Purchase Deed provides for an express set-off right of
the Company which allows the Company to set off any
Compensation against any Cash Consideration which has not
been paid to the Founders SPV.

In respect of the Guarantee Period commenced on 1 April 2019
and ended on 31 March 2020, the audited consolidated net profit
attributable to the equity holders of KingNine in accordance with
HKFRS was approximately RMB65.3 million, and is more than the
Guaranteed Profit in respect of this Guarantee Period (i.e. RMB60
million). In respect of the Guarantee Period commenced on 1 April
2020 and ended on 31 March 2021, the audited consolidated net
profit attributable to the equity holders of KingNine in accordance
with HKFRS was approximately RMB93.6 million, and is more than
the Guaranteed Profit in respect of this Guarantee Period (i.e.
RMB90 million).

The amount of the Guaranteed profit for each Guarantee Period
was arrived after arm’s length negotiations between the Company
and the Guarantors and is determined based on (i) overview of the
contact service centre industry and customer service outsourcing
industry in the PRC, (ii) the position of the KingNine Group as an
emerging leading service provider in the customer service
outsourcing industry in the PRC, and (iii) the business prospects of
the KingNine Group.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Profit Guarantee (Continued)

The Directors are of the view that determination of the respective
Guaranteed Profit for each Guarantee Period is fair and
reasonable.

CHANGE IN FUNCTIONAL AND PRESENTATION
CURRENCIES

Prior to October 2020, the Company regarded Hong Kong dollar
("HK$") as the functional currency. Upon the completion of the
acquisition of the KingNine Group in October 2010, whose
functional currency is Renminbi (“RMB™), the Directors consider
that the primary economic environment has been substantially
changed. Since then, the Company’s primary source of revenue,
that is, dividend, is derived from the operation of KingNine Group
operating in the PRC. As such, it is more appropriate to use RMB
as the functional currency of the Company. Accordingly, the
Company has determined the change of the functional and
presentation currencies from HK$ to RMB starting from 1 October
2020.

Such change of functional currency from HK$ to RMB will help to
minimise the impact of exchange gain/loss on the business results
of the Group from the fluctuations of RMB. As a result, the
consolidated financial statements for the reporting period are
presented in RMB, whereas the comparative figures for the prior
reporting period have been restated to align with the change in
presentation currency. The change in the presentation currency
and translation of the comparative amounts from HK$ to RMB has
had no material impact to the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The KingNine Group posted revenue of approximately RMB506.1
million for the Year, representing a year-on-year increase of
17.8%. Revenue from its back-office service after the Completion
amounted to approximately RMB255.6 million, accounting for
96.0% of the total revenue of the Group.

The Dalian Kingwisoft Group has won the favour of leading
companies in many industries, such as Internet mobility, Internet
education, e-commerce, finance & securities, and operators over
the years, and has become a long-term, reliable business partner
of many renowned companies. Its customer base remains stable
and is expanding. The top ten customers basically remained stable
in the current year, except two emerging companies, of which
one is a leading domestic company engaged in insurance and
health service platform, the other China‘s largest one-stop and
online life services provider. The top five groups of customers
comprise of the world’s largest technological platform for mobile
travel, the world’s largest third party platform engaged in online
and mobile business for brands and retailers, the largest
independent third party insurance platform in China, the largest
mobile communication service provider in Mainland China and the
largest one-stop and online life services provider in China, who
collectively contributed 69.8% of the Group's revenue. In the
meantime, there were several newly-added customers in Internet
education, finance & securities, e-commerce, community group
buying and Internet manufacturing, which take the lead in their
respective industries, increasing the number of its customers from
90 as of 31 March 2020 to 125.

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic in early 2020 has had a
comprehensive and profound impact on global economic
development and social conditions. The customer service industry
in which the KingNine Group operates has also been hit to some
extent. Relying on its deep experience in software development,
information security and data centre operation and orderly
environmental management capability, the KingNine Group
worked closely with customers and complied with governments’
epidemic prevention and control requirements. It took some
positive and effective measures, including epidemic prevention
and control in the workplace, flexible working arrangements
(including working from home) and business interoperability in the
workplace, and no case was reported across the country. The
KingNine Group had been operating its business smoothly and
managed to achieve a net profit of approximately RMB95.0 million
in the Year, representing an increase of 45.6% compared to that
of the previous financial year.
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In addition to the restructuring of the board of directors and the board |} T EAEESMEZSH » KBELBENREE

of supervisors, Dalian Kingwisoft established a new subsidiary in
Mianyang and branches in Wuhe, Xi'an and Zhengzhou respectively in
the second half of the Year. DalLian Kingwisoft’s five subsidiaries,
namely Kunshan Kingwisoft Information Technology Co., Ltd.* (&L
&2z BERHEAR A R]), Xiangyang Kingwisoft Internet Technology
Co., ltd.* (ElFeEHBEBHTAR A F]), Luzhou Kingwisoft Data
Services Co., Ltd.* (BN & ZRE HIERB BR A F]), Qingdao
Nanyou Information Technology Co., Ltd* (5 & EH= 8 R MT AR A
7)) (formerly known as Beijing Nanyou Information Technology Co.,
Ltd* (JEREEME S MB R A R]) and Dalian Kingwisoft Internet
Service Outsourcing Co., Ltd.* (R:ESZmE @B IRBINEBR D
7l), have obtained value-added telecommunications business licenses.
Dalian Zhiyin Internet Technology Co., Ltd.* (A:E%34R B B 48R
FR/2A]) has obtained the Approval Opinion on telecommunications
business. Due to the pandemic, the value-added telecommunications
business licenses of Dalian Zhiyin Internet Technology Co., Ltd.* (K
HIRE AR AR 2AE]) and Qingdao Jinliang Technology Co.,
Ltd.* (BE&e=2REABRAR]) (formerly known as Qingdao
Kingwisoft Boshang Media Co., Ltd.* (5584 SERHEHERAF)
("Jinliang Technology"”) are still pending approval.

The KingNine Group received one patent for an invention and
obtained 21 new software copyrights in the Year, with
accumulated 134 software copyrights granted by the National
Copyright Administration of the PRC, as well as double software
certifications, namely software product certification and software
enterprise certification. In addition, the number of its self-operated
contact service centres rose from 12 to 13, and the number of
workstations rose to 6,693, representing an increase of 352 as
compared to that as of 31 March 2020.

In terms of corporate advisory business, the outbreak of COVID-19
pandemic has hit hard economic activities. The Group mainly
conducts business in Mainland China and Hong Kong. Some of
the Group's potential customers have delayed or suspended their
financing plans due to the pandemic, resulting in the Group’s loss
of some business opportunities. Revenue from corporate advisory
business for the Year was approximately HK$0.40 million
(approximately RMB0.355 million), representing a year-on-year
decrease of 97.4%.

* for identification purpose only
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Results of the Group

The Group recorded a revenue of approximately RMB266.2 million
for the Year (2020: approximately RMB15.1 million), representing
1,663% increase as compared to that of last financial year. Such
significant increase was mainly attributable to the revenue
generated from the KingNine Group in the second half of the
Year after the Completion. The KingNine Group mainly provides
back-office services, comprehensive marketing services and data
centre services in the PRC.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue from major services is as
follows:

BEENWE DN
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REBRNAFEESWALI AR 266,200,0007T
(20204 : HHAR#15,100,0007T) + 8 18 EF B
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FHETKEBERAEE T EFKingNine EBFTEE
MU AFTEL ° KingNine R Bl E ZRFEIRHE &
ARTS 2 & RS R BUE P LR o

AEEEZRFWANDIITT

20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARBF T
(Restated)
(ieE5)
Value-added telecommunication and related EE(E LEERE :
services:
Back-office services % & BR1%
— Provision of customer service solutions — REEPREHEATR 247,043 -
— Setting up of contact service systems and — BB RBRES RO
centres 8,602 -
255,645 -
Comprehensive marketing services 2 TH & HAR TS 931 -
Data centre services R DRI 7,792 -
264,368 -
Financial services: & FARTS
Corporate advisory services e EEERE RS 355 13,690
Loan interest income BERF B A 1,440 1,406
Total st 266,163 15,096

During the Year, the Group incurred cost of services of
approximately RMB181.2 million (2020: Nil) which primarily
consisted of staff costs, subcontracting fees, rental expenses,
depreciation and amortisation. The gross profit margin attributable
to the KingNine Group after the Completion was approximately
31.5%.
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Results of the Group (Continued) REEEE B)

In addition, the Group incurred marketing, research and
development expenses of approximately RMB9.8 million (2020:
Nil) in aggregate during the Year. Such cost and expenses were
incurred for the business of the KingNine Group.

Net other income for the Year was approximately RMB35.2 million
(2020: approximately RMB43.8 million). The decrease in net other
income was mainly attributable to the absence of the fair value
gain on convertible loan receivable at fair value through profit and
loss (“FVTPL") and loss on deregistration of subsidiaries of
approximately RMB51.0 million and approximately RMB2.8
million, respectively recorded in last financial year as offset by the
net exchange gain of approximately RMB9.2 million (2020: net
exchange loss of approximately RMB14.3 million), the net fair
value gain on financial assets at FVTPL of approximately RMB2.2
million (2020: net fair value loss of approximately RMB2.9 million)
as well as the value-add tax refund and government grants and
subsidies of approximately RMB8.7 million (2020: Nil) in aggregate
were recognized during the Year.

Administrative expenses for the Year was approximately RMB65.8
million (2020: approximately RMB57.1 million). The major
expenses components were staff costs of approximately RMB28.5
million (2020: approximately RMB18.5 million), professional fees
of approximately RMB15.5 million (2020: approximately RMB28.1
million), amortisation of intangible assets of approximately
RMB8.2 million (2020: Nil) and depreciation of right-of-use assets
of approximately RMB4.4 million (2020: approximately RMB3.5
million). The increase was mainly attributable to the net effect of
the increases in staff costs and consolidation of the KingNine
Group's expenses as offset by the professional fees reduced due
to the Acquisition was completed during the Year.

During the Year, the Group incurred finance costs of
approximately RMB6.4 million (2020: approximately RMBO.2
million) which mainly consisted of interests on consideration
payable arising from the Acquisition and borrowings of the
KingNine Group.
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The Group’s income tax expense for the Year was approximately KXEBRAEFEHNAER A XL A ARE
RMB10.9 million (2020: approximately RMBO0.17 million) which 10,900,000 7T (2020 4 : %3 A R % 170,0007C) °

mainly consisted of provision of PRC Enterprise Income Tax of
approximately RMB16.6 million (2020: approximately RMB1.9
million) and deferred tax credit of approximately RMB5.9 million
(2020: Nil).

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was
approximately RMB26.2 million, compared to the profit of
approximately RMB1.4 million for the last financial year.

Basic earnings per share for the Year was approximately RMBO0.68
cent (2020: approximately RMB0.04 cent), while diluted earnings
per share for the Year was the same as basic earnings per share of
approximately RMBO0.68 cent (2020: approximately RMB0.04
cent).

As at 31 March 2021, the Group’s non-current assets was
approximately RMB845.4 million (2020: approximately RMB24.3
million). The increase was mainly due to recognition of goodwill
and intangible assets resulting from the Acquisition and
consolidation of the KingNine Group’s assets after the
Completion.

Net current assets as at 31 March 2021 was approximately
RMB401.6 million (2020: approximately RMB627.1 million). The
decrease was largely due to the net effect of the payment of
tranche | cash consideration of RMB140 million and settlement of
the closing fund of RMB250 million and payable of tranche Il cash
consideration of RMB70 million due on 31 July 2021 accounted
for the Acquisition and consolidation of the KingNine Group’s net
current assets.

Non-current liabilities as at 31 March 2021 was amounted to
approximately RMB231.4 million (2020: approximately RMB2.7
million) which included the payable of tranche Il to tranche V cash
consideration due in three installments of RMB70 million each on
31 July 2022, 31 July 2023 and 31 July 2024 respectively as well
as deferred tax liabilities and lease liabilities.

Net assets value of the Group as at 31 March 2021 increased
to approximately RMB1,015.6 million (2020: approximately
RMB648.6 million). The net assets value per share as at 31 March
2021 was approximately RMB24.25 cents (2020: approximately
RMB18.27 cents).
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had a current ratio of 3.4 and a
gearing ratio of 2.9% (2020: 37.2 and Nil, respectively). The
gearing ratio is computed by dividing the Group’s bank
borrowings of approximately RMB29.0 million by the Group’s
equity of approximately RMB1,015.6 million. The Group's
operation and investments were financed by internal resources,
bank borrowings and issue of new share capital during the Year
for the Acquisition.

For foreign currency risk, the Group will continue to monitor its
foreign currency exposure and will consider using hedging
instruments if available in respect of significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

Capital structure

During the Year, the Company issued 638,022,754 shares as the
consideration shares for the Acquisition which were amounted to
approximately RMB366.1 million on the date of issuance. In
addition, as at 31 March 2021, the bank borrowings of the Group
was amounted to approximately RMB29.0 million which was for
normal operating purposes and due within one year.

Save for the above, there has been no material change in the
capital structure of the Company during the Year.

Total equity attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
approximately RMB999.9 million as at 31 March 2021 (2020:
approximately RMB648.6 million). This increase was mainly
attributable to the issue of new shares for the Acquisition, profit
recognised and the net movement in the translation reserve
during the Year.

Commitments

The Group and the Company did not have any significant
commitment as at 31 March 2021 and 2020.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)
Charge on the Group’s assets

As at 31 March 2021, the Group's bank borrowings were secured
by certain assets of the Group (2020: Nil). Details of the Group’s
pledges of assets are set out in note 32 to the financial
statements.

Employees and remuneration policies

As of 31 March 2021, the Group had 4,436 employees including
Directors (2020: 23 employees). Total staff cost (including
Directors’ emoluments) for the Year amounted to approximately
RMB150.0 million. Employees’ remuneration packages are decided
based on their job responsibilities, local market benchmarks and
industry trends. Employee discretionary bonus is distributable
according to the performance of the respective subsidiaries and
employees concerned.

The Remuneration Committee will review and determine the
remuneration and compensation packages of the Directors and
senior management of the Company with reference to salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and performance of the Group.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had no material contingent
liabilities (2020: Nil).

Future plans for material investments or capital
assets

The Group will focus on premium corporate clients in the Internet
and finance sectors to diversify its categories of services and
strengthen our customers’ stickness, which in turn help the Group
to generate economics of scale and gain more market share.

The Group will look into our business development and consider
acquiring or investing in relevant assets which form synergistic
effects with our principal business as and when appropriate.
Through the acquisition and investment, the Group can expand its
services categories and premium customer base and strengthen
our capability in research and development, which in turn identify
and meet demands from customers in a view to raise our core
competitiveness and profitability.
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OUTLOOK RE

The COVID-19 pandemic has caused a huge impact on the global
economy and the Chinese economy was also hit to some extent.
However, the Chinese government has managed to control the
pandemic rapidly. China saw a V-shaped rebound in economic
development in 2020, becoming the only major economy
reporting positive growth. The country’s gross domestic product
("GDP") stood at RMB101.60 trillion in 2020, a year-on-year
growth of 2.3% at comparable prices. China’s GDP in the first
quarter contracted 6.8% quarter on quarter, while the figure in
the second, third and fourth quarters went up 3.2%, 4.9% and
6.5% respectively. The GDP reached RMB24.93 trillion in the first
quarter of 2021, representing a growth of 18.3% over the same
period of last year. Of course, this is related to the 6.8% year-on-
year decline in GDP in the first quarter of last year. China’s GDP in
the first quarter of 2021 still rose up to 10.3% compared with the
data recorded in the same period of 2019. That is to say the GDP
saw an average annual growth rate of about 5% over the two
years. With the continuous and effective control of the pandemic,
ongoing economic recovery and formation of a new development
pattern centred on “internal circulation”, consumption recovery is
expected to pick up speed. The industrial policy will focus on new
infrastructure, high-end manufacturing and big consumption, and
efforts are stepped up to prevent financial risks in key sectors.

As the KingNine Group’s major customers are players in finance &
securities, operators and Internet industries, all these sectors will
recover quickly with the sustained economic recovery and the
gradual rise of new endogenous driving forces. Meanwhile, the
pandemic’s profound impact on people’s education, mobility,
shopping and so forth will further boost the vigorous development
of Internet companies, which is expected to bring more
opportunities for rapid growth for the KingNine Group.

In this context, the KingNine Group will keep a close eye on macro
policy’s effect on its customers’ business, maintain close
communication with customers, and take diversified actions to
actively respond. Moreover, efforts will be made to actively explore
and seek for new business opportunities in the finance, Internet
live streaming and e-commerce fields, seize business development
opportunities and continuously increase its footprints in China in
an effective manner, so as to create more stable revenue and
profitability to the Group and enhance shareholder value.
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OUTLOOK (continued)

The KingNine Group keeps refining and expanding its Back-office
services. Its orders from the existing customer increased
consistently with the growth of their businesses, and it has also
obtaining new orders from traditional finance sectors and new
leaders of Internet companies, among which China‘s leading
e-commerce platform for life services and a worldly-renowned
information technology company have become our customers and
we have proceeded to new businesses orderly. The KingNine
Group will continue to push for bidding and completion of
projects to generate revenue and profit.

As for E-marketing, KingNine Group is accumulating knowledge
and preparing for live streaming e-commerce and living streaming
training by combining its existing capability in Internet marketing
and promoting with relevant experience to create a new
momentum driving the KingNine Group to grow in B2B corporate
services and live streaming e-commerce. As for streaming
allocation, we are gradually achieving our goal on monthly basis
and making progress.

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 7 May
2021, the Group has carried out platform certification business
and new media advertising business through Jinliang Technology.
It is expected to provide the Group with more diversified income.

Jinliang Technology and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
providing comprehensive and indepth operation services in
expanding customer base for clients in finance sectors, and
providing integrated media services including ” media agency
operations”, “information streaming” and “financial professionals
incubating and operation services” for financial customers (such
as securities companies, credit, insurance, futures, bankers, funds,
investment advisers), in a view to cater for needs of brands
publicity, customer acquisition in marketing, internal streaming
incubating and external streaming cooperation. With our
experience in operating Internet streaming and our customer
resources in finance sectors, we can provide vertical and indepth
services in every finance sectors and build a standardised SOP
operating system with core competitiveness in each of business
segments while establishing a solid and united team for business
operation and a strong TOB service team for the Internet sectors.
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EEENWR DM

OUTLOOK (continued)

At the same time, taking into account the performance of the
corporate advisory business for the Year, the Group plans to focus
on businesses with more optimistic prospects, and considers
optimising the asset structure and disposing of non-core
businesses.

APPRECIATION

We would like to take this opportunity to sincerely thank the
management members of the Board and all employees of the
Group for their efforts and contributions to the promotion of the
development of the Group in the past year. We also extend our
sincere thanks to our Shareholders and partners for their
continued support and trust. At the same time, | would like to
express my sincere gratitude for the valuable advice, guidance and
support provided by other relevant organizations.

By Order of the Board

JIANG Yulin
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 22 June 2021
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Biographical Details of Directors

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. NIU Zhanbin, aged 46, joined the Group in August 2019, is
an executive Director, the Chairman of the Board, the chairman of
the Nomination Committee and the member of the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He also holds several directorships in
certain other subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Niu is also a chief
operating officer of Zhongzhi Enterprise Group Co., Ltd. Zhongzhi
Enterprise Group Co., Ltd. is a company directly or indirectly held
as to 76% by Mr. Xie Zhikun. Mr. Xie Zhikun is the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Niu worked in the Office of the Cyberspace Administration of
China (Bl R BBt 415 S A=) from 2014 to 2017. He worked
in China Internet Network Information Centre (1 Bl B 4848 1= &
AL ) from December 2017 to July 2019. He had participated in a
number of major research projects and has extensive management
experience in the fields including network infrastructure,
information and communication technology, digital economy and
fund investment in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"). Mr.
Niu has been paying close attention to the development of the
internet industry in the PRC for a long time and has a thorough
thought on the development prospect of the industry. He has
established good relationships with well-known experts and
scholars, famous internet companies and major news media. Mr.
Niu obtained a bachelor of laws degree from Renmin University of
China in 1996 and a master of laws degree from China University
of Political Science and Law in 2012.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Jiang Yulin, aged 62, appointed as an executive Director and
chief executive officer of the Company in March 2020.

Mr. Jiang is currently the independent non-executive director,
chairman of nomination committee and member of remuneration
and evaluation committee of Haitong UniTrust International
Leasing Co., Ltd. (a company listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), stock code: 01905).
He is also the independent director of Anhui Zhonghuan
Environmental Protection Technology Co., Ltd. (a company listed
on Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 300692). Mr. Jiang
served as executive director, chairman of the board and member
of nomination committee of China Tian Yuan Healthcare Group
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code:
00577) from August 2016 to March 2020. Mr. Jiang has over 30
years of banking experience and has extensive experience in
financing, investment and management. Mr. Jiang had worked for
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited (“ICBC") for
more than 30 years from 1985 to 2016. Since 2015, Mr. Jiang
was the board chairman of ICBC Financial Leasing Co., Ltd., a
wholly-owned subsidiary of ICBC, and held concurrent posts as
the board chairman of ICBC (Moscow) Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of ICBC, and a non-executive director, chairman of risk
management committee and member of the audit committee of
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited. Mr. Jiang
had resigned with ICBC in 2016. From 2002 to 2005, he also
served as an independent supervisor of Maanshan Iron & Steel
Company Limited, one of the largest iron and steel producers and
marketers in the People’s Republic of China, which is listed on the
Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock code: 600808) and the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 00323). Mr. Jiang holds a doctorate degree
in Economics from Wuhan University. He is a registered
accountant and was qualified as a senior economist issued by the
Appraisal and Approval Committee for Professional and Technical
Competence of ICBC. Mr. Jiang has published several journals and
certain books in relation to the banking industry and risk
prevention.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. WU Hui, aged 38, joined the Group in November 2018 as
the chief operating officer and has been appointed as an executive
Director, the compliance officer, and an authorized representative
of the Company since August 2019. He is the legal representative
of IS R ERESE R AR QA (Asian Capital
(Qianhai) Investment Management Limited), a subsidiary of the
Company, and also holds several directorships in certain other
subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Wu has over 10 years of experience in internal control and
management of financial corporates. He has worked in FF1E& 74K
BT since 2016 and is currently holding the post of its
supervisor. He is also the supervisor of ®MFTEREEGRA
Al and FAEEABEREERBMR AT He is also the director
of Kang Bank Qi Hui (HK) Company Limited and Tian Xi Capital
Company Limited, the substantial shareholders of the Company.
Mr. Wu obtained a master of management degree from the
Central University of Finance and Economics in 2008.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Stephen MARKSCHEID, aged 67, joined the Group in June
2016 as an independent non-executive Director of the Company,
the chairman of the audit committee of the Board (the “Audit
Committee”) and a member of the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Markscheid is the chairman of Still Waters Green Technology
Limited, a UK based renewable energy developer. He currently
serves as an independent director of Fanhua Inc., Jinko Solar Inc.
and Xiaobai Maimai, Inc. Fanhua Inc. and Xiaobai Maimai Inc. are
listed on The NASDAQ Stock Market (“NASDAQ") while Jinko
Solar Inc. is listed on The New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”). Mr.
Markscheid also served as independent director of China
Integrated Energy Corporation (a company previously listed on
NASDAQ) and China Ming Yang Wind Power Group Limited (a
company previously listed on NYSE). He is also a trustee emeritus
of Princeton-in-Asia. From 1998-2006, Mr. Markscheid worked for
GE Capital ("GE"). During his time with GE, Mr. Markscheid led
GE’s business development activities in China and Asia Pacific,
primarily acquisitions and direct investments. Prior to GE, Mr.
Markscheid worked with the Boston Consulting Group throughout
Asia. He was a commercial banker for ten years in London,
Chicago, New York, Hong Kong and Beijing with Chase
Manhattan Bank and First National Bank of Chicago and has years
of professional experience in the financial services industries. Mr.
Markscheid obtained a bachelor of arts degree from Princeton
University in 1976, a master degree in international affairs from
Johns Hopkins University in 1980, and a master of degree in
business administration from Columbia University in 1991, where
he was class valedictorian.

Mr. ZHANG Weidong, aged 55, joined the Group in July 2016 as
an independent non-executive director of the Company, the
member of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Mr. Zhang was the executive director of OP Financial Investments
Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code:
01140) and a partner of Oriental Patron Financial Group primarily
responsible for private equity investments. Mr. Zhang has over 14
years of experience in the operation and management of
commercial banking, during which he worked in the international
business department of the Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China Limited (“ICBC") with final position level as deputy general
manager of department, including 3 years in ICBC Almaty Branch,
where he was in charge of treasury, credit lending and office
operations. Moreover, Mr. Zhang has 12 years of investment
banking experience, served as executive director of ICEA Finance
Group (the investment banking arm of ICBC) and managing
director of Alpha Alliance Finance Holdings, responsible for
corporate finance and sales department respectively. He is also an
independent non-executive Director of Tianjin Port Development
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 03382) whose shares are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Zhang holds a master
degree from Renmin University in Economics, a diploma of
Programme for Management Development of Harvard Business
School and held a fellowship from Columbia University in New
York.

Mr. ZENG Liang, aged 47, joined the Group in April 2021 as an
independent non-executive director, the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit Committee
of the Company.

Mr. Zeng is a well-known Internet entrepreneur and angel
investor. He has extensive experience in strategic planning,
business development and operation management in industries
such as digital marketing, mobile Internet and artificial intelligence
applications. Mr. Zeng served as senior vice president of Kingdee
International Software Group Company Limited from 2003 to
2010. He worked for Microsoft as vice president of Greater China
Region from 2010 to 2013 and was responsible for the
development of government, education and medical industries in
the region. From 2013 to 2017, he held several executive positions
including vice president of Baidu Inc. and general manager of
Baidu Nuomi. Mr. Zeng obtained Master of Science both in
Management and in Engineering from Georgia Institute of
Technology in USA. In addition, he holds another Master of
Science in Engineering degree from Tsinghua University in Beijing.

27

BIFHTEE )

RAEELARESATREBRA R (RBRMD
TR T BRIDARHE  01140) BITEE R R E S
BEBARA FTEEEAEREREER - K
EEBAEDIATHERTELEREELS 91
B IRt (BREHDS  EREBRAARIEBK
B BREMNNABIERIIFIELSE  »E
B BERPAETE- I RAEEREE
ENRNFREBITER  LERIFRE(IER
THRERT) RESTHEMIERETHTES
REBRKIE  DECERESIRTHBHEES -
BIMARKESERIZERERAT (OB RAE
R_ET - BRDLSE : 03382) 2 B IEHITES o
REEREPHEARKBLHESIE T 20 LB EH
AEEBRERERFREEE  BRAEEAYD
AL KB EE -

WREE AT R2021FE4 A IMARER - &
EARRROBYIRTES  FTEESNESF
hEZEEBENKE -

BEERMNEZHEHMPRAIERMAEREA - £
HFTH BHEBENATIEZERSTES
LEMEERE ¥R TRNEZEELH - 2
AR 2003 F EZ2010F TS RERSHEEE
BRAFR ZEBEBH - R2010F £2013F 1
ERMARFERBNRE - BEMEEP B EET
HEF BEMEBEETENER - N2013F2
017 FETEEEERREZAERRARLEES
BERS YRAELEHMAERARETIANEN
EHSEITMITRELSN  UWRERBERE
B TIZRE T2



ZHONGJIN TECHNOLOGY SERVICES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED 4 RHE RS EB R BB R A 7
2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT 3§

Directors’ Report
EEERE

The Board is pleased to present its annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in investment holding,
provision of back-office services (primarily provision of customer
service solutions), comprehensive marketing services and data
centre services, corporate advisory services, investment advisory
and asset management services, proprietary investments and
money lending.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the Year as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance has been
covered in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section as
well as this Directors’ Report of this annual report. Risk disclosure
sections that follow hereafter should be read in conjunction with
the “"Management Discussion and Analysis” and note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements. These form part of this
directors’ report.

Principal risks and uncertainties
Operational risk

While Dalian Kingwisoft is exposed to a certain level of
concentration risk of reliance on its key customers, a significant
portion of its revenue is derived from its five largest customers,
Dalian Kingwisoft will continue to explore new customers and
reduce the concentration risk.

The success of the Group depends on the experience, expertise
and the continuous services of its senior management. The Group
will try its best effort to retain its key management personnel,
competent employees or outsourcing staff by giving competitive
remunerations, and providing job satisfaction.

28

EEREMAR
RAMBHRE -

EAKERAFEZFRIEEZ

FEXRK

ARBMETEXBRIREER - ANBARER

REREER - RERERB (X2 RIEHEPR

BEORTER) - 2EEHERE MEEH ORSE - &

%EEFEJHW“ REFAUNNEEEERY - 8F
SIREREE -

£ e

AEBRAFE 2 X OB REE B R BGD
MRS M EFRNAFR [ EEE T i =1 )
—ﬁﬁu&K%% HEN - AT RERKEZHE
B [E R E I wm R o | A R & BTSRRI RE 41
—BFRIAE o uxﬁﬂBﬁTﬁﬁXZK%% HEN B -

TERBRTAREE
gEmg

BEAEZCEXBEE LHBREREETIEZEPNE
R - ERARRK O REAEZKATSE
RES B HEERMAETP URERTRR -

AEBHMADBERNESREEENLR FX
HMBEFERE - AEERKEBETAERFI NN
FREHRTIEREE BENREBETIETRE
AB - BRENNEERIINEET -



ZHONGJIN TECHNOLOGY SERVICES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED &Rt RIS E B R DB R A 7
2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT 5

Directors’ Report

ESEHRE

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties (Continued)
Operational risk (Continued)

The Group is obliged to keep all relevant data confidential subject
to the laws and regulations in its operating locations. The Group
has implemented strict internal control procedures to safeguard
the security and confidentiality of its databases to avoid and
reduce the possibility of any leakage of personal data or
unauthorized access to the Group’s database.

The Group’s business is dependent on the performance of the
Internet and telecommunication networks in the PRC, the Group's
operational infrastructure and contact service centres may
experience unexpected interruption, inadequacy, breakdown or
failure, and may not have sufficient insurance coverage against
potential operational risks.

The Group's business, financial condition and results of operations
may be susceptible to fluctuations in the economic conditions of
the PRC, and the uncertainties in the global market conditions. For
example, the ongoing PRC and U.S. trade war has led to adverse
changes to U.S. and international trade policies, which could lead
to a further deterioration of global and the Chinese economy. Any
deterioration of global and the Chinese market could adversely
and materially affect the business of the Group’s customers and
could in turn materially and adversely affect the business, financial
condition and results of operations of the Group.

The outbreak of COVID-19 in early 2020 has already caused, and
may continue to cause, an adverse and prolonged impact on both
economic and social conditions in China, among other countries,
and the exacerbation, continuance or reoccurrence of COVID-19
may interrupt its business operations. In order to avoid and
manage this special condition, the Company has implemented
pertinent practices and arrangements to reduce the risk of being
infected.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued) KO (#)

Principal risks and uncertainties (Continued) TERBRTABEE#)

Business and associated risks EBREEERE

The Group faces the risks to obtain, renew or maintain certain 7K IEE;%HX/ BB ETEEEEZENA
qualification certificates which could materially and adversely [ - B EJAEH AN EB A ETE - BGRB8 %
affect the Group’s business, financial condition, results of ii&ﬁLEFEEkTﬂ 22 o LA - REEE

operations and prospects. In addition, the Group has achieved
many third-party certifications, there is no assurance that the
Group will be able to maintain all of these certifications or renew
them once they expire.

Intellectual property rights are important to the Group’s business.
It relies on a combination of trade secrets, confidentiality
procedures and contractual provisions to protect its intellectual
property.

The Company understands the importance to manage such
licences, qualifications and intellectual property rights. The status
of these licences, qualifications and intellectual property rights are
reported in a monthly report to the senior management in order
to avoid and reduce the risk in this area.

Legal and compliance risks

The local governments may change the existing laws or regulations
or adopt additional or more stringent laws or regulations
applicable to the Group. Any changes to such laws and regulations
or their interpretation or enforcement may expose the Group to
the risk of non-compliance and may require it to conform its
activities and operations to comply with such laws and regulations.

Any material legal proceedings or disputes with business partners
may adversely affect the Group’s business, financial condition and
results of operations.

People may experience difficulty in effecting service of legal
process, enforcing foreign judgments or bringing original actions
in China or Hong Kong based on foreign laws against the Group
since the PRC’s legal system is still evolving and the uncertainties
as to the interpretation and enforcement of PRC laws.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Principal risks and uncertainties (Continued)
Legal and compliance risks (Continued)

The Regulations on Mergers and Acquisitions of Domestic
Companies by Foreign Investors M&A Rules ({BARIMNEIIRE & B
BB ¥ TE)) and certain other PRC regulations establish
complex procedures for some acquisitions of Chinese companies
by foreign investors, which could make it more difficult for the
Group to pursue growth through acquisitions in China.

The PRC tax authorities’ heightened scrutiny over acquisition
transactions may have a negative impact on the Group'’s business
operations or its acquisitions or the value of the investment in the
Group.

Risks Relating to the Contractual Arrangements

There are certain risks associated with the Contractual
Arrangements. Please refer “Contractual Arrangements — Risks
Relating to the Contractual Arrangements” from pages 46 to 47
of this report for details.

Environmental policies and performance

The Group's policies and practices are environmentally friendly. To
help conserve the environment, the management has
implemented green office practices and practice of recycling and
reducing consumption of resources. The Group commits to
maintain awareness within the Group of the responsibility of the
Group and its employees to ensure protection of the environment.
For example, purchasing the environmentally preferable products
with reputable certifications or labels, transmission of bulk
documents through electronic means, marking up of documents
electronically rather than using printed version, double-sided black
& white printing, recycling of printed papers and envelops, and
switching off lights and air-conditioning after working/non-office
hours, public holidays.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Compliance with relevant laws and regulations

Compliance with relevant laws and regulations is a cornerstone of
operating the businesses of the Group. Changes in laws, rules,
regulations and enforcement practices may constantly pose
challenges to the operation of the Group. Amongst others, the
Group operates within the confine of the relevant company laws
in Hong Kong, Cayman Islands, British Virgin Islands, the United
States and The People’s Republic of China, as well as under the
GEM Listing Rules and the Securities Futures Ordinance, Chapter
571 of the laws of Hong Kong (“SFO"). ZZCF is a corporation
licensed under section 116 of the SFO for carrying on Type 1,4,6
and 9 regulated activities, and therefore subject to the
requirements of SFO and codes and guidelines issued by the Hong
Kong Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong (“SFC").

ZZCl Credit Limited holds a money lender’s licence and is subject
to the provisions of the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163
of the laws of Hong Kong). To provide for the control and
regulation of money lenders and money lending transactions
mainly involves, the Commissioner of Police and Registrar of
Money Lenders. The Group has established and maintained
adequate policies and procedures to ensure compliance with all
applicable laws and regulations. In addition, the Group has also
adopted a whistleblowing policy for reporting of wrong-doing
within the Group. The whistleblowing policy can be found in the
Group’s compliance manual which is regularly reviewed and
updated as and when necessary. The Group has assembled a team
of professionals with many years of experience and expertise in
legal, compliance and financial control in the financial industry.
With the right blend of talent, this team provides the Group with
the requisite level of quality assurance to ensure compliance with
all relevant laws and regulations, and to minimize the Group’s risk
exposure as it embarks on new business initiatives in relation to
money lending business.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Key relationships with employees, customers,
suppliers and other stakeholders

The Group has developed and implemented a remuneration
structure which is a key for the Group to attract and retain the
best talents. Details of emolument policy and employee benefits
are set out in the section headed “Employees and remuneration
policies” under “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this
annual report. There have been no material interruptions to
operations nor any material labour disputes to date. In addition,
the Group encourages and supports employees to attend courses,
seminars and workshops that are relevant to their jobs to obtain
up-skills so as to keep them challenged and engaged as well as
assist the Group’s sustainable business success.

In particular to the COVID-19 virus situation, the Group has also
implemented special arrangement including some special
allowance and practices for the protection of employees’ health
and safety.

The Group has maintained productive relationships with its
customers, investees, co-investors and suppliers. With its
professional board, company website, financial reports and the
annual general meeting, the Group has significantly improved its
transparency and communication with its shareholders. The
controlling shareholder has also been very supportive and
resourceful in growing the business and mindful of all
shareholders’ interests to see the Company succeed.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of
the Group as at 31 March 2021 are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 97 to 223 of this annual report.

The Company has adopted a dividend policy in June 2019 (the
“Dividend Policy”). The declaration, form, frequency and amount
of dividend paid by the Company must be in accordance with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations and subject to the articles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”). The
Company does not have any pre-determined dividend payout
ratio. When considering dividend declaration or recommendation,
the Board shall take into account a number of factors, including
but not limited to the Group’s business condition and strategy,
capital requirement; and earnings, financial and cash flow
position, and distributable reserves.

Having considered the factors stated in the Dividend Policy
adopted by the Company, the Board does not recommend the
payment of a dividend for the Year (2020: Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 9 August 2021 to Wednesday, 11 August 2021 (both
days inclusive) for the purpose of determining the entitlement to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company (the “AGM"). During which period no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend
and vote at the AGM, all completed transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) must be lodged
with the Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar of the Company,
Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30
p.m. on Friday, 6 August 2021.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in the property and equipment of the Group during
the Year are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 35
to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2021, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to shareholders comprising share premium account
and accumulated loss amounted to approximately RMB840.1
million (31 March 2020: RMB471.9 million (restated)). Details of
the Company'’s distributable reserves as at 31 March 2021 are set
out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and as at the date of this report are
as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. NIU Zhanbin (Chairman)

Mr. JJANG Yulin (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. WU Hui (Chief Operating Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. FU Chi King Johnson (resignation effective on 29 April 2020)
Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Stephen MARKSCHEID

Mr. ZHANG Weidong

Mr. ZENG Liang (appointed on 30 April 2021)

Mr. ZHANG Longgen (resignation effective on 30 April 2021)

Biographical details of the Directors currently in service are set out
on pages 23 to 27 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Group which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS EZERNEE
Pursuant to Rule 17.50A(1) of the GEM Listing Rules, change in B4 GEM ET#REIZE 17.50A) 1§ - EFEREE
information of Directors are set out below: HomT -

Name of Director

EEpS

Details of change

SEFE

Mr. Stephen MARKSCHEID
Stephen MARKSCHEID %t 4

Appointed as chairman of Still Waters Green Technology Limited in July 2020
#2020 4F 7 B & Z £ 4 Still Waters Green Technology Limited 2 = f&&

Resigned as independent director of Ener-Core Inc in March 2020
R 20204 3 A&HTEner-Core Inc 2B &%

Ceased to be a venture partner at DealGlobe, a Shanghai based boutique

investment bank since 2019

B 2019 F#E~F A& DealGlobe (

—HELEPNRRERT) ZEBEBH

Appointed as independent director of Xiaobai Maimai Inc., a company listed on

NASDAQ, in 2017

R2017 FEZTE)ABERA(—

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provide that Directors shall be entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all
losses or liabilities incurred or sustained in defending any
proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given
in his favour, or in which he is acquitted. The Company has
maintained liability insurance to provide appropriate cover for the
directors of the Group during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2021, none of the Directors and chief executive of
the Company had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to
Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules relating to securities
transactions by the Directors to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange.

36

WaER ERAR) 2B ES
EFFREMRX

AHERANATE EFARMEEEABHRX
ZE#UE#E!’JET‘J&&ﬁ‘“(TmE%‘UﬂJ%)EPL
THRMBEAREIN —BRRAIETREAR
BETESRE RAFEAR - A2 WE%EE%E
TR - RAEEERRIVEERE -

EERBETHRAERAQAHEM
HBOZERY - HERO R EEE
HEVERRKE

M2021F3H31H MEARARAEERESITH
ABRAR A ERE AR (TEREFESRBEK
BIZE XV ED) R ERIAR (D - AERARR (D Sk EAEFE P
B R ﬁﬁhmﬁ %&%fﬁﬂ%w
HEIRFSHIMEAR G2 P (BIEESE
RIEE %&%fhﬂﬁ%hxw RENRIEER
R OAR) » BEIREES G EH] 5 352
M@ﬁE%MX%L ERRO ihmﬁ&Mi
MHRBNESA6ES67TIEBREFETESFR

PIN- NN PNE R i



ZHONGJIN TECHNOLOGY SERVICES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED & RHF RIS EBR D AR A T
2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT £ #R

Directors’ Report

ESEHRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 March 2021, so far as was known to the Directors, the
following persons (other than the Directors or chief executive of
the Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO, or who were directly or indirectly interested in 5%
or more of the nominal value of any class of shares capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
member of the Group:

FERRRAQFRMD REBERADF
MERRRR

MR2021F3A31MH  BESFAM - THALZ(R
NRBEERRSITRABRIN RARQE RS kA8
RO HE R ARG AREESF KBS
B S5 XV EBEE 2 2 55 30 BB X M AN 1 Bl 4% BB 5k 78
EIEARAIREES N EIRNEI6IEET
UGEEMECMOERSAR  KEEHEER
EMEREFATRATE B TEAEBIMKER
AR R AE IR ENEAERRAEERN5%
A iR

Long positions in share of the Company READTRGOEFE
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held in the Company
LERNE|
IRFEMBA
BRREE 514 FERAHE BO
Zhong Zhi Xin Zhuo Capital Company Beneficial owner 2,409,823,718 57.53%
Limited (“Zhongzhi Xinzhuo") (Note 1)
Zhong Zhi Xin Zhuo Capital Company EmHEBA
Limited ([Zhongzhi Xinzhuo 1) (A#7% 1)
Kang Bang Qi Hui (HK) Company Limited Beneficial owner 455,820,525 10.88%
(“Kang Bang (HK)") (Note 1)
RREE(ER)BRAA EmBEAA
(T (EE) ) (K1)
Tian Xi Capital Company Limited Interest of controlled corporation 2,865,644,243 68.41%
(“Tian Xi Capital”) (Note 1)
Tian Xi Capital Company Limited RESEE R
([Tian Xi Capital ) (Kfat 1)
Zhong Zhi Ze Yun Capital Company Limited Interest of controlled corporation  2,865,644,243 68.41%

(“Ze Yun Capital”) (Note 1)
Zhong Zhi Ze Yun Capital Company Limited
(I'Ze Yun Capital ) (FtzE 1)

RAE L EE MR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

Long positions in share of the Company (Continued)

FERRRARQTRA RAERER G
NEZRAXE &)

RADBRADOER 40

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding

Name of shareholder Capacity shares held in the Company

HARAT

BB

BEAE 513 P BR B RN

Mr. XIE Zhikun (“Mr. Xie") (Note 1) Interest of controlled corporation 2,865,644,243 68.41%
RERSAE ([BREE]D (Hat1) IR R

NINEGO Corporation (“NINEGQO") (Note 2) Beneficial Owner 274,190,219 6.55%

NINEGO Corporation ([NINEGO |) (#7#2) EmEBA

Mr. Hu Shilong (“Mr. Hu") (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 274,190,219 6.55%
fREER R A (THRSE A D) (it 2) RIEFLER R

Ms. Liu Yingying (“Ms. Liu”) (Note 2) Interest of controlled corporation 274,190,219 6.55%

Bzt ([81LxL))(AE2)
Notes:

1. Each of Zhongzhi Xinzhuo and Kang Bang (HK) is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Tian Xi Capital. Ze Yun Capital, a company wholly-owned by
Mr. Xie, controls 100% of the voting power at general meetings of Tian Xi
Capital. As such, each of Tian Xi Capital, Ze Yun Capital and Mr. Xie is
deemed to be interested in an aggregate of 2,865,644,243 shares of the
Company held by Zhongzhi Xinzhuo and Kang Bang (HK) by virtue of the
SFO.

2. NINEGO is held by Mr. Hu as to 40.60% and Ms. Liu as to 59.40%. As
such, Mr. Hu and Ms. Liu are deemed to be interested in 274,190,219
shares of the Company held by NINEGO by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the Directors were
not aware of any other person (other than the Directors and chief
executive of the Company) who had an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section
336 of the SFO, or who was directly or indirectly interested in 5%
or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital carrying
rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of any
member of the Group.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year was the Company, its subsidiaries or
its ultimate holding company or any subsidiary of such ultimate
holding company a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no other transactions,
arrangements or contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party or were parties and in which a Director or any entities
connected with a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during
the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or in existence during the Year.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has through the Nomination Committee reviewed
the independence of each of the independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Stephen MARKSCHEID, Mr. ZHANG
Weidong and Mr. ZHANG Longgen who were in service during
the Year, and has received annual confirmations of their
independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.
These written confirmations also covered the immediate family
members (as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) of each of the
independent non-executive Directors. The Company considers all
of them independent.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS

The transactions contemplated under the series of contractual
arrangements entered into by, among others, WFOE, Dalian
Kingwisoft, and Mr. Hu Shilong, Ms. Liu Yingying, Ms. Zhou Fang
and Changzhou Xiangjia Zhongzhou Investment Centre Limited
Partnership* (BMAZHAHEZE R L(BRE)) (the “Registered
Shareholders”) on 12 June 2020 (the “Contractual
Arrangements”) are non-exempt continuing connected
transactions, which are subject to reporting, annual review and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

For the purposes of Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules, and in
particular the definition of “connected person”, the entities we
control through the Contractual Arrangements, namely, Dalian
Kingwisoft, Chengdu Kingwisoft Data Services Co., Ltd.* (A(#B&
Z B HIE RSB R A B]), Wuhan Kingwisoft Technology Co.,
Ltd.* (X2 Z2 /BB EABER2AF]), Kunshan Kingwisoft
Information Technology Co., Ltd.* (2114 Z{Z B8R ER A7),
Leshan Kingwisoft Technology Co., Ltd.* (%41 &Z /BRI AR
AF]), Luzhou Kingwisoft Data Services Co., Ltd.* (E/MN&Zr1E
HIERE AR A F]), Xiangyang Kingwisoft Internet Technology
Co., Ltd.* (El52Z2LBAERIEER2AH]), Qingdao Nanyou
Information Technology Co., Ltd.* (B &M Ez BHMTAR AT,
formerly known as Jt R 8K iTBR A A, Dalian
Kingwisoft Internet Service Outsourcing Co., Ltd.* (KBS Z @I
PR R IMEEBRAR]), Mianyang Kingwisoft Zhiyuan Internet
Service Co., Ltd.* (A2F5 228Uz B BB IRTIS AR A F]) and Dalian
Zhiyin Internet Technology Co., Ltd.* (R3E%5 R 5 B BRI AR A
a]), (collectively, the “Consolidated Affiliated Entities”), are
treated as the Company’s subsidiaries, and their directors, chief
executives or substantial shareholders (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) and their respective associates are treated as the
Company'’s connected persons.

*  for identification purpose only
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)
Reasons for the Contractual Arrangements

As advised by the PRC legal advisor, in accordance with the
Telecommunication Regulations of the PRC ({#F# A R EFIEE
1= 1&451)) promulgated on 25 September 2000, and most recently
amended on 6 February 2016, by the State Council of the PRC (the
“Telecommunication Regulations”), a service provider is required
to obtain a value-added telecommunication business operating
license (M2 BT HEBLLEFFAE)) ("VATS Licence”) from the
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology of the PRC (the
“MIIT”) or its authorised local counterpart before commencing the
provision of value-added telecommunication services (“VAT
Services”). Further, under the Catalogue of Telecommunication
Business ({ & 12 % 7% % 8 B £%)) promulgated on 28 December
2015, and most recently amended on 6 June 2019, by MIIT (the
“Telecommunication Catalogue”), call centre services is a type of
VAT Services, thus any provider of call centre services in China is
required to obtain a VATS Licence before commencing its
operation.

In accordance with the Telecommunication Catalogue:

(i)  call centre services mean business consultation, information
consultation and data query services regarding an entity for
the end-users of such entity through public communication
network by: (a) utilising call centre system which is
connected to public communication network or the Internet;
(b) utilising database technology; and (c) establishing
information base through information collection, processing
and storage;

(i) users of call centre services may: (a) enter into a call centre
system and gain access to the database of the call centre
system through multiple channels such as telephone, fax,
mobile communication terminals and computer terminals;
and (b) receive information consultation services by multiple
means such as voice, fax, email and text messages; and

(iiiy  call centre services also include leasing of call centre system
and workstations of call centre operators.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

Reasons for the Contractual Arrangements
(Continued)

Furthermore, under the Regulations for the Administration of
Foreign-Invested Telecommunication Enterprises ( {/NHI& & &z
TEEIEIHTE) ) promulgated on 11 December 2001, and most
recently amended on 6 February 2016, by the State Council (the
“FITE Regulations”) and the Administrative Measures for
Telecommunication Business Operating Permit ( { E{5 EEE &

A EEPL) ) promulgated on 3 July 2017 by MUT (the

“Telecommunication Measures”):

(i)  the establishment of a foreign-invested telecommunication
enterprise which engages in the provision of any VAT
Services in China must be approved by the MIIT or its
authorised local counterparts;

(i) the holder of a VATS Licence is required to obtain the
approval of the MIIT and/or its authorised local counterparts
if there is any change to the shareholders of such holder;
and

(i) the main foreign investor in a foreign-invested
telecommunication enterprise which engages in the
provision of VAT Services must satisfy the Qualification
Requirement of VATS, including, a proven track record of
good performance, and operating experience, in carrying on
value-added telecommunication business.

As advised by the PRC legal advisor, the business operated by the
Dalian Kingwisoft Group (the “Dalian Kingwisoft Business”),
comprising the back-office services (primarily provision of
customer service solutions and setting up of contact service system
and centres), can be further categorised into:

(i) business consultation, information consultation and data
query services on behalf of an entity for the customers of
such entity (such as general enquiry hotlines, customer
service hotlines, post-sale follow-up services and customer
satisfaction surveys) by utilising call centre system (which is
connected to public communication network or the Internet)
and/or database technology (the “Contact Services”);
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

Reasons for the Contractual Arrangements
(Continued)

(i) information processing, business consultation and other
customised business process outsourcing services on behalf
of an entity for the customers of such entity (such as order
processing, audio and video review and image processing)
by utilising call centre system (which is connected to public
communication network or the Internet) and/or database
technology (the “Call Center-related BPO Services”); and

(i)  designing, installing, testing and trial-testing contact service
systems and centres which is connected to public
communication network or the Internet for an entity, and
providing software and hardware support for such contact
service system and centres, in each case with a view to, or in
connection with, providing Contact Services on behalf of
such entity for the customers of such entity (the “Contact
Service System and Centres Set-up Services”).

As each of the Contact Services, the Call Center-related BPO
Services and the Contact Service System and Centres Set-up
Services involves the provision of services by the Dalian Kingwisoft
Group on behalf of an entity for the customers of such entity
through public communication network by:

(i) utilising call centre system which is connected to public
communication network or the Internet;

(i) utilising database technology; and

(i) establishing information base through information
collection, processing and storage,

the provision of the Dalian Kingwisoft Business by the Dalian
Kingwisoft Group constitutes the provision of call centre services,
one type of VAT Services, by the Dalian Kingwisoft Group.
Therefore, in accordance with the Telecommunication Regulations,
the DaLian Kingwisoft Group is required to hold VATS Licences in
order to operate the DaLian Kingwisoft Business.

The transactions contemplated under the Contractual
Arrangements are continuing connected transactions of our
Company and are subject to reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)
Qualification Requirements

In addition to restrictions on foreign ownership, there are also
regulatory requirements on the experience and operations of a
foreign investor who intends to operate a value-added
telecommunications business in the PRC.

According to the FITE Regulations, a foreign investor who invests
in VAT Services business in the PRC must possess the Qualification
Requirement of VATS. The PRC legal advisor has advised that, as
at the date of this report, (i) the above-mentioned guidance
memorandum issued by MIIT had no legal or regulatory effect
under the PRC Laws, (ii) no applicable PRC Laws, regulations or
rules provides clear guidance or interpretation on the Qualification
Requirement of VATS, and (iii) the MIIT retains considerable
discretion in determining whether a foreign investor has satisfied
the Qualification Requirement of VATS and in granting approval
of applications for establishing foreign-invested value-added
telecommunications enterprises.

Effects and Actions Under Taken to Comply with
the Qualification Requirements

Despite the lack of clear guidance or interpretation on the
Qualification Requirement of VATS, the Group has been gradually
building up the track record of overseas VAT Services operations
by undertaking the following steps:

(i) As at the date of this report, the Group has been rewarded
through its cooperation with its international partners, and
commenced working on, certain projects to provide offshore
customer support services in foreign languages, including
Japanese and English. The Group plans to continue
expanding its offshore customer support services business
involving foreign languages in overseas markets;

(i) The Group is strengthening its close cooperation relationship
with its international partners, such as SoftBank, with the
aim of gradually exploring business opportunities and
developing its customer base overseas. The Group also plans
to build up its track record of overseas VAT Services
operation by obtaining overseas projects through
collaboration between its onshore and offshore entities; and
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

Effects and Actions Under Taken to Comply with
the Qualification Requirements (Continued)

(i) It is the Group’s strategy to identify suitable offshore
companies with proper value-added telecommunications
services operation and acquire a controlling stake in such
companies in future, in order to build up its track record of
overseas VAT Services operation.

We will continue to actively manage the operation of the Group
and procure the Group to continue carrying out the above steps
for the purpose of being qualified, as early as possible, to acquire
the entire shareholding in DaLian Kingwisoft when the relevant
PRC Laws and authorities allow foreign investors to invest and
hold interest in enterprises which engage in VAT Services.

In addition, the Group has taken the following steps with a view
to gradually building up its track record of overseas VAT Services
operations, demonstrating compliance with the Qualification
Requirement of VATS, and being qualified, as early as possible, to
acquire the entire equity interest in the registered capital of DaLian
Kingwisoft when there is clear guidance and interpretation on the
Qualification Requirement of VATS under applicable PRC Laws,
regulations and rules and when, as a matter of regulatory policy
and practice, the MIIT and its authorised local counterparts will
accept and approve applications by the members of the Dalian
Kingwisoft Group which engage in the provision of VAT Services
to be converted into foreign invested telecommunication
enterprises which engage in the provision of VAT Services:

(i) the Group is in the process of registering trademarks outside
the PRC for the purpose of promoting VAT Services
operations outside the PRC;

(i)  the Group has registered one domain name outside the PRC
for the purpose of introducing VAT Services operations
outside the PRC to users outside the PRC; and

(i)  the Group has obtained a local phone number in Hong

Kong for the purpose of promoting VAT Services operations
outside the PRC.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

Effects and Actions Under Taken to Comply with
the Qualification Requirements (Continued)

Based on the foregoing and the MIIT Consultation, the PRC legal
advisor is of the view that, subject to the discretion of the
competent authority in determining whether the Qualification
Requirement of VATS is fulfilled, the above steps taken by the
Group and the Group are reasonable and appropriate steps for
the purpose of demonstrating compliance with the Qualification
Requirement of VATS.

We will, under the guidance of the PRC legal advisor, make
periodic enquiries with the relevant PRC governmental authorities
to understand whether there is any new regulatory development
and to assess whether the Company and the Group have built up
sufficient track record of overseas VAT Services operations to
satisfy the Qualification Requirement of VATS. We will also, as and
when appropriate, disclose the progress of our efforts and actions
taken to comply with the Qualification Requirement of VATS in
the Company’s annual and interim reports to inform the
Shareholders and other investors.

Risks Relating to the Contractual Arrangements

We believe the following risks are associated with the Contractual
Arrangements. Further details of these risks are set out on pages
160 to 167 of the Circular.

o Substantial uncertainties and restrictions exist with respect
to the interpretation and application of PRC laws and
regulations relating to the provision of contact services in
China.

o We rely on Contractual Arrangements with the Dalian
Kingwisoft Group and its shareholders for its business
operations, which may not be as effective as direct
ownership in providing operational control.

o Any failure by the Dalian Kingwisoft Group or its
shareholders to perform their obligations under the
Contractual Arrangements would have a material adverse
effect on our business, and the domestic shareholder may
have potential conflicts of interest with us.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

Risks Relating to the Contractual Arrangements

(Continued)

o Contractual Arrangements may be subject to scrutiny by the
PRC tax authorities and additional taxes may be imposed,

which could negatively affect our financial condition and the
value of the investment.

We conduct the DalLian Kingwisoft Business in the PRC
through the Dalian Kingwisoft Group by way of the
Contractual Arrangements, but certain of the terms of the
Contractual Arrangements may not be enforceable under
PRC laws.

We may not be able to meet the Qualification Requirement
of VATS.

Our exercise of the option to acquire equity ownership and
assets of the Dalian Kingwisoft Group may subject to
certain limitation and we may need to expend significant
resources to acquire all or part of the equity interests in the
Dalian Kingwisoft Group from the respective equity holders.

The WFOE may lose the ability to use and enjoy assets held
by the Dalian Kingwisoft Group that are material to the
operation of certain portions of its business if the Dalian
Kingwisoft Group goes bankrupt or become subject to a
dissolution or liquidation proceeding.

Substantial uncertainties exist with respect to the
interpretation and implementation of the recently passed
PRC Foreign Investment Law and how it may impact the
viability of our current corporate structure, corporate
governance and business operations.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)
Contractual Arrangements in Place

A brief description of the major terms of the Contractual
Arrangements which were in place during the Year is as follows:

Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement

The Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement was entered into
between the WFOE and Dalian Kingwisoft on 12 June 2020,
pursuant to which Dalian Kingwisoft agrees to engage the WFOE
as its exclusive provider of business support, technical and
consulting services, including technical services, network support,
business consultation, intellectual property licensing, equipment
leasing, market consultancy, system integration, product research
and development and system maintenance, in exchange for
service fees. Under the Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement,
the service fees, subject to the WFOE's adjustment, are equal to
the net profit of DaLian Kingwisoft and its subsidiaries. The WFOE
may adjust the service fees at its sole discretion, after taking into
account certain factors, including but not limited to the deduction
of necessary costs, expenses, taxes and other statutory
contribution for the corresponding fiscal year, and may also
include accumulated losses of Dalian Kingwisoft and its
subsidiaries from previous financial periods. The service fees shall
be transferred to the designated account of the WFOE upon
issuance of payment notification by the WFOE. The WFOE enjoys
the entire economic benefits derived from the businesses of
DaLian Kingwisoft and its subsidiaries, and bears relevant risks of
Dalian Kingwisoft and its subsidiaries. If DaLian Kingwisoft runs
into financial deficit or suffers severe operation difficulties, the
WEFOE will provide financial support to DaLian Kingwisoft.

In line with the services it provides, the WFOE has employed
relevant personnel primarily providing consulting and technical
services to Dalian Kingwisoft. In addition, the WFOE’s primary
operating assets will be IT facilities, network and equipment,
which support its provision of services to Dalian Kingwisoft under
the Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement. The WFOE and its
subsidiaries also engage in comprehensive marketing services and
data centre services businesses.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)
Contractual Arrangements in Place (Continued)
Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement (Continued)

Both the WFOE and Dalian Kingwisoft have internal control
measures in place, which mainly include measures with respect to
accounts payables and receivables, which require the review and
approval by the relevant department(s) of the WFOE and DalLian
Kingwisoft to confirm the services provided by the WFOE and
received by Dalian Kingwisoft. Further, to ensure that the WFOE
will not engage in the Dalian Kingwisoft Business or any other
restricted business in the PRC, the WFOE has set up an internal
control procedure, which requires the senior staff member of
relevant departments to review the business to be entered into by
the WFOE.

Intellectual property rights are developed during the normal
course of business of Dalian Kingwisoft and its subsidiaries.
Pursuant to the Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement, the
WFOE will have the exclusive and proprietary rights to all
intellectual properties developed by Dalian Kingwisoft and its
subsidiaries, given that the WFOE provides consultation services to
Dalian Kingwisoft and its subsidiaries during the term of the
Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement. Part of the economic
benefits generated by Dalian Kingwisoft and its subsidiaries will
be intellectual properties developed or created during the normal
business operation of DaLian Kingwisoft and its subsidiaries.
Though it is not intended to transfer any existing intellectual
property rights held by Dalian Kingwisoft to the WFOE, Dalian
Kingwisoft is required under the Contractual Arrangements to
obtain the WFOE's prior written consent before it transfers,
assigns or disposes of any of the intellectual properties to any third

party.
The Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement is for an initial

term of ten years and shall be automatically extended upon expiry
unless the WFOE confirms a new renewal term in writing.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)
Contractual Arrangements in Place (Continued)
Exclusive Call Option Agreement

The Exclusive Call Option Agreement was entered into by and
among the WFOE, the Registered Shareholders and Dalian
Kingwisoft on 12 June 2020, pursuant to which the WFOE (or
KingNine Holdings Limited or any subsidiary of KingNine Holdings
Limited , the “designee”) has been granted an irrevocable and
exclusive right to purchase all of the shares in and/or assets of
DaLian Kingwisoft at a nominal price, unless the relevant
government authorities or the PRC Laws request that another
amount be used as the purchase price, in which case the purchase
price shall be the lowest amount under such request. Subject to
relevant PRC Laws and regulations, the Registered Shareholders
and/or Dalian Kingwisoft shall return any amount of purchase
price they have received to the WFOE. At the WFOE's request, the
Registered Shareholders and/or Dalian Kingwisoft will promptly
and unconditionally transfer their respective shareholding in and/
or the relevant assets of Dalian Kingwisoft to the WFOE (or its
designee) after the WFOE exercises its call option. The Exclusive
Call Option Agreement is for an initial term of ten years and shall
be automatically extended upon expiry unless the WFOE confirms
a new renewal term in writing.

In order to prevent the flow of the relevant assets and value of
Dalian Kingwisoft and its subsidiaries to the Registered
Shareholders, during the term of the Exclusive Call Option
Agreement, DaLian Kingwisoft is not allowed to, and shall procure
its subsidiaries not to, sell, transfer, mortgage or otherwise dispose
of any of its assets (exceeding the value of RMB1 million) without
the prior written consent of the WFOE. In addition, Dalian
Kingwisoft is not allowed to, and shall procure its subsidiaries not
to, make any distributions to its shareholder(s) without prior
written consent of the WFOE. In the event that the Registered
Shareholders receive any distribution from DaLian Kingwisoft and/
or its subsidiaries and subject to the PRC Laws, the Registered
Shareholders must immediately pay or transfer such distribution to
the WFOE (or its designee). If the WFOE exercises the call option
all or any part of the shareholding in and/or assets of Dalian
Kingwisoft acquired would be transferred to the WFOE, and the
benefits of the equity ownership and/or assets, as applicable,
would flow to KingNine Holdings Limited and its shareholders.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)
Contractual Arrangements in Place (Continued)
Exclusive Call Option Agreement (Continued)

As provided in the Exclusive Call Option Agreement, without the
prior written consent of the WFOE, Dalian Kingwisoft shall not,
and shall procure its subsidiaries not to, among other things, (i)
sell, transfer, pledge or dispose of in any manner any of its assets
of more than RMB1 million; (ii) execute any material contract for a
value more than RMB1 million, except any contracts in the
ordinary course of business and any contracts entered into with
any members of the Group; (iii) provide any loan, financial
support, pledge or guarantees in any form to any third party, or
allow any third party to create any pledge or other security interest
over its assets or equity; (iv) incur, inherit, guarantee or allow any
debt that is not incurred in the ordinary course of business of
Dalian Kingwisoft or not disclosed and consented to by the
WFOE; (v) enter into any consolidation or merger with any third
party, or acquire or invest in any third party; (vi) increase or reduce
its registered capital, or alter the structure of the registered capital
in any other manner. The Exclusive Call Option Agreement
provides that the Registered Shareholders and Dalian Kingwisoft
shall procure the subsidiaries of DaLian Kingwisoft to comply with
the above undertakings as if they are parties to the Exclusive Call
Option Agreement. Therefore, due to the relevant restrictive
provisions in the agreement, the potential adverse effect on the
WFOE and the Group in the event of any loss suffered from
Dalian Kingwisoft and/or its subsidiaries can be limited to a
certain extent. In addition, in relation to the above restrictive
provisions specified in the Exclusive Call Option Agreement, the
asset disposals or value of contracts will be aggregated if such
asset disposals or value of contracts (i) are entered into by
KingNine Holdings Limited, its subsidiaries or the Dalian
Kingwisoft Group with the same party or parties; or (ii) involve the
disposal or contracts which relate to the whole or parts of the
asset or securities or interests in a company or group of
companies. Further, as advised by the PRC legal advisor, any
transfer of shares in Dalian Kingwisoft pursuant to the terms of
the Exclusive Call Option Agreement will need to be filed with
relevant government authorities upon the exercise of the call
option thereunder.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)
Contractual Arrangements in Place (Continued)
Share Pledge Agreement

The Share Pledge Agreement was entered into by and among the
WEFOE, the Registered Shareholders and DaLian Kingwisoft on 12
June 2020, pursuant to which the Registered Shareholders pledge as
first charge all of their respective shareholding in DaLian Kingwisoft
to the WFOE as collateral security for any or all of the payments due
to the WFOE and to secure performance of their obligations under
the Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement, the Exclusive Call
Option Agreement and the Authorisation Agreement. The Share
Pledge Agreement will remain in effect till the earlier of (i) all
obligation of DaLian Kingwisoft and the Registered Shareholders
under the Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement, the Exclusive
Call Option Agreement and the Authorisation Agreement are
performed in full; (ii) the WFOE exercises its exclusive option to
purchase the entire shareholding held by the Registered Shareholders
in DaLian Kingwisoft and/or the assets of DaLian Kingwisoft pursuant
to the terms of the Exclusive Call Option Agreement when it is
permitted to do so under the applicable PRC Laws; (iii) the WFOE
exercises its unilateral and unconditional right of termination; and (iv)
the agreement is required to be terminated in accordance with
applicable PRC Laws and regulations. In addition, under the Exclusive
Call Option Agreement, none of the Registered Shareholders may
transfer or create any encumbrance on any of their shareholding in
and the relevant assets of Dalian Kingwisoft (including any equity
interests in and relevant assets of the subsidiaries of Dalian
Kingwisoft) without the WFOE's prior written consent. Furthermore,
under the Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement, the WFOE is
entitled to retain and exercise physical control of company seals and
certificates that are crucial to the daily operation of Dalian
Kingwisoft, which further strengthens the protection of the WFOE's
interests over Dalian Kingwisoft under the Contractual
Arrangements. Should an event of default (as provided in the Share
Pledge Agreement) occur, unless it is successfully resolved to the
WEFOE's satisfaction within 30 days upon being notified by the WFOE,
the WFOE may demand that the Registered Shareholders and/or
Dalian Kingwisoft immediately pay all outstanding payments due
under the Exclusive Business Cooperation Agreement, repay any
loans and make all other payments due to it, and/or dispose of the
pledged shareholding and use the proceeds to repay any outstanding
amount due to the WFOE. The pledges under the Share Pledge
Agreement has been duly registered with the relevant PRC authority
on 12 July 2020 pursuant to PRC Laws and regulations.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)
Contractual Arrangements in Place (Continued)
Share Pledge Agreement (Continued)

On 16 October 2020, the Registered Shareholders entered into a
capital increase agreement pursuant to which the registered
capital of Dalian Kingwisoft was increased from RMB15,480,000
to RMB100,000,000 contributing from each of the Registered
Shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings (the “Capital
Increase”). Upon the issuance of the 84,520,000 new shares (the
“New Shares”) to the Registered Shareholders and the successful
registration of the Capital Increase, the New Shares will be fully
pledged by the Registered Shareholders as first charge of all of
their respective shareholding in DaLian Kingwisoft to the WFOE as
collateral security for any or all of the payments due to the WFOE
and to secure performance of their obligations under the Exclusive
Business Cooperation Agreement, the Exclusive Call Option
Agreement and the Authorisation Agreement under the existing
terms of the Share Pledge Agreement.

Power of Attorney

The irrevocable Powers of Attorney have been granted by each of
the Registered Shareholders on 12 June 2020 in favour of the
WFOE pursuant to the Authorisation Agreement dated 12 June
2020 by and among the WFOE, the Registered Shareholder and
Dalian Kingwisoft, pursuant to which the Registered Shareholders
have appointed the WFOE or a director of its offshore holding
company or its/his/her successor (including a liquidator replacing
the WFOE's director) as their exclusive agent and attorney to act
on their behalf on all matters concerning DalLian Kingwisoft and
to exercise all of their rights as registered shareholders of Dalian
Kingwisoft. These rights include (i) the right to propose, convene
and attend shareholders’ meetings; (ii) the right to sell, transfer,
pledge or dispose of shares; (iii) the right to exercise shareholders’
voting rights; and (iv) the right to act as the legal representative
(chairperson), the director, supervisor, the chief executive officer
(or general manager) and other senior management members of
Dalian Kingwisoft. The authorised person is entitled to sign
minutes, file documents with the relevant companies registry and
exercise voting rights on the winding up of Dalian Kingwisoft on
behalf of the Registered Shareholders. The Registered
Shareholders have undertaken to transfer all assets obtained by
them after the winding up of DaLian Kingwisoft to the WFOE at
nil consideration or the lowest price permissible by the then
applicable PRC Laws and regulations. As a result of the Powers of
Attorney, the Company is able to exercise management control
over the activities that have significant impact on the economic
performance of DaLian Kingwisoft.
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The Powers of Attorney also provided that, in order to avoid $E#EJETE - B REBELFZER  HE0K

potential conflicts of interest, where the Registered Shareholders
are officers or directors of KingNine, its subsidiaries or the DaLian
Kingwisoft Group, the powers of attorney are granted in favour of
other unrelated officers or directors of KingNine (the unrelated
directors of the holding company of KingNine).

The Powers of Attorney shall automatically terminate once the
WEFQOE (or any member of the Group other than DaLian Kingwisoft
and its subsidiaries) directly holds the entire shareholding in and/
or the entire assets of DaLian Kingwisoft permitted under the then
PRC Laws and regulations and the WFOE (or its subsidiaries) is
allowed to conduct the DaLian Kingwisoft Business under the then
PRC Laws and regulations, following which the WFOE is registered
as the sole shareholder of Dalian Kingwisoft.

Spouse Undertaking

Mr. Hu Shilong, Ms. Liu Yingying and the spouse of Ms. Zhou
Fang executed an irrevocable undertaking on 12 June 2020,
whereby they expressly and irrevocably acknowledge and
undertake that (i) any shareholding interest held by Mr. Hu, Ms.
Liu and Ms. Zhou in DaLian Kingwisoft do not fall within the scope
of their communal properties; (i) they will not have any claim on
the interests of Dalian Kingwisoft obtained through the
Contractual Arrangements in their capacity as spouse; (iii), in
relation to Ms. Zhou's spouse, he has never participated and will
not participate in the operation or management of Dalian
Kingwisoft.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)
Contractual Arrangements in Place (Continued)

For details of the Contractual Arrangements, please refer to the
section headed “Contractual Arrangements” in the Circular.

Apart from the above, there are no other new contractual
arrangements entered into, renewed or reproduced between the
Group and the Consolidated Affiliated Entities during the Year.
There was no material change in the Contractual Arrangements
and/or the circumstances under which they were adopted for the
Year.

For the Year, none of the Contractual Arrangements has been
unwound as none of the restrictions that led to the adoption of
structured contracts under the Contractual Arrangements has
been removed. As of 31 March 2021, we had not encountered
interference or encumbrance from any PRC governing bodies in
operating our businesses through our Consolidated Affiliated
Entities under the Contractual Arrangements.

We have been advised by our PRC legal advisor that the
Contractual Arrangements do not violate the relevant PRC laws
and regulations.

From the Completion date to 31 March 2021, revenue of the
Consolidated Affiliated Entities was amounted to approximately
RMB246.7 million, which accounted for approximately 92.7% of
the Group’s total revenue. The net assets of the Consolidated
Affiliated Entities were approximately RMB326.2 million as at 31
March 2021.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
Internal Control Measures

Our Group has adopted the following measures to ensure the
effective operation of our Group with the implementation of the
Contractual Arrangements and our compliance with the
Contractual Arrangements:

1. major issues arising from the implementation and
compliance with the Contractual Arrangements or any
regulatory enquiries from government authorities will be
submitted to our Board, if necessary, for review and
discussion on an occurrence basis;

2. our Board will review the overall performance of and
compliance with the Contractual Arrangements at least
once a year,

3. our Directors undertake to provide periodic updates in our
annual reports regarding the qualification requirements as
stipulated in the section headed “Contractual Arrangements
— Qualification Requirement of VATS"” in the Circular;

4. our Company will disclose the overall performance and
compliance with the Contractual Arrangements in our
annual reports; and

5. our Company has engaged external legal advisors or other
professional advisors, if necessary, to assist the Board to
review the implementation of the Contractual
Arrangements, review the legal compliance of WFOE and
our Consolidated Affiliated Entities to deal with specific
issues or matters arising from the Contractual
Arrangements.

The Extent to which the Contractual
Arrangements Relate to Requirements Other
than the Foreign Ownership Restriction

All of the Contractual Arrangements are subject to the restrictions
as set out on pages 298 to 304 of the Circular.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)
Listing Rule Implications

The highest applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits
ratio) under the GEM Listing Rules in respect of the transactions
under the Contractual Arrangements were more than 5%. As
such, these transactions were subject to the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Waiver from the Stock Exchange and Annual
Review

The Hong Kong Stock Exchange has granted, a waiver from (i)
fixing the term of the Contractual Arrangements for a period of
not exceeding three years pursuant to Rule 20.50 of the GEM
Listing Rules, and (ii) setting a maximum aggregate annual cap
pursuant to Rule 20.51 of the GEM Listing Rules for the service
fees payable by the Dalian Kingwisoft to the WFOE under the
Contractual Arrangements, subject to the following conditions:

(@) No Change without Independent Non-executive Directors’
Approval — No change to the Contractual Arrangements
(including with respect to any fees payable to the WFOE
thereunder) will be made without the approval of the
independent nonexecutive Directors.

(b)  No Change without Independent Shareholders’ Approval —
Save as described in “— Renewal and Reproduction” below,
no change to the agreements governing the Contractual
Arrangements will be made without the approval of the
Company’s Independent Shareholders. Once Independent
Shareholders’ approval of any change has been obtained,
no further announcement or approval of the Independent
Shareholders will be required under Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules unless and until further changes are proposed.
The periodic reporting requirement regarding the
Contractual Arrangements in the annual reports of the
Company (as set out in “— Renewal and Reproduction”
below) will however continue to be applicable.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

Waiver from the Stock Exchange and Annual
Review (Continued)

(0

Economic Benefits Flexibility — The Contractual
Arrangements shall continue to enable the Group to receive
the entire economic benefits derived by the Dalian
Kingwisoft Group through (i) the Group’s option (if and
when so allowed under the applicable PRC Laws) to acquire,
all or part of the entire shareholding in Dalian Kingwisoft
for nil consideration or the minimum amount of
consideration permitted by applicable PRC Laws and
regulations, (i) the business structure under which the entire
profit generated by the Dalian Kingwisoft Group is
substantially retained by our Group, such that no annual cap
shall be set on the amount of service fees payable to the
WFOE by the Dalian Kingwisoft Group under the Exclusive
Business Cooperation Agreement, and (iii) the Group's right
to control the management and operation of, as well as, in
substance, all of the voting rights of DaLian Kingwisoft.

Renewal and Reproduction — On the basis that the
Contractual Arrangements provide an acceptable framework
for the relationship between the Company and its
subsidiaries in which the Company has direct shareholding,
on the one hand, and the DaLian Kingwisoft Group, on the
other hand, that framework may be renewed and/or
reproduced upon the expiry of the existing arrangements or
in relation to any existing or new wholly foreign owned
enterprise or operating company (including branch
company) engaging in the same business as that of the
Group which the Group might wish to establish when
justified by business expediency, without obtaining the
approval of the Shareholders, on substantially the same
terms and conditions as the existing Contractual
Arrangements. The directors, chief executive or substantial
shareholders of any existing or new wholly foreign owned
enterprise or operating company (including branch
company) engaging in the same business as that of the
Group which the Group may establish will, upon renewal
and/or reproduction of the Contractual Arrangements,
however be treated as connected persons of the Company
and transactions between these connected persons and the
Company other than those under similar contractual
arrangements shall comply with Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules. This condition is subject to relevant PRC Laws
and regulations and approvals.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

Waiver from the Stock Exchange and Annual
Review (Continued)

(e)

Ongoing Reporting and Approvals — the Group will disclose
details relating to the Contractual Arrangements on an
ongoing basis as follows:

(i

(ii)

(iii)

The Contractual Arrangements in place during each
financial period will be disclosed in the Company’s
annual report and accounts in accordance with the
relevant provision of the GEM Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors will review the
Contractual Arrangements annually and confirm in the
Company’s annual report and accounts for the relevant
year that: (A) the transactions carried out during such
year have been entered into in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the Contractual Arrangements,
have been operated so that the revenue generated by
the DalLian Kingwisoft Group has been substantially
retained by the WFOE; (B) no dividends or other
distributions have been made by the Dalian Kingwisoft
Group to the holders of its equity interests which are not
otherwise subsequently assigned or transferred to the
Group; and (C) any new contracts entered into, renewed
or reproduced between the Group and the Dalian
Kingwisoft Group during the relevant financial period
under paragraph (d) above are fair and reasonable, or
advantageous, so far as the Group is concerned and in
the interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.

The Company’s auditors will carry out procedures in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants on the transactions carried
out pursuant to the Contractual Arrangements and will
provide a letter to the Directors with a copy to the Hong
Kong Stock Exchange, at least ten Business Days before
the Company bulk prints its annual report, reporting their
findings whether that the transactions carried out
pursuant to the Contractual Arrangements have received
the approval of the Directors, have been entered into in
accordance with the relevant Contractual Arrangements
and that no dividends or other distributions have been
made by the DaLian Kingwisoft Group to the holders of
its equity interest which are not otherwise subsequently
assigned or transferred to the Group.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

Waiver from the Stock Exchange and Annual
Review (Continued)

(e)

Ongoing Reporting and Approvals — the Group will disclose
details relating to the Contractual Arrangements on an
ongoing basis as follows: (Continued)

(iv)

For the purposes of Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing
Rules, and in particular the definition of “connected
person”, the DaLian Kingwisoft Group will be treated
as the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiaries, and the
directors, chief executives or substantial shareholders
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Dalian
Kingwisoft Group and their respective associates will
be treated as the Company’s “connected persons”
(excluding for this purpose the Dalian Kingwisoft
Group). As such, transactions between these
connected persons and the Group (including for this
purpose the Dalian Kingwisoft Group), other than
those under the Contractual Arrangements, shall
comply with Chapter 20 of GEM Listing Rules.

DaLian Kingwisoft also undertakes that, for so long as
the Shares are listed on the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, it will provide the Group’s management
and the Company’s auditors with full access to its
relevant records for the purpose of procedures to be
carried out by the Company’s auditors on the
connected transactions.

During the Year, the Company had complied with the waiver
conditions set out by the Stock Exchange and all necessary GEM
Listing Rules requirements as required by the Stock Exchange.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

Waiver from the Stock Exchange and Annual

Review (Continued)

Confirmations from the Independent Non-executive
Directors

Our independent non-executive Directors have confirmed that the
Contractual Arrangements for the Year to which any member of
the Group was a party were entered into by the Group:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

the transactions carried out during such year have been
entered into in accordance with the relevant provisions of
the Contractual Arrangements and have been operated so
that the revenue generated by the Consolidated Affiliated
Entities has been substantially retained by the WFOE;

no dividends or other distributions have been made by the
Consolidated Affiliated Entities to the holders of its equity
interests which are not otherwise subsequently assigned or
transferred to our Group;

no new contracts were entered into, renewed or reproduced
between our Group and the Consolidated Affiliated Entities
during the reporting period; and

the Contractual Arrangements are entered into in the
ordinary and usual course of business of our Group on
normal commercial terms and are fair, reasonable and
advantageous, so far as our Group is concerned and in the
interests of our Company and the Shareholders of our
Company as a whole.
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CONTRACTUAL ARRANGEMENTS (Continued)

Waiver from the Stock Exchange and Annual
Review (Continued)

Confirmations from the Auditor

Pursuant to Rule 20.53 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company
has engaged the auditor to conduct certain procedures in respect
of the transactions carried out pursuant to the Contractual
Arrangements of the Group for the Year, in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has
confirmed in a letter to the Board that, with respect to the
transactions carried out pursuant to the Contractual Arrangements
during the Year:

a) the transactions carried out pursuant to the Contractual
Arrangements have received the approval of the Board;

b)  the disclosed continuing connected transactions were
entered into in accordance with the relevant agreements
under the Contractual Arrangements governing such
transactions; and

¢)  no dividends or other distributions have been made by the
Consolidated Affiliated Entities to the holders of its equity
interests which are not otherwise subsequently assigned or
transferred to our Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

None of the related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the Year as disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements constituted connected transaction(s) or
continuing connected transaction(s) under the GEM Listing Rules.
The following set out details of the Contractual Arrangements and
the transactions relating to the Technology Services Contract (as
defined below) which constituted continuing connected
transactions under the GEM Listing Rules.
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ESEHRE

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Contractual Arrangements

The transactions contemplated under the Contractual
Arrangements are continuing connected transactions of the
Company and are subject to reporting, announcement and
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter
20 of the GEM Listing Rules. Please refer “Contractual
Arrangements” from pages 40 to 62 of this report for details.

Technology Services Contract

On 12 March 2021, Shenzhen Kingwisoft Data Services Co., Ltd.*
ORI EZEREEBIERB AR Q7)) (“Shenzhen Kingwisoft”) (an
indirect wholly-owned sub5|d|ary of the Company) and Beijing
Heng Tian Kai Xuan Technology Limited* (3t 18 XSl Rl AR
28] (“Heng Tian Kai Xuan”) entered into a technology services
contract (the “Technology Services Contract”) in relation to the
provision of information technology manpower services and other
related services by Shenzhen Kingwisoft to Heng Tian Kai Xuan.
Details of the Technology Services Contract were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 12 March 2021.

Heng Tian Kai Xuan is a connected person of the Company by
virtue of being indirectly owned as to 45.13% by Mr. Xie Zhikun,
who is a controlling shareholder of the Company. Accordingly, the
transactions contemplated under the Technology Services Contract
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company
pursuant to Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. As one or more
of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the annual cap
contemplated under the Technology Services Contract were more
than 5% but less than 25% and the total consideration was less
than HK$10,000,000, the transactions contemplated thereunder
were subject to the reporting, announcement and annual review
requirements but were exempt from the circular (including
independent financial advice) and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions have
been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms or better; and (iii)
according to the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

* for identification purpose only
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
Technology Services Contract (Continued)

The Directors are not aware of any related party transactions
disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements that
constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions of the Group, nor are there any connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions that require to
be disclosed in this annual report under the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company has complied with the disclosure requirements,
where applicable, in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2021, none of the Directors was interested in any
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

Mr. Xie, a controlling shareholder of the Company, holding
approximately 68.41% of the total issued share capital of the
Company as at 31 March 2021 through Zhongzhi Xinzhuo and
Kang Bang (HK), indirectly holds 100% equity interest in FR{&& 7
BEIEAMR AR (“Zhongzhi Capital”). Zhongzhi Capital’s key
business include private equity investments in the primary market,
private placement, mergers and acquisitions of overseas businesses
and funds which may compete or are likely to compete with the
business of the Group.

Mr. Xie also holds indirect interests in the following companies,
which are corporations licensed by the SFC to conduct Type 1
(dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities) and Type 9
(asset management) regulated activities: (1) 80% indirect interest
in Tang Wealth International Limited, which mainly provides
private banking services, including providing asset allocation and
investment consultancy services, including agency sales of public
funds and private equity funds, issue of private equity funds or
asset management etc. but is not engaged in traditional
investment services; and (2) 45.1% indirect interest in Hang Tang
International Capital Management Limited, which mainly provides
asset management and funds distribution services. Mr. Xie is also
the sole shareholder of ZhongTai Financing (Hong Kong) Limited,
which holds a Money Lenders Licence and conducts money
lending business.
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COMPETING BUSINESS (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, the controlling
shareholders of the Company or their respective close associates
(as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) had any direct or indirect
interest in a business which competes or is likely to compete with
the business of the Group as at 31 March 2021.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
Charitable Donations

During the year, charitable donations made by the Group
amounted to HKD10,000.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME, STOCK SHORT
NAMES AND WEBSITE ADDRESS

As announced on 20 April 2021, the name of the Company has
been changed from “ZZ Capital International Limited {8 & A&
BIBR AR AE" to “Zhongjin Technology Services Group
Company Limited R &RHERBEBE KRB AR AR with effect
from 25 March 2021. The stock short names of the Company for
trading in the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
have been changed from “ZZ CAP INTL"” to “ZJ TECH SERVICE”
in English and from “"FEEKREE" to "HEBHEERE" in
Chinese, with effect from 9:00 a.m. on 23 April 2021. The
website address of the Company has been changed from
“www.zzcapitalinternational.com” to “www.zhongjintechnology.com”
with effect from 23 April 2021 to reflect the change of company
name.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

Corporate Social Responsibility

Sustainable development and environmental protection are
embedded in our corporate culture. The Group has participated in
a wide range of charitable activities and donation, many of which
have been recognized by various organizations. During the Year,
we received a number of honours or acknowledgments of our
work as a responsible corporate citizen:
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT (continued)

Corporate Social Responsibility (Continued)

— A Good Employer Charter by the Hong Kong Labour
Department

— A Caring Company by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Service

— A Heart-to-Heart Company by the Hong Kong Federation of
Youth Groups

— A Good MPF Employer with “e-Contribution Award” & “MPF
Support Award” by Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Authority

— A "Wastesi$e Certificate” & “Energysi$e Certificate” under
Hong Kong Green Organization Certification

— A Happy Company by the Hong Kong Promoting Happiness
Index Foundation and Hong Kong Productivity Council

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the Year, the Group’s five largest customers accounted for
approximately 49.4% of the Group's revenue with the largest
customer constituted approximately 12.2% of the Group's
revenue. In addition, the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 23.0% of the Group's cost of services with the
largest supplier constituted approximately 11.5% of the Group’s
cost of services.

Based on information available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their close
associates, or any shareholders of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had interest in any of the Group’s
five largest customers and suppliers during the Year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on publicly available information and within the knowledge
of the Directors, as at the date of this report, there is sufficient
public float in the issued share capital of the Company pursuant
to the GEM Listing Rules.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the Group's bank loans and other borrowings as at 31
March 2021 and 31 March 2020 are set out in note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PROPERTIES

The Group did not own any property or property interests as at 31
March 2021.

INTEREST CAPITALISED

No interest was capitalised by the Group during the Year.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Particulars of the retirement schemes are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in notes 12 and 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the

Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 224 of
this annual report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during
the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principal corporate governance practice adopted
by the Company is set out on pages 69 to 87 of this annual
report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2021 have been audited by BDO Limited. BDO Limited was
appointed as the auditor of the Company on 1 December 2020 to
fill the causal vacancy arising from the resignation of Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, who was the auditor of the Company
for the three preceding financial years. A resolution for the re-
appointment of BDO Limited as the auditor of the Company is to
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

NIU Zhanbin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2021
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(A) CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(B)

©

The Company has applied the principles and complied with
all code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code contained in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing Rules
(the "CG Code"”) throughout the Year.

The Board regularly monitors and reviews the Group's
progress in respect of corporate governance practices to
ensure compliance with the code provisions of the CG Code.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors on terms no less
exacting than the required standard of dealings set out in
Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company
had made specific enquiries to all the Directors who
confirmed their compliance with the required standard of
dealings and the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors throughout the Year. No
incident of non-compliance was noted by the Company
during this Year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Board compositions

The Board is responsible for formulating the overall strategy
and overseeing the development of the Group. In so doing,
the Board receives monthly reports from the chief executive
officer of the Company, monitors the internal control
policies as well as risk management effectiveness, and
evaluates the financial performance of the Group with an
aim to enhancing shareholders’ value. The Board currently
comprises three executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors. The composition of the Board sets
out on page 35 of this annual report. Biographical details of
the Directors and the relationship amongst them, if any, are
set out on pages 23 to 27 of this annual report.

Five board meetings were held during the Year. The

attendance of the relevant Directors are set out on page 77
of this report.

69

(A) B¥EE

(B)

(9

BER

ARABIRBEARFE  —HEAKEFGEM
BRI SRR EE RS ([5FAI)
FRELHIEY R B M BT ST RIS -

EFg
HER -

FHEERBRTAEENCEE RS
VATEAR S SF <P B A <P R ST ©

EFETRFERS

AARERN—EFHESTETEFRIHN
TASTE ZTRBRRNEEEETER
GEM LR BI85 54816 2= 55 5.67 & FT 8L AY
R NSTIZE o (RN RIRIFTAE EIEH R
TERE FIAEFCHERANEEAARFE—
BETRGVTEEREBESETESR

SHTASTR  BADQRIFTM - RAFEER
WA T BT S ZERSTRIAENR

Exg
Exe4AM

EXe BRI EERREEEARENE
& HUBRET  EFEBARMARFT

BAaR®mE  ERNMEEBRNERE R
AR - URFHEAEEMBRIR - 54
RABREE BZLANA-UNTES

AR =B IFAITEREK - EF AN
N AFRFEIE - EFRWUL ZHE
BEWB)FBERNAFRFE2IAEF27
BHo

REERTRAREFETEEH -
FRENAREFETTE °

BEREENY



ZHONGJIN TECHNOLOGY SERVICES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED 4 RHE RS EB R BB R A 7
2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT £ R

Corporate Governance Report

SRERBE

(C) BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

Independent non-executive Directors

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2), and 5.05A of the
GEM Listing Rules, the Company has appointed three
independent non-executive Directors representing not less
than one-third of the Board with all of them having
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Company has,
through the Nomination Committee, reviewed the
independence of, and received the confirmation of
independence from each of Mr. Stephen MARKSCHEID, Mr.
ZHANG Weidong and Mr. ZENG Liang, and considers all of
them independent in accordance with the guidelines set out
in Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Delegation to Board committees and
management

The Board is ultimately accountable for the Group’s
activities, strategies and financial performance, which
includes formulating business development strategies,
directing and supervising the Group’s affairs, reviewing the
financial statements of the Company, approving quarterly
reports, interim reports, annual reports and announcements
of quarterly results, interim results and annual results,
considering dividend policy, reviewing the effectiveness of
the risk management and internal control systems and so
on.

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Audit Committee with written terms of reference set out
in accordance with the CG Code. More details of these
committees are set out in separate sections of this report.

The Board delegates necessary powers and authorities to the
executive Directors to facilitate the efficient day to day
management of the Group’s business. Investment decisions
were made by the executive Directors pursuant to the
procedures and limits adopted by the Group. Delegated
authorities in the form of monetary limits were set for the
executive Directors and management of the Group for
financial commitments and capital expenditures so that they
could apply their discretion and respond swiftly to
investment opportunities and business needs.
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(C) BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued) © EExg %)

Delegation to Board committees and
management (Continued)

The Board also delegates certain necessary powers and
authorities to the subsidiary’s board of directors to review
the corporate advisory services while the Board has an
oversight role.

In addition, the Board delegates to the Remuneration
Committee authorities to determine remuneration for
individual executive Directors and members of senior
management.

Corporate governance functions

The Company is committed to maintaining the highest
standards of corporate governance yet being pragmatic on
business decisions and management efficiency. The
independent non-executive Directors were members, and
represent the majority, of all the Board committees of the
Company, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Whilst the
Board was ultimately responsible for corporate governance
matters, it delegated much of these functions to the Audit
Committee which comprised only of independent non-
executive Directors and was assisted by BT Corporate
Governance Limited (the “Internal Auditor”) performing the
internal audit function.

During the Year, the Board, among other things, reviewed
the policies and practices on corporate governance,
reviewed and monitored the policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
reviewed the Group’s compliance manual; reviewed and
monitored the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management; and
reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)
Continuous Professional Development

Reading materials relevant to the Board’s duties and
responsibilities and/or the Group’s businesses are provided
to the Board from time to time to develop, refresh and
update their knowledge and skills and to keep them abreast
of the latest developments.

Each Directors has also provided to the Company a record
of the training he has received during the Year, which is set
out on page 77 of this annual report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

The roles of chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company are separated.

Mr. NIU Zhanbin is the chairman of the Company who is
responsible for overseeing the function of the Board. Mr.
JIANG Yulin is the chief executive officer of the Company
who is responsible to the Board for managing the business
of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The terms of appointment of the independent non-executive
Directors are for a period of three years. All of them are
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company pursuant to the
Articles of Association and the GEM Listing Rules.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established with written
terms of reference. It currently comprises three member, Mr.
NIU Zhanbin and two independent non-executive Directors
namely, Mr. ZENG Liang (Chairman of the Remuneration
Committee) and Mr. ZHANG Weidong. The primary duties
of the Remuneration Committee included, among other
things, (i) formulating, reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy
and structure for all Directors and members of senior
management; (ii) reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board's corporate goals and objectives; (iii) determining
the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors
and members of senior management; and (iv) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors. The Remuneration Committee held two
meetings during the Year.

During the Year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
Group's remuneration policy and structure, determined the
remuneration packages of the executive Directors and made
recommendation to the Board in relation to the adjustment
of the director fee of the independent non-executive
Directors, having regard to comparable companies and
other relevant factors.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established with written
terms of reference. It currently comprises three members,
Mr. NIU Zhanbin (Chairmen of the Nomination Committee)
and two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Stephen MARKSCHEID and Mr. ZHANG Weidong. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee covered,
among other things, (i) the reviewing of the structure, size
and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity of perspectives) of the Board; (ii) identifying
and nominating suitably qualified candidates for
directorship; and (iii) making recommendations to the Board
on the appointment or reappointment of Directors. The
Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year.
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(G) NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the Year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the
established policy and procedure for the nomination and
appointment of new Directors, reviewed the structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board, assessed the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors,
made recommendations to the Board on the reappointment
of retiring Directors at the annual general meeting in 2020,
and nominated the appointment of executive Directors.

According to the Nomination Policy adopted by the
Company, the Nomination Committee shall review the
structure, size, composition and diversity (including the
evaluation of skills, knowledge, professional experience,
cultural and educational background, gender and age of the
Board members and assessment on the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors) of the Board at least
annually. It is responsible for making recommendations on
any proposed changes to the Board to complement the
Company’s corporate strategy and succession planning for
the Directors from time to time and selecting suitable and
qualified individuals to become Board members. In
evaluating and selecting candidate(s) for directorship, the
Nomination Committee considers various factors including
but not limited to: the character and integrity; skills and
expertise; professional and educational background;
potential time commitment for the board and/or committee
responsibilities; and the elements of our Board Diversity
Policy as stated below etc. The Nomination Committee
makes recommendation to the Board to appoint the
appropriate person among the candidates nominated for
directorship. The Board appoints suitable candidate(s) in
accordance with the Articles of the Association and the
GEM Listing Rules.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)
Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefit of
having a diverse board, and sees increasing diversity at
board level as an essential element in maintaining a
competitive advantage and achieving long-term sustainable
growth for the Group. A balanced and diversified Board
brings a broad range of views to bear upon discussions and
critical decision-making, and balances against “group
thinking”. Our Board Diversity Policy is multi-faceted
stressing business experience, skill-sets, knowledge and
professional expertise in addition to gender, ethnicity and
age. The said elements have substantially been included in
the current Board composition.

Having reviewed the Board composition, the Nomination
Committee recognises the importance and benefits of the
gender diversity at the Board level and shall continue to take
initiatives to identify at least one female candidate to
enhance the gender diversity among the Board members.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of
reference. It currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors namely, Mr. Stephen MARKSCHEID
(Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. ZHANG Weidong
and Mr. ZENG Liang in compliance with Rules 5.28 and 5.29
of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee include, among other things, (i) reviewing and
supervising the financial reporting process; (ii) reviewing
internal control as well as risk management systems of the
Group; (iii) reviewing the consolidated financial statements
and the quarterly, interim and annual reports of the Group;
and (iv) reviewing the terms of engagement and scope of
audit work of the internal auditor and external auditor and
ensure their coordination. The Audit Committee held four
meetings during the Year.
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(H) AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

During the Year, the Audit Committee was engaged in,
among other duties, receiving and reviewing reports from
the Internal Auditor, reviewing quarterly, interim and annual
results of the Group and providing advice and comments
thereon to the Board. The Audit Committee also reviewed
the Group’s internal control and risk management systems
and made recommendations to the Board for improvements.
The Audit Committee considered and approved the terms of
engagement and remuneration of the external auditor, and
discussed with them the nature and scope of their audits
before the audits commenced. In discharging its duties, the
Audit Committee met with the Group’s management,
Internal Auditor and external auditor several times during
the Year.

At the meeting held in June 2021, among other things, the

Audit Committee has reviewed this annual report and
recommended it for the Board's approval.
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(I) ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS AND () HEEEREI
TRAINING
During the Year, the attendance records of the Directors at RAFE ZEFLFEEFg2E  EXE
Board Meeting, Audit Committee Meeting, Remuneration Segx FiNLEees RELEge
Committee Meeting, Nomination Committee Meeting, the FEN20QQ0FEMERBAFAE  RERFRAZ
2020 Annual General Meeting, Extraordinary General LA&iEEJIIZaEﬁ?ZZDT :

Meeting and their training records are as follows:

Number of meetings attended/held

b/ EhEERY
2020
Audit Remuneration  Nomination Annual  Extraordinary
Board  Committee ~ Committee  Committee General General
Name of Directors during the Year Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Training
W0F
Exe BNZEE  HMZER RAZEE RREE RR%H
AEREBA £3 8% £3 #3 Xt Kt 4
Executive Directors: HEE.
Mr. NIU Zhanbin FeuEEE 55 - 0 1 " n /
M. JANG Yulin BRIt 55 - - - " n v
Mr. WU Hui RBLE 55 - - - 1N 22 /
Non-executive Director: FHITEE
Mr. FU Chi King Johnson HHREE
(Resiqnation effective on 20 April 2020) (120204 A 29 BE(T) 00 - - - 00 00 -
Independent non-executive Directors: ~ BU#3/7EE .
Mr. Stephen MARKSCHEID Stephen MARKSCHEID 725 55 44 - 7 [l 11 /
Mr. ZHANG Weidong FEREE 565 44 0 i /1 0 /
Mr. ZHANG Longgen ReERrs
(Resignation effective on 30 April 2021) (202184 A30BEHE) 565 44 0 - 1”1 0 /

77



ZHONGJIN TECHNOLOGY SERVICES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED & RHY RIS EB R BB R A 7
2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT R

Corporate Governance Report

SRERBE

(J) RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROL

The Group places high importance on internal control which
is the foundation of the Group’s reputation and
maintenance of clients’ confidence. The Board is responsible
for supervising a sound and effective internal control system
in order to safeguard the interests of the shareholders of the
Company and the assets of the Group against improper use
or disposition, ensuring maintenance of proper books and
records for the provision of reliable financial information,
and ensuring compliance with relevant rules and regulations.
The Board has delegated responsibility to its Audit
Committee to review the Group’s risk management and
internal control matters. The risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate risks of failure in operational systems so that the
Group’s objectives can be achieved, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee was assisted by the Internal Auditor,
to assess and review if a sound and effective risk
management and internal control system are in place at
least once a year. The Internal Auditor reported to and met
with the Audit Committee to review internal audit findings
on enterprise risk and internal control matters.

The Group has made a very substantial acquisition during
the financial year and it brings a new environment to the
risk management and internal control of the Group.

Since the first quarter of 2020, the world has been facing a
critical situation caused by the COVID-19 virus, giving a
significant challenge to all stakeholders in the globe. The
Group has taken a series of appropriate arrangements to
handle the impact throughout this extraordinary period.
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(J) RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

Risk management system

Based on the Group’s business and operations, Internal
Auditor, using risk-based approach, has identified and
carried out review on four areas covering financial,
operational, strategies and compliance.

The approach used by the Internal Auditor comprises the
following phases:

o Obtaining an understanding of the existing
procedures, systems and controls established by the
Group through enquiries and discussion with
management and appropriate personnel;

o Identifying and classifying the key risks faced by the
Group;

o Assessing the likelihood and impact of each risk factor;

o Carrying out review and assessment on the those
critical aspects of the key procedures, systems and
controls of the Group to address the risk factors;

o Evaluating the residual risks with the relevant control
measures taken into account; and

. Making recommendations, based on Internal Auditor’s
observations, documentation and review of the
procedures, systems and controls that could improve
the effectiveness and/or efficiency of the procedures,
systems and controls to mitigate the risks to which the
Group is subjected.
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(J) RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROL (continued)
Risk management system (Continued)

Based on the report done by the Internal Auditor, apart
from the risk in relation to the COVID-19 situation, the
Group has been reminded that the risk in maintaining,
obtaining and renewal of certain qualification certificates,
licenses and intellectual property rights should be carefully
managed since it could materially and adversely affect the
Group’s business, financial condition, results of operations
and prospects.

Moreover, any leakage of personal data or client information
could bring a significant risk and impact to the Group’s
business and reputation, and therefore the Group has
implemented strict internal control procedures to safeguard
the security and confidentiality of its databases.

The analysis and opinions from in-depth industry knowledge

and relevant-experienced professional third parties should
be taken into considerations.
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(J) RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL

CONTROL (Continued)
Internal control system

The Group has set up an effective internal control
mechanism which are sufficient to enable the Directors to
make a proper assessment of the financial position and
prospect of the Group.

Internal Auditor has conducted a review of the Group’s
internal control system by conducting interviews,
walkthroughs and tests on the effectiveness of the
procedures, systems and controls established by the Group
in its operating cycles, in particular, revenue and receipt
cycle, treasury management cycle and compliance
management cycle.

With respect to the internal control review done by the
Internal Auditor, no major issues on control failure is noted
during the Year.

The Board has conducted a review and is of the view that
both risk management and internal control systems are
effective and adequate for the Group to achieve its
objectives during the Year. The Board will continue to assess
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems taking into consideration of the results of
reviews and audits performed by the Internal Auditor,
external auditor and Audit Committee and making sure that
all significant legal and regulatory requirements are adhered
to.

Dissemination of inside information

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information and enable a consistent practice of timely,
accurate and complete disclosure of material information of
the Group, the Group has adopted policies and procedures
which sets out guidelines and procedures as well as
measures to handle and disseminate inside information as
well as to establish minimum standards for handling of
material non-public information to protect client-sensitive
data and avoid violating any applicable laws or internal
policies. With these procedures and measures in place, the
Group is able to control and properly discharge its reporting
obligation, especially in relation to inside information
disclosure obligations, in a timely and effective manner and
in accordance with the requirements under applicable laws.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL (continued)

COVID-19 Virus and Business Continuity Plan

COVID-19 virus presents a unique risk and impact to the
globe since the beginning of this year, it creates uncertainty
and anxiety to the global economy and produces critical
damages to some industries. The Group realised that a
traditional business continuity plan such as relocating staff
to a secondary site may be insufficient to mitigate the risk.

The Group has developed a communication plan with staffs
to ensure the coordination and cooperation can be
maintained at a satisfactory level during this extraordinary
period.

Working-from-home practice has been widely adopted in
most of the businesses, the Group has also implemented
such practice to protect our employees.

Besides purchasing epidemic prevention products for our
employees throughout the period, the Company has also
provided various of employees’ benefits and practices to
provide a suitable protection to the employees.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Year, the remuneration in respect of audit and
non-audit services provided by the Company’s external
auditor were approximately HK$1.80 million (approximately
RMB1.60 million) and HK$0.07 million (approximately
RMBO0.06 million) respectively. The non-audit services was
related to the professional fees for tax compliance services.

During the Year, the remuneration in respect of non-audit
services provided by the Company’s former external auditor
were approximately HK$2.0 million (approximately RMB1.78
million). The non-audit services were related to the
professional fees for reporting accountant services HK$1.66
million (approximately RMB1.48 million) and tax compliance
services HK$0.34 million (approximately RMB0.30 million).
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR'S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements which
give a true and fair view in accordance with the Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. The statement of the Company’s auditor about
its reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial
statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report”
on pages 88 to 96 of this annual report.

(M) COMPANY SECRETARY

(N)

Ms. CHAN Sau Mui Juanna, the company secretary of the
Company, is a fellow member of both the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and the Hong
Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. During the Year, she
undertook no less than fifteen hours of relevant professional
training to update her knowledge and skills.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted the Dividend Policy on
21 June 2019 that aims to set out the principles and
guidelines of the Company in relation to the declaration,
recommendation and payment of dividends to its
shareholders.

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company does not have any
predetermined dividend payout ratio. Distribution of
dividends should be in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole. When considering dividend
declaration or recommendation, the Board shall take into
account the following factors: —
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DIVIDEND POLICY (Continued)

(M

business condition and strategy of the Group;
(2)  capital requirement for the Group’s existing/potential
project or investment;

(3) earnings, financial and cash flow position and
distributable reserves of the Company and the Group;
and

(4)  other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends is subject to the
provisions of the Articles of Association and any other
applicable laws, rules and regulations.

The Company’s dividend distribution record in the past may
not be used as a reference or basis to determine the level of
dividends that may be declared or paid by the Company in
future.

The Board has the sole discretion to recommend or not to
recommend final dividends to the shareholders for approval;
and to declare or not to declare any other dividends,
including but not limited to interim and/or special dividends,
after taking into consideration the factors as stated in (1) to
(4) above.

The Dividend Policy may be updated, amended, modified
and/or cancelled from time to time as the Board may think
fit and necessary.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Saved as disclosed in “Change of Company Name, Stock
Short Names and Website Address” in the Directors’ Report
on page 65, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the Year.

84

(N)

(0)

REBEK &)
(1) ANEBEOEBRD RS

AEEREEEBEERRENER

= -
7 K

)

ARARAEENEN  BELRE
MEMRAR A DIk - K&

®3)

4) EFSRREENHEMERE -
Bk MRS ZRNERAR MR H A
BRER - RAIER -

AR RBAEMRE SRR AT A
ARBETEERREN 2 REKTE 222
o -

EFEERERLAMEGEARER &
RRBEZAXTEZZRRBRRRE RS
RERKIASIREMEMGES - SRFETR
R BN, SRR -

EZERREENURE - I TREH &
AT BB R BUB R SR -

BERXHF
BERECHEEFEREN[ERNATE

- R BB RBE | FREE I - RAE
B ARSI -



ZHONGJIN TECHNOLOGY SERVICES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED &Rt RIS E B R DB R A 7
2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT 5

? !
Corporate Governance Report
EERRE
(P) SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (P) BRERFEF|
Convening of extraordinary general meeting BHRREIAERIEHER

and putting forward proposals

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, any two or more
registered members of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
or any one Shareholder which is a recognised clearing house
(or its nominee(s)) holding not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company, shall have the
right, by written requisitions, to put forward proposals and
require an extraordinary general meeting (the “"EGM") to be
convened. Subject to applicable legislations and regulations,
the procedures for Shareholders to convene and put forward
proposals at an EGM are as follows:

1. The written requisitions shall be deposited at the
principal office of the Company in Hong Kong situated
at 11/F, 8 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong (for the
attention of the Company Secretary), specifying the
objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionists.

2. The Company will then verify the request with the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong and
upon its confirmation that the request is proper and in
order, the Company Secretary will then ask the Board
to convene an EGM by serving sufficient notice in
accordance with the regulatory requirements and the
Articles of Association to all the Shareholders. If the
request has been verified as not in order, the
Shareholders concerned will be advised of the
outcome and an EGM will not be convened as
requested.

85

RIBFZERMA - ERIMBIIA LR RFER
BRER(TRR ) sk 0 — R (B —FERR
EEM(RERBA)) BEARBTDRA+
DZ—HRBRATHBEEMRARRRRA
HRE  AREUNEHERERHBZEREXK
ARBRERERIAE ((RREFIARE]) - XR
RERRERRRD - R RBRERRIK
gMRBRRERASREBZNIZFEHIIN
T

1. EBEERAXREARFANEEIEN
B HMURBBERKET 8K
B REERARMER  XAESISA
SREANNHREEERALES -

2. ARBEAEFBERMNBPERLDR
ZEERESR URNESENBEFE
TORERERERLSRERTARE
Fig RAWESEXREFTSARR
REpARE  URBEEEREER
ARAMARREL TR BN - RZ -
EEBERERERTNARF A
ARG EMNSER - MARRHX
R T ERERMAR -



ZHONGJIN TECHNOLOGY SERVICES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED 4 RHE RS EB R BB R A 7
2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT £ R

Corporate Governance Report

SRERBE

(P) SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (continued)

Convening of extraordinary general meeting
and putting forward proposals (Continued)

3. If within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition, the Board fails to proceed to convene the
meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the
requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them
representing more than one-half of the total voting
rights of all of them, may convene the general
meeting but any meeting so convened shall not be
held after the expiration of three months from the
date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of
the failure of the Board to convene the meeting shall
be reimbursed to them by the Company.

Proposing a person for election as a Director

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, no person shall,
unless recommended by the Board, be eligible for election
to the office of Director at any general meeting unless
during the period, which shall be at least seven days,
commencing no earlier than the day after the despatch of
the notice of the meeting appointed for such election and
ending no later than seven days prior to the date of such
meeting, there has been given to the Company Secretary
notice in writing by a Shareholder (not being the person to
be proposed), entitled to attend and vote at the meeting for
which such notice is given, of his/her intention to propose
such person for election and also notice in writing signed by
the person to be proposed of his/her willingness to be
elected.

The written notice must state the full name of the person to
be proposed for election as a Director, as well as the
person’s biographical details as required by Rule 17.50(2) of
the GEM Listing Rules. Upon receipt of the notice, the
Company will assess whether or not it is necessary to
adjourn the meeting of the election to give Shareholders at
least 10 business days to consider the proposed
appointment.
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(Q) INVESTOR RELATIONS (Q) ’REEZEMZ

As announced on 20 April 2021, the website of the Company
has been changed from “www.zzcapitalinternational.com”
to “www.zhongjintechnology.com” with effect from 23 April
2021 to reflect the change of the Company name.

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of
transparency and employs a policy of open and timely
disclosure of relevant information to its Shareholders. The
Board strives to encourage and maintain regular
communication with Shareholders through various means.
The Company encourages all Shareholders to attend general
meetings, which provide opportunities for direct dialogue
between the Board and the Shareholders, and for
Shareholders to stay informed of the Group’s strategy and
goals.

At the annual general meeting held 11 August 2020, the
Chairman of the Board, the Chief Executive Officer, the
chairman of audit, remuneration and nomination
committees and representatives from the ex-auditor of the
Company, Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, were present
to attend to possible questions from Shareholders.

The Company updates its Shareholders on its latest business
developments and financial performance through its notices,
announcements and circulars, as well as quarterly, interim
and annual reports. The corporate website maintained by
the Company at www.zhongjintechnology.com provides an
effective communication platform to the public and the
Shareholders. Shareholders and investors may at any time
send their enquiries to the Board by addressing them to the
Company Secretary by post at 11/F, 8 Queen’s Road Central,
Hong Kong or by email at infohk@zhongjintechnology.com.
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|IBDO

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
54 1 +852 2218 8288 HEARATHERI15
{8H : +852 2815 2239 JKZ 2518

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ZHONGIJIN TECHNOLOGY SERVICES GROUP COMPANY
LIMITED (FORMERLY KNOWN AS ZZ CAPITAL
INTERNATIONAL LIMITED)

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Zhongjin
Technology Services Group Company Limited (formerly known as
ZZ Capital International Limited) (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on
pages 97 to 223, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Purchase price allocation for business
combinations

Refer to note 17 (intangible assets), note 18 (goodwill) and note
36 (business combinations) to the consolidated financial
statements.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group had business
combinations. Management has identified the assets and liabilities
of the acquired companies at their acquisition date, based on
which, management performed a purchase price allocation for the
acquisition.

Significant judgements and estimates were involved in the fair
value assessment of identifiable assets and liabilities. These
significant judgements and estimates include the adoption of
appropriate valuation methodologies and the use of key
assumptions in the valuation.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Purchase price allocation for business
combinations (Continued)

We consider this area a key audit matter given the magnitude of
the purchase price allocation for the business combinations, and
the significant judgements and estimates involved in the fair value
assessment of the identifiable assets and liabilities and the
recognition of goodwill arising from the business combinations.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to purchase price allocation for business
combinations included:

o We obtained an understanding of management’s internal
control and assessment process of purchase price allocation
for business combinations and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors such as complexity, subjectivity, changes and
susceptibility to management bias or fraud,;

o We assessed the competency, capability and objectivity of
the external valuer engaged by management;

o We obtained the valuation reports in relation to the
purchase price allocation for the acquisitions, and engaged
our in-house valuation experts to assess the appropriateness
of the valuation methodologies adopted by management.
We challenged and assessed the reasonableness of the key
assumptions used in the valuation with the involvement of
our in-house valuation experts;

o We checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculations

of the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities and
goodwill.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Impairment assessment of goodwill

Refer to note 18 (goodwiill) to the consolidated
financial statement

As disclosed in note 6 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had gross carrying amount of goodwill
amounted to approximately RMB581,824,000 as at 31 March
2021, which arose from the acquisition of KingNine Holdings
Limited (“KingNine”) and its subsidiaries (the “KingNine Group”)
in 2020.

Based on the management assessment, no impairment loss on
goodwill was recognised for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Management engaged an independent valuer to assist in carrying
out the goodwill impairment assessment. For the purpose of
assessing impairment, management considered that KingNine
Group is a cash-generating-unit (the “KingNine CGU") and the
goodwill is allocated to the KingNine CGU. The recoverable
amount of the KingNine CGU was determined based on value-in-
use method. The value-in-use calculation requires the Group to
forecast the future cash flows expected to arise from the KingNine
CGU based on the financial budgets approved by management.
Significant judgements and estimates were involved in the
goodwill impairment assessment. These significant judgements
and estimates include the adoption of appropriate method to
perform goodwill impairment assessment and the use of key
assumptions in the value-in-use calculation, which primarily
include revenue growth rate, long-term growth rate and pre-tax
discount rate.

We consider this area to be a key audit matter due to the
significance of the carrying amount of goodwill and the significant
judgements and estimates involved in the goodwill impairment
assessment.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)
Impairment assessment of goodwill (Continued)
Our response:

Our procedures in relation to impairment assessment of goodwill
included:

o We assessed the appropriateness of management’s
identification of cash-generated-units and allocation of
goodwill based on Group’s accounting policy and our
understanding of the Group’s business;

o We assessed the competency, capability and objectivity of
the external valuer engaged by management;

o We obtained management’s assessment on goodwill
impairment and engaged our in-house valuation experts to
assess the appropriateness of the method adopted by
management to perform goodwill impairment assessment
and the discount rate used by management. We challenged
and assessed the reasonableness of the key assumptions
used in the value-in-use calculation with the involvement of
our in-house valuation experts;

o We evaluated the reasonableness of the sensitivity analysis
performed by management on the key assumptions to
understand the impact of reasonable changes in
assumptions on the recoverable amount; and

o We checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculations
of the goodwill impairment assessment.

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2020, were audited by another auditor who
expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on 19 June
2020.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT BB RSB HRRAIENS
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL Fo)

STATEMENTS (Continued)

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used e
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the e
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of e
the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the e
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

CHOI Kit Ying
Practising Certificate Number P07387

Hong Kong
22 June 2021
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 /£ 20213 A31 HILFE

202145 2020 %
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
et AR¥T T AREFIT
(Restated)
(&E5)
Revenue WA
Value-added telecommunication and BEE S MAEE R
related services income WA 7 264,368 —
Corporate advisory income ERERUA 7 355 13,690
Loan interest income =E/CISNION 7 1,440 1,406
Total revenue PN N 266,163 15,096
Cost of services BRAS A AR (181,207) =
Gross profit ESVY| 84,956 15,096
Other income and losses, net HaWA K EEFRE 8 35,198 43,764
Marketing expenses R (2,624) -
Research and development expenses R Y (7,196) -
Administrative expenses ITHHX (65,826) (57,094)
Provision of expected credit loss on JFEE L B R e L Ath FE U 5B
accounts and other receivables, net TR EEEEE TR (313) =
Finance costs EUR I RN 9 (6,413) (183)
Profit before tax B AR A1 Y ) 10 37,782 1,583
Income tax expense Frisfif X 11 (10,906) (170)
Profit for the year FEREF 26,876 1,413
Profit for the year attributable to R AL ERFEREF
Owners of the Company ViN/NCIEZZ =N 26,153 1,413
Non-controlling interests FEFERR HE 7 723 =
26,876 1,413
Earnings per share attributable to ERAREEAEREESR
owners of the Company EF
— Basic (RMB cents) — EAR(AREW) 15 0.68 0.04
— Diluted (RMB cents) — B (ARKBW) 15 0.68 0.04
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 /£ 20213 A31 HILFE

20215 20204
Notes RMB'000 RMB’000
Hta AR¥FT ARKFT
(Restated)
(F& &%)
Profit for the year F R F 26,876 1,413
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hi2mE (BR) W&
ltems that may be subsequently HEesHmoEs
reclassified to profit or loss: BmMIEE -
Exchange differences arising on BEBINETSE SR
translation of foreign operations ME =50 (37.719) 42,319
Items that will not be reclassified to reENHEE
profit or loss: BEMIEE
Fair value loss on equity instrument WA EFAEAM
at fair value through other W = B
comprehensive income T AR FEEE 20 (3.235) -
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FREME (EE) IWAHBE
for the year (14,078) 43,732
Total comprehensive (loss)/income UTATEGREZE
attributable to (BB WA BE
Owners of the Company RARHEA A (14,801) 43,732
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR M 2 723 =
(14,078) 43,732
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As at 31 March 2021 72202143 A 31 H
At At At
31 March 31 March 1 April
2021 2020 2019
MA2021F 7R20205F 20194
3H31H 3A31H 4H1H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Wi AR¥EFr AREFT AREFIT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&E75) (1eE7)
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Property and equipment  EINE L 16 28,068 202 389
Intangible assets B EE 17 184,693 - -
Goodwill GES 18 581,824 = =
Right-of-use assets FREEE 19 28,119 6,330 341
Deferred tax assets FIEFRIEE B 34 8,720 = =
Equity instrument at fair value BATETAEMEE
through other comprehensive WEHRERT A
income 20 1,328 - -
Loan receivables FEWE =K 21 12,690 15,686 13,726
Deposits i 22 4 2,048 2,008
Total non-current assets FRBEERLE 845,446 24,266 16,464
Current assets REEE
Inventories =8 26 2,080 - -
Convertible loan receivable at fair BAFEABZE([EA
value through profit or loss FEFT ABR ] BB
("FVTPL") AT AR E K - = 144,097
Accounts receivable JE ULBR TR 23 311,326 3,210 45
Prepayments, deposits and other TR - Re REAM
receivables FE U I8 24 48,393 202,423 34,803
Financial assets at FVTPL BATEE AEER
EREE 25 5,061 3,275 5,857
Tax receivable FEW I8 425 2,373 2,228
Cash held on behalf of clients REFEFEE RS 27 - 3 3
Bank balances and cash RITEHR AR 28 202,710 433,142 409,724
Total current assets REEEHALE 569,995 644,426 596,757
Current liabilities RBEE
Accounts payable FERTERER 29 10,564 3 3
Other payables and accruals HitEN BN ETER 30 38,689 10,446 4,461
Contract liabilities AHaE 317 1,406 = =
Borrowings BE 32 29,000 - -
Tax payables FEIBIR 7,479 3,274 3,859
Consideration payables FERHRE 36 70,000 = =
Lease liabilities HEAE 33 11,247 3,592 =
Total current liabilities RBEEARE 168,385 17,315 8,323
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As at 31 March 2021 72202143 A 31 H
At At At
31 March 31 March 1 April
2021 2020 2019
MA2021F 020205 20194
3H31H 3H31H 4H1H
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Wi AR¥EFr AREFT AREFIT
(Restated) (Restated)
(& E5) (F&&E75))
Net current assets REEEZE 401,610 627,111 588,434
Total assets less current liabilities #EERASEME 1,247,056 651,377 604,898
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Consideration payables FERRIE 36 190,837 = =
Deferred tax liabilities FIEFIEEE 34 23,818 = =
Lease liabilities HEAE 33 16,770 2,747 =
Total non-current liabilities FREEELE 231,425 2,747 =
Net assets EEFE 1,015,631 648,630 604,898
Capital and reserves BEARR#E
Share capital i@ 35 35,395 29,848 29,848
Reserves e 964,509 618,782 575,050
Equity attributable to owners RATIHEE AEEER
of the Company 999,904 648,630 604,898
Non-controlling interests JEIARfE RS 15,727 - -
Total equity EREE 1,015,631 648,630 604,898
On behalf of the directors REE=S
NIU Zhanbin WU Hui
4 538 RyE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EE S
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 /£ 20213 A31 HILFE

Retained
profits/ Non-
Share Share Contributed ~Statutory Revaluation Translation (Accumulated controlling
capital  premium  surplus  reserve  reserve  reserve losses)  Sub-total interests Total
(note (i)  (note(ii)) (note(iii) (note(iv)) (note(v))
RERR/

Bx  RieR AAR%  EERE  EHBE  ENBR (RHER) I it
(W20) () (W) WEw) K20

RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBO00  AMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOOD  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RVBOOD  RMB000

AEGRTL ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETL ARETL ARETT ARETL ARKTE ARETE

At 1 April 2019 (Restated) R2019%4 510 (BEF) 29,848 584,350 7944 - - 23877 (41,121) 604,898 - 60489
Profitfor the year ERET = = - - - - 1413 1413 - 1413
Other comprehensive income for the year £ RE 2 EE - - - - - B39 - 4319 - 8319
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FR2ENHAE - - - - - 42319 1413 53732 - 43,732

At31March2020and 1 April 2020  R2020%3F318%

(Restated) 202054510 (8E75) 29848 584350 7,944 - - 66,196 (39,708) 648,630 - 648,630
Profit for the year ERER - - - - - - %18 2619 m 26,876
Other comprehensive loss for the year FREM2EER - - - - (3235) (31,119 - (40,954) - (40,954)

Total comprehensive loss for the year  ER2AFELH - - - (3235) (1719 26153 (14,801 m (14078)

Transfer to statutory reserve ERELERE - - - 7,740 - - (1140 - - -
Issue of new shares LR 5547 360,528 - - - - - 366075 - 366,075
Capital contributions from non- FERERTE

controlling interests - - - - - - - - 1,200 1,200
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEKEAR - - - - - - - - 13,804 13,804
At 31 March 2021 R2021%3R318 35395 944,878 7944 7,740 (3,235) 284717 (21,295 999,904 15721 1,015,631
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The Group's share premium represents the proceeds received from share
issuance, net of any directly attributable transaction costs credited to
share capital and/or share premium.

The Group's contributed surplus represents the excess of the nominal
value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
reorganisation prior to the listing, over the nominal value of the
Company'’s shares issued in exchange thereafter.

Statutory reserve represents the amounts set aside from the retained
profits by certain subsidiaries incorporated in People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC") and is not distributable as dividend. In accordance with the
relevant regulations and their articles of association, the Company’s
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC are required to allocate at least 10%
of their after-tax profit according to the PRC accounting standards and
regulations to legal reserves until such reserves have reached 50% of
registered capital. These reserves can only be used for specific purposes
and are not distributable or transferable to loans, advances, cash
dividends.

Change in fair value of equity instrument in note 20 is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated within the revaluation reserve
within equity. The Group will transfer amount from revaluation reserve to
retained profit when the relevant equity instrument is derecognised.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Renminbi) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items
are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEHERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 /£ 20213 A31 HILFE

20215 20204
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000
HfaE AR¥FT AREFIT
(Restated)
(F&&E75)
Cash flows from operating activities K& EEFEBRERE
Profit before tax B 5t A g A 37,782 1,583
Adjustments for: AT EIBIEL FHEE -
Dividend income g EWA 8 (63) (113)
Interest income A EHA 8 (7.340) (12,590)
Finance costs BT 7SR AR 9 6,413 183
Depreciation of property and MEREHEITE

equipment 16 8,534 258

Loss on disposal of property and L EME N REEE
equipment 16 217 -
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEITE 19 10,198 3,507
Amortisation of intangible assets AL B 17 9,045 -
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries R[N - 2,766

Fair value (gain)/loss on investments BAFEGABZD

at fair value through profit or loss, B NFE ()

net Vi 8 (2,186) 2,863

Fair value gain on convertible loan AT EFAB=H
receivable at fair value through FEU T IR IR E SR
profit or loss, net N ENRFRE = (51,032)
Provision of expected credit loss on R MR iR B EL At e s
accounts and other receivables, net FUETEHEEEE
BT 313 —
Operating cash flows before working EEESEBATHLE
capital changes REmE 62,913 (52,575)
Increase in accounts receivable JFE U B FR AN (41,014) (3,165)
Decrease in prepayments, deposits and TR IR -~ e REAM
other receivables FEWR IR A 445,664 25,487
Decrease/(increase) in loan receivables FEW E RO A, (38 0) 2,995 (943)
Increase in inventories FEIE N (74) =
Decrease in cash held on behalf of clients K& FixHE 2R &R 3 -
Decrease in accounts payable JE A< BR SRk > (1,688) -
(Decrease)/increase in other payables HAtbfE FRIE O 4), /38 hn (248,523) 5,901
Increase in contract liabilities BHEEE N 463 =
Cash generated from/(used in) operations 4842515,/ (AT R4 220,739 (25,295)
Income tax paid BEfETEH (20,621) (901)
Net cash from/(used in) operating RESEERE (T A)
activities e FHE 200,118 (26,196)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
= ==
. \éIﬁﬁlﬁE%
For the year ended 31 March 2021 /£ 20213 A31 HILFE
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HfaE AR¥FT ARETT
Cash flows from investing activities  REEEFEHESRE
Purchase of property and equipment BEWMENEE 16 (11,791) (53)
Development costs paid BERFREKAR (7,791) =
Interest received =& IES) 8 7,340 12,590
Dividend income received B U AR B A 8 63 113
Repayment of convertible loan receivable  {&&31R A A ABHEH
at fair value through profit or loss JEU AT AR B R - 7,323
Withdrawal of restricted bank deposits IREUZ PR HIER1TF 3N = 161
Acquisition of subsidiaries WS E A A 36 (344,229) -
Net cash (used in)/from investing REEZE(FFA), s
activities BEFHE (356,408) 20,134
Cash flows from financing activities & EERERERE 38
Interest paid BAFE (914) -
Repayment of borrowings EEEE (26,000) =
Repayment of interest portion of lease BEEEAENSIS
liabilities (811) (183)
Repayment of principal portion of lease BEHERELRESH Y
liabilities (9,807) (3,418)
Capital contribution from non-controlling  3FiE &t z5F &
interest 1,200 -
Net cash used in financing activities REEEFARE T (36,332) (3,601)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents & MIER& S EYRE D ERE (192,622) (9,663)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FEPHEESRIRSEEY
of the year 428,290 405,013
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ JNE[E R8RS RIS
on cash and cash equivalents, net LB EFE (37.459) 32,940
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRRERIFAEEY
of the year 198,209 428,290
Analysis of balances of cash and cash BE&RREZEEYWELRDT
equivalents
Bank balances and cash RITHEB AR S 28 121,383 191,831
Time deposits TEHATF 28 76,826 236,459
Bank balances and cash as stated in the AR ERERIIE
consolidated statement of cash flow RITHEBRNIRE 28 198,209 428,290
Restricted bank balances SR BRI TAE R 28 4,501 4,852
Bank balances and cash as stated in the 4R & BAFA R F P AEL
consolidated statement of financial WITHSB KRS
position 28 202,710 433,142
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

GENERAL

Zhongjin Technology Services Group Company Limited
(formerly known as “ZZ Capital International Limited”) (the
“Company”) was incorporated in Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law, Cap 22 (Law 3 of 1961 as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The registered address
and principal place of business of the Company is P.O. Box
309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman
Islands and 11/F, 8 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong
respectively. The shares of the Company are listed on GEM
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”).

As at 31 March 2021, the directors of the Company
("Directors”) considered that the Company’s immediate
holding company is Zhong Zhi Xin Zhuo Capital Company
Limited and the Company’s ultimate holding company is
Zhong Zhi Ze Yun Capital Company Limited. The Company’s
ultimate controlling party is Mr. Xie Zhikun.

The principal activity of the Company is investments holding.
Its subsidiaries (together with the Company collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in
investment holding, provision of corporate advisory services,
investment advisory and asset management services,
proprietary investments and money lending. After the
completion of the acquisition of KingNine Holdings Limited
("KingNine”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “KingNine
Group”) on 15 October 2020 (the “Acquisition”), which
constituted a very substantial acquisition and connected
transaction of the Company under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”), the Group's principal activities also
include the provision of the following services in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC"):

(@)  Back-office services (primarily provision of customer
service solutions, and setting up of contract service
systems and centre);

(b)  Comprehensive marketing services; and

(c) Data centre services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in

Renminbi (“RMB"), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company (note 4).

105

—REH

RERRREEERNER A E (B[
BEERERARLAR ) ([ARAF]) BRI
SREENE22ERRE(1961 FIEHIE 3
- KEHRIER]) EFRSAHSEMAIZE
EHRERATF o NARIFMP =L K&
FELENH 25 B AP.O. Box 309 * Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104 - Cayman
Islands & BEEZRAREFR 8 111 - XA A
BRI REBBAERZAARATE ([BZAT])
GEM L7 »

R2021F3A318  AABAESR(EE])
RBARE K HEZER QA AZhong Zhi
Xin Zhuo Capital Company Limited 5 7K A &)
BB 4RI f% A B & Zhong Zhi Ze Yun Capital
Company Limited ° AN A Al & 442 18 7 A #R
HERSAE o

RRARMEEXBRIREER - HM B QA
GERARTSE I AEE]D TEZRERE
2R IR EERRTY - REBEBIARE
EEERE BEEEAeRERBE -H
KingNine Holdings Limited ([KingNine |) &z
KT/~ a) (578 [ KingNine & [ ]) #9458 (T4
BEIE] > ZWIEEIRRIRE R FT GEM & 55
LR BI(TGEM E R B 1) B AR A Rl &Y
FEEAUBEEREERH) N 2020510
A1SETH®E  AEEFEXBKTEET
R EE AR HAE ([ E]) IREAT R

(@) ®eRF(ZERETPRBBATE
KSR AR AR TG B A )

() ZE=mEEHES: &

@ BEPLURSE -

HEMBRRAARB(TARED 25 M
ARETRRARRRININGEER (Hat4) -



ZHONGJIN TECHNOLOGY SERVICES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED 4 RHE RS EB R BB R A 7
2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT £ R

—

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

MBmEEA(FEY
A1)

(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs () BERFIREZEIEBHER

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RMEB
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") FE R 5 A

— effective 1 April 2020

Amendments to Definition of a Business
HKFRS 3

Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 Reform
and HKAS 39

Amendments to Definition of Material

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

Amendments to Covid-19 Related Rent
HKFRS 16 Concessions

None of these new or amended HKFRSs has a material
impact on the Group’s results and financial position
for the current or prior period. The Group has not
early applied any new or amended HKFRSs that is not
yet effective for the current accounting period except
for the amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions. Impact on the applications of these
amended HKFRSs are summarised below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Definition of a
Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business
and introduce an optional concentration test that
permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.
The election to apply the concentration test is made
for each transaction. The concentration test is met if
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets
acquired is concentrated in a single identifiable asset
or group of similar identifiable assets. If the
concentration test is met, the set of activities and
assets is determined not to be a business. If the
concentration test is failed, the acquired set of
activities and assets is further assessed based on the
elements of a business.
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mEMBEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RHBFBUBEREER ([FEH
H
e |

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") BREER| |) (&)
(Continued)
(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (a) EAHFITRKIETEBMER

— effective 1 April 2020 (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and
HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments to HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement provide a
number of reliefs, which apply to all hedging
relationships that are directly affected by interest rate
benchmark reform. A hedging relationship is affected
if the reform gives rise to uncertainty about the timing
and/or amount of benchmark-based cash flows of the
hedged item or the hedging instrument. These
amendments have no impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group as it does not have
any interest rate hedge relationships.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8,
Definition of Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material
that states, “information is material if omitting,
misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users
of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements, which provide
financial information about a specific reporting
entity.” The amendments clarify that materiality will
depend on the nature or magnitude of information,
either individually or in combination with other
information, in the context of the financial statements.
A misstatement of information is material if it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions made
by the primary users. These amendments had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements of,
nor is there expected to be any future impact to the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RAEBUBHREER ([ EFBE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") FEIRE
(Continued)

(a) Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs (a) BHFITIREETETBUKER

— effective 1 April 2020 (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions

HKFRS 16 was amended to provide a practical
expedient to lessees in accounting for rent concessions
arising as a result of the Covid-19 pandemic, by
including an additional practical expedient in HKFRS
16 that permits entities to elect not to account for rent
concessions as modifications. The practical expedient
applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of Covid-19 pandemic and only if all of
the following criteria are satisfied:

(@) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially
the same as, or less than, the consideration for
the lease immediately preceding the change;

(b) the reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and

(c)  there is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease.

Rent concessions that satisfy these criteria may be
accounted for in accordance with this practical
expedient, which means the lessee does not need to
assess whether the rent concession meets the
definition of lease modification. Lessees shall apply
other requirements of HKFRS 16 in accounting for the
rent concession.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")
(Continued)

(a)

(b)

Adoption of new and revised HKFRSs
— effective 1 April 2020 (Continued)

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions (Continued)

Accounting for rent concessions as lease modifications
would have resulted in the Group remeasuring the
lease liability to reflect the revised consideration using
a revised discount rate, with the effect of the change
in the lease liability recorded against the right-of-use
asset. By applying the practical expedient, the Group is
not required to determine a revised discount rate and
the effect of the change in the lease liability is
reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the rent concession
occurs.

The Group has elected to utilise the practical expedient
for all rent concessions that meet the criteria. In
accordance with the transitional provisions, the Group
has applied the amendment retrospectively, and has
not restated prior period figure. As the rent
concessions have arisen during the current financial
period, there is no retrospective adjustment to
opening balance of retained earnings at 1 April 2020
on initial application of the amendment.

New/amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant
to the Group's consolidated financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s current
intention is to apply these changes on the date they
become effective.
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mEMBEHRRMEE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs")

(Continued)

(b) New/amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to

HKAS 39, HKFRS 4,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9

and HKFRS 16

Annual Improvements
to HKFRS 2018-2020

Cycle

Amendments to
HKAS 1
Amendments to
HKAS 8
Amendments to
HKAS 37
Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Insurance Contract and the
related Amendments®

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
and HK Interpretation 5
(2020), Presentation of
Financial Statements
— Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan
that Contains a Repayment
on Demand Clause*

Property, Plant and
Equipment — Proceeds
before Intended Use?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint
Venture®

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2!

Amendments to HKFRS 1
First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards,
HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments, HKFRS16
Leases and HKAS 41
Agriculture?

Discloure of Accounting
Policies*

Definition of Accounting
Estimates*

Onerous Contracts — Cost
of Fulfilling a Contract?

Covid-19 Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30
June 2021¢

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities arising
from Single Transaction*
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RAEBUBHREER ([ EFABE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") Fespaxal ) )
(Continued)

(b) New/amended HKFRSs that have been (b) EHEMEEKRER &

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2021.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022.

3 Effective for business combinations for which the date of

acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual
period beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.
> The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale or

contribution of assets occurring in annual periods beginning
on or after a date to be determined.

® Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021.

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and HK
Interpretation 5 (2020), Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting
period, specify that classification is unaffected by
expectations about whether an entity will exercise its
right to defer settlement of a liability and explain that
rights are in existence if covenants are complied with
at the end of the reporting period. The amendments
also introduce a definition of ‘settlement’ to make
clear that settlement refers to the transfer to the
counterparty of cash, equity instruments, other assets
or services.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RAEBUBHREER ([ EFBE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") FEIRE
(Continued)

(b) New/amended HKFRSs that have been (b) CHEMEMRERZHT &

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and HK
Interpretation 5 (2020), Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause (Continued)

HK Int 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of the
Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020. The
revision to HK Int 5 (2020) updates the wordings in
the interpretation to align with the Amendments to
HKAS 1 with no change in conclusion and do not
change the existing requirements.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments and revision in the
future will have an impact on the financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 16, Proceeds before
Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment any
proceeds from selling items produced while bringing
that asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intended
by management. Instead, the proceeds from selling
such items, and the cost of producing those items, is
recognised in profit or loss.

The directors of the Company is currently assessing
the impact that the application of the amendments
will have on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RHBFBUBEREER ([FEH
H
e |

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") BREER| |) (&)
(Continued)
(b) New/amended HKFRSs that have been (b) SHEMEEMRERZHT &

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers to
the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in 2010.
The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a requirement that,
for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37, an
acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at the
acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result
of past events. For a levy that would be within the
scope of HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 to determine whether the obligating
event that gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has
occurred by the acquisition date. The amendments
also add an explicit statement that an acquirer does
not recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments in the future will
have an impact on the financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RAEBUBHREER ([ EFBE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") FEIRE
(Continued)

(b) New/amended HKFRSs that have been (b) CHEMEMRERZHT &

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28,
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an
Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is
a sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction with an associate or joint venture that is
accounted for using the equity method, any gains or
losses resulting from the loss of control of a subsidiary
that does not contain a business are recognised in the
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investors’ interests in that associate or joint venture.
Similarly, any gains or losses resulting from the
remeasurement of retained interest in any former
subsidiary (that has become an associate or a joint
venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit or
loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of these amendments may have an impact
on the financial statements in future periods should
such transaction arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RAEBUBHREER ([ EFABE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") Fespaxal ) )

(Continued)

(b) New/amended HKFRSs that have been (b) EHEMEEKRER &

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments address issues that might affect
financial reporting when a company replaces the old
interest rate benchmark with an alternative benchmark
rate as a result of the interest rate benchmark reform
(the "Reform”). The amendments complement those
issued in November 2019 and relate to (a) changes to
contractual cash flows in which an entity will not have
to derecognise or adjust the carrying amount of
financial instruments for changes required by the
Reform, but will instead update the effective interest
rate to reflect the change to the alternative benchmark
rate; (b) hedge accounting in which an entity will not
have to discontinue its hedge accounting solely
because it makes changes required by the Reform, if
the hedge meets other hedge accounting criteria; and
(c) disclosures in which an entity will be required to
disclose information about new risks arising from the
Reform and how it manages the transition to
alternative benchmark rates.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that

the application of the amendments in the future will
have an impact on the financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RAEBUBHREER ([ EFBE
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") FespaxEal |) )

(Continued)

(b) New/amended HKFRSs that have been (b) CHEMEMRERZHT &

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of
standards, including:

HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, which permit a subsidiary that
applies paragraph D16(a) of HKFRS 1 to measure
cumulative translation differences using the amounts
reported by its parent, based on the parent’s date of
transition to HKFRSs.

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify the fees
included in the “10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6
of HKFRS 9 in assessing whether to derecognise a
financial liability, explaining that only fees paid or
received between the entity and the lender, including
fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender
on other’s behalf are included.

HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend lllustrative Example
13 to remove the illustration of reimbursement of
leasehold improvements by the lessor in order to
resolve any potential confusion regarding the
treatment of lease incentives that might arise because
of how lease incentives are illustrated in that example.

HKAS 41, Agriculture, which remove the requirement
to exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the
fair value of a biological asset using a present value
technique.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that

the application of the amendments in the future will
have an impact on the financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RSB BHREEAN(HFEBH

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") BREER| |) (&)
(Continued)
(b) New/amended HKFRSs that have been (b) CHEMEMRERZHT &

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1

The amendments aim to require disclosure of
accounting policy information that focuses on how an
entity has applied the requirements of HKFRSs to its
own circumstances.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments in the future will
have an impact on the financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 8

HKAS 8.32A and 34A further explain that an entity
uses measurement techniques and inputs to develop
an accounting estimate. Measurement techniques
include estimation techniques and valuation
techniques. The effects on an accounting estimate of
a change in an input or a change in a measurement
technique are changes in accounting estimates unless
they result from the correction of prior period errors.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments in the future will
have an impact on the financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract,
issued in June 2020, added paragraph 68A and
amended paragraph 69. An entity shall apply those
amendments to contracts for which it has not yet
fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the
annual reporting period in which it first applies the
amendments (the date of initial application). The entity
shall not restate comparative information. Instead, the
entity shall recognise the cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained earnings or other
component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of
initial application.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. RS ABUBHREEN(HFEBH
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") FespaxEal ) )
(Continued)

(b) New/amended HKFRSs that have been (b) EEMEEKRERZFT K

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 37 (Continued)

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments in the future will
have an impact on the financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 16

The amendments modify one of the criteria that must
be met in order for the practical expedient to be
applied. They extend the period over which lease
payments originally due may be reduced to end on 30
June 2022 (previously 30 June 2021). Therefore, using
the earlier example of a rent concession which
reduced lease payments originally due by 15% from
July 2020 — July 2021, an entity that is eligible to
apply the revised practical expedient could account for
this rent concession using the practical expedient,
whereas it could not under the original amendments
issued in May 2020.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that
the application of the amendments in the future will
have an impact on the financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax
related to Assets and Liabilities arising from
Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption so that it no longer applies to transactions
that, on initial recognition, give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences. These
amendments clarify whether the initial recognition
exemption applies to certain transactions that often
result in both an asset and a liability being recognised
simultaneously. Such instances might include the initial
recognition of leases from the perspective of a lessee
or asset retirement obligations/decommissioning
liabilities.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that

the application of the amendments and revision in the
future will have an impact on the financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (“GEM Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“CQO").

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments, which are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
the consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are account for in accordance with
HKFRS 16 “Leases”, and measurements that have some
similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such as net
realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in
HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

o Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

CHANGES IN FUNCTIONAL AND
PRESENTATION CURRENCIES

Prior to October 2020, the Company regarded Hong Kong
dollar("HK$") as the functional currency. Upon the
completion of the acquisition of the KingNine Group in
October 2020, whose functional currency is Renminbi
(“RMB"), the Directors consider that the primary economic
environment has been substantially changed. Since then, the
Company'’s primary source of revenue, that is, dividend, is
derived from the operation of KingNine Group operating in
the PRC. As such, it is more appropriate to use RMB as the
functional currency of the Company. Accordingly, the
Company has determined the change of the functional and
presentation currencies from HK$ to RMB starting from 1
October 2020.

The change in functional currency of the Company was
applied prospectively from the date of change in accordance
with Hong Kong Accounting Standard (“HKAS") 21 “The
Effect of Change in Foreign Exchange Rates”. Comparative
figures have been restated to reflect the change in the
Group’s presentation currency.

120

MmBLELYE ()

AN B 2HME - A FEFERER
FEFEZZ2HAEEREERATEFEZ
DYHHBRB L EEUDERE—  F X
F= - FBEWT

s FR2HREBARNNER
2R cEEXRERART
52 BB CREHE)

s E_M2HRTEEAFE-MBEZE
EXRBEZAERARBRER 228
54

s EZNZ2HREEXBEZTAHE
28 -

BEPERZIEH

#2020 10 B AT * ARREHET(THET])
EAINE & - FA2020F 10 A & Ak W B8
KingNine £ B (EIhEEB A ARKE (T AR
)% BERETELERBECELASE
AE - At ARBHEZE YA R (BN
B8 TR B 7 A B AZ & /) KingNine £ & /9
s At FRAARBEARAGZ
NEEET RBEE - Al AARBERTEB
2020F 10 A1 BB Thee R 25| E ¥ BB
TLEE A ARE -

REFEGHEA(EBGFER D FE2
S [EXEHNTE ]| AARNESENE
FHEHMAZFECHREER LRAFEE
5 MRRAKE 2 EREH 2 FE -



ZHONGJIN TECHNOLOGY SERVICES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED &Rt RIS E B R DB R A 7

2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT 5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MR ME

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

CHANGES IN FUNCTIONAL AND
PRESENTATION CURRENCIES (Continued)

For the purpose of re-presentation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Group from HK$ to RMB, the
assets and liabilities are translated into RMB at the closing
rates as of the respective reporting dates. Income and
expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for
the respective periods. Share capital, share premium and
reserves are translated at the exchange rates at the date
when the amount were determined (i.e. historical exchange
rate).

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

o has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during
the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group'’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

. deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or liabilities
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS
12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of
the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer/acquiree is recognised at acquisition-date fair value.
Subsequent adjustments to consideration are recognised
against goodwill only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement period (a
maximum of 12 months from the acquisition date) about
the fair value at the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration classified as an
asset or a liability are recognised in profit or loss.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if
any) over the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the
excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost as established at the date of acquisition of the business
(see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs") (or
group of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest
level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of
CGUs).

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within
the group of CGUs, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the CGU (or a CGU within a group of CGUs), the
amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of
the relative values of the operation (or the CGU) disposed of
and the portion of the CGU (or the group of CGUs)
retained.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interest in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or
transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9 or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or a joint venture.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when (or
as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or a

bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs,;

° the Group’s performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation.

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input method,
which is to recognise revenue on the basis of the Group’s
efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the
satisfaction of that performance obligation, that best depict
the Group’s performance in transferring control of goods or
services.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of direct
measurements of the value of the goods or services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the remaining
goods or services promised under the contract, that best
depict the Group’s performance in transferring control of
goods or services.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether the
nature of its promise is a performance obligation to provide
the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a
principal) or to arrange for those goods or services to be
provided by the other party (i.e. the Group is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified good or
service before that good or service is transferred to a
customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is to
arrange for the provision of the specified good or service by
another party. In this case, the Group does not control the
specified good or service provided by another party before
that good or service is transferred to the customer. When
the Group acts as an agent, it recognises revenue in the
amount of any fee or commission to which it expects to be
entitled in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration, the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be
entitled using either (a) the expected value method or (b)
the most likely amount, depending on which method better
predicts the amount of consideration to which the Group
will be entitled.

The estimated amount of variable consideration is included
in the transaction price only to the extent that it is highly
probable that such an inclusion will not result in a significant
revenue reversal in the future when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group updates the
estimated transaction price (including updating its
assessment of whether an estimate of variable consideration
is constrained) to represent faithfully the circumstances
present at the end of the reporting period and the changes
in circumstances during the reporting period.

Back-office services

For back office services, the Group primarily involves in the
provision of a range of services that help its clients to
support their end-users. This includes primarily provision of
customer service solutions which primarily provides round-
the-clock contact services in multiple languages and
accessible from various channels and provision of solutions
on project-based customer service software and system
development and setup support services.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Back-office services (Continued)

For the provision of customer service solutions related
services, revenue is recognised when the relevant services
are rendered. The provision of services is billed based on
various measurement mainly taking into account the
number of service staff involved, the quality of the tasks
performed, the service hours provided with fixed hourly
rates and performance based adjustments. The Group has a
right to invoice in an amount that corresponds directly with
the value of the Group’s performance completed to date.
The directors of the Company have assessed that
outsourcing services represent one single performance
obligation and the customers simultaneously receive and
consume the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs. Therefore, the directors of the
Company considered that the services are satisfied over
time. Revenue from the provision of services is recognised in
an amount to which the Group has a right to invoice.
Customers are invoiced on a monthly basis or according to
agreed payment terms and consideration is payable when
invoiced.

For the provision of revenue from setting up contact services
systems and centres, it includes a comprehensive set of
activities in the contract, such as system design,
implementation, installation, trial launch and software and
hardware support, which are highly interdependent and
interrelated. The directors of the Company have assessed
that revenue from provision of the services is recognised at a
point in time when the services are rendered according to
the terms of the agreements which the control of the service
is transferred when the Group has provided the related
services.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Comprehensive marketing services

The Group renders various marketing services including
advertising services to brand owners on various platforms
including apps, social media and websites. Revenue from
provision of the services is recognised when the services are
rendered according to the terms of the agreements which
the control of the service is transferred when the Group has
provided the related services over the service period, the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group’s performance as the Group
performs. Revenue from provision of comprehensive
marketing services is recognised over the period in which
the services are rendered.

Data centre services

The Group provides various corporate data centre services
such as value-added services to internet data centres for
securities houses, including their trading system, quotation
system and data processing system. The revenue is
recognised when the relevant services are rendered and the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group throughout the contract period.
Thus, the Group satisfies a performance obligation and
recognises revenue over time with reference to the actual
service period passed relative to the total contract period.
The portion of services fee received in advance but not
earned is recorded as contract liabilities and is reflected as a
current liability as such amounts represent revenue that the
Group expects to earn within one year.

Performance obligations for the provision of back-office
services, comprehensive marketing services and data centre
services are either for a period of one year or less or bill a
fixed amount for each month of services provided. As
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated
to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Corporate advisory services

Corporate advisory income from providing specified financial
advisory services in relation to type 4 (advising on securities)
and/or type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated
activities within the scope of financial services related
activities, are recognised at a point in time when the reports
are issued under the terms of each engagement and the
revenue can be measured reliably, as only that time the
Group has a present right to payment from the customers
for the service performed. Invoices for the financial services
are issued upon signing service contracts and when research
report is delivered.

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at
inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless the
terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of staff quarters and office equipment
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option.
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

3 any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use assets (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of lease
payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating the
present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5.

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)

The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liabilities (Continued)

The lease payments include:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

3 payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to

terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item on
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Lease modifications

With the exception to which the practical expedient for
Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions applied (see note2(a)),
the Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate
lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right to use one or more underlying assets;
and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate adjustments
to that stand-alone price to reflect the circumstances
of the particular contract.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-lease components.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on
the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary
items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not retranslated.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Renminbi) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
period, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of transactions are used. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity under the heading of
translation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
to profit or loss.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”) are
recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid as
and when employees rendered the services. All short-term
employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees

(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Share-based payment arrangements
Equity-settled share-based payment transaction

Share options granted to employees and other
providing similar services

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group'’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment, to the share options
reserve. For share options that vest immediately at date of
grant, the fair value of share option granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve, if any, will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will continue to be held in share options
reserve.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the grants
are intended to compensate. Specifically, government grants
whose primary condition is that the Group should purchase,
construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets are
recognised as accounts and other payables and other non-
current liabilities in the consolidated statements of financial
position and transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and
rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of
giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax because of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of each reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial information of the Group and the
corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
In addition, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of each reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of each
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences on initial
recognition of the relevant right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised due to application of the initial
recognition exemption. Temporary differences arising from
subsequent revision to the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of
lease liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject
to initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date
of remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax
effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated in the consolidated
statements of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

140

5.

FESTTHER®)

BIR (#)

ARBHRFEAREERECIHERSM
B ARERERGIERF12HWMAENR
ZHREDHIEAREREEERHERR -
HRERBRERER R TERERE RHER
FREREEEREERBZEREZH -
B EMEEAERAEERMNERER
EREEEMMERBNEREEMELNE
8 (MRS ERRERR)REHNTE
SAEEE B HI T IARERR

EEAEARTEMNEERHRBEELRNE
HIBMARER - AREEMER—DH%EE
HR—ERVERBKWNFASHARS - &
PSR EEMAES T LA -

BIH MR ER IR e N RS AR - e HE
Ht MBS EENEaTEANERS
B RIERBERT - R RELERBETE D
AIREMEmERKE RN ST R - fid
REBA G @&t M E LB R IASE
TR - RIBBRE R B AZET AN

P
]

MERRE

W3R MR TR & R RS IR RIZ A AR
BIFAWERERRFRERE (A )

FETDABAEER - A IMEET AT
FHANEEKRBERIBREE - Bat Al
REH - RfEBERFTETDENRESREN
Rt - AEHEMES 2 P EURALT R
EAEDR -



ZHONGJIN TECHNOLOGY SERVICES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED &Rt RIS E B R DB R A 7

2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT 5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property and equipment (Continued)

An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
property and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents included cash in hand, short term bank deposits
with original maturities of three months or less.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment loss. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful lives and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Internally-generated intangible assets — research
and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research
and development expenditure (Continued)

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

o the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

o the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

o the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

. the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

o the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred from
the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on
the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on property and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets
other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property and equipment, right-of-
use assets and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets not yet available
for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets are estimated individually,
when it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the CGU to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant CGUs when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of CGUs
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the
relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a CGU) for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment on property and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets
other than goodwill (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount of
a group of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the
group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of CGU. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of CGU. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU or a group if CGU)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a CGU or a group of CGU) in prior years. A reversal
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in
the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for account receivable arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial
assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial assets or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), except that at the
date of initial application of HKFRS 9/initial recognition of a
financial asset, the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of equity investment in
other comprehensive income (“OCI”) if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combinations to which HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations”
applies.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

A financial asset is as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial
asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

(i)  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
OCl and accumulated in the investments revaluation
reserve; and are not subject to impairment assessment.
The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified to
profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments,
and will be transferred to retained earnings.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group's right to receive the dividends is established,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial asset (including
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income, loans and receivables, restricted cash, pledged
deposits, and cash and cash equivalents) which are subject
to impairment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit
risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.

148

5.

FESTTHER®)

SRITE®)
ETHEE (&)

EREEN T BERARNE ()

(i) #5

s

R FEARMEE ST E0E
B TAREERBAVEFE mH
R EEBHEENRE MEBEBRNEM
EEWNSERINIRE EfLHEER
MBAETRENE - HEZ SR
BRER Rt AEABERTEEN
DEERD  YHRERERERN -

EAREERETWERE 2 A - &
FHEHTERE ZREBNBETHER -
FRIERLE AR R D BB DI E R

EEEERE

AEBHRARBEEEM SRS LR E 9WRAT
BRENEREE(BREQATFEFARMD
EHAENEREE  ERXMEWRFE 2
REFE ERAFAEBRSRESEFEY)
NEMEEBR (BHREEBR]D BEAET
RERS - AHEEBENERERE®RER
HIE 3T URBRB S ERENEERRE
) o

B EEBEERE T AR FHAMN
ABEENENRBESIENERNEERER -
MR- 2EAEREEEE(12EA RS
EEBEDEREAHR12ME A RATRE
EMENSHRMSEsEN — B2 A
HMEE RS -



ZHONGJIN TECHNOLOGY SERVICES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED &Rt RIS E B R DB R A 7

2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT 5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical credit
loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
counterparties, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions at the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for accounts
receivable. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually
for debtors with significant balances and collectively using a
provision matrix with reference to internal credit rating of
the receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the
Group recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since
initial recognition.

(i)  Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 5.

(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i) Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap
prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i

(iii)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers the event of default occurs when the
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full.

In respective of the above, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit
impaired includes observable data about the following
events:

(@) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

(¢)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has
entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Debtors with significant outstanding balances or credit
impaired were assessed individually. Where ECL is
measured on a collective basis or cater for cases where
evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet
be available, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and days
past due.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of accounts
and other receivables where the corresponding
adjustment is recognised through a loss allowance
account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual

arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(Continued)

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the asse'ts of the Group after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including accounts and other payables
and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in Note 5, the directors of the Group are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that may have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year.

Fair value assessment of the brand, customer
relationship and technical know-how and
the recognition of goodwill arising from
business combinations

Significant judgements and estimates were involved in the
fair value assessment of the identified brand, customer
relationship and technical know-how and the recognition of
goodwill arising from business combinations. These
significant judgements and estimates include the adoption
of appropriate valuation methodologies and the use of key
assumptions in the valuation.

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill are impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGU or group
of CGU to which goodwill has been allocated, which is the
higher of the value in use or fair value less costs of disposal.
The value-in-use calculation requires the Group to estimate
the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU or
group of CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value. Where the actual future cash
flows are less than expected, or change in facts and
circumstances which results in downward revision of future
cash flows, a material impairment loss/further impairment
loss may arise. As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of
goodwill is RMB581,824,000. No impairment loss was
recognised during the year. Details of the recoverable
amount calculation are disclosed in Note 18.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision of ECL for accounts receivable

Accounts receivable with significant balances and credit
impaired are assessed for ECL individually. In addition, the
Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for the
accounts receivable which are individually insignificant. The
provision rates are based on aging as groupings of various
debtors that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix
is based on the Group’s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs or effort. At
every reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates. The
information about the ECL and the Group’s accounts
receivable are disclosed in Note 23 and Note 41 respectively.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and the
PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for PRC income taxes. There are a number of
transactions and calculations for which ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for potential tax
exposures based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will affect the income tax and deferred tax
provision in the period in which such determination is made.
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RENBHRHE
For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA RS ZHE%

The executive directors have been identified as the chief HITEECDHERATELEBRRE([TEE

operating decision-maker (“CODM"), responsible for ERERE])  BEELEERAR DEEER

making strategic decisions, allocating resources and R hik & D IR c A 2/ E DI &
assessing performance of the operating segments. The HEEWMT -

reportable operating segments and their results are as

below:

—  provision of value-added telecommunications and — RHEEEESEMEERBE(BERER
related services (including back-office services, % 2EEHEREREERORE)
comprehensive marketing services and data centre )5
services); and

— provision of financial services (including corporate — USRS (BELEEBRGE)
advisory service)

Segment results DEBEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 HZE2021F3A3MHLEEE

Value-added
telecommunication
and related Financial
services services Corporate Total
REER
REBRRE SRRE t¥ @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFr AREFr AREFR AREFr

Revenue WA 264,368 1,795 - 266,163
Gross profit e 83,161 1,795 - 84,956
Other income and losses, net Eml A REREE 15,774 108 19,316 35,198
Marketing expenses BT (2,624) = = (2,624)
Research and development expenses  FF B 5 (7,196) - - (7,196)
Administrative expenses IBFY (16,848) (5,460) (43,518) (65,826)
Provision of expected credit losson  FEUBR X & o B e 208

accounts and other receivables, net  TEHI{E BB EE S E (313) = = (313)
Finance costs FRA (1,622) - (4,791) (6,413)
Profit/(loss) before tax BEAEHN/ (FR) 70,332 (3,557) (28,993) 37,782
For the year ended 31 March 2020, there is only one HZE2020F3A31BLEFE 5 — AL
operating segment. The Group does not present separate EDE o REBIEB 25 HEPFAE o

segment results.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA RS ZHER (&)
(Continued)
Segment results (Continued) DERELE (E)
An analysis of the Group’s revenue from major services are REEFZRBWABH ST :
as follow:
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFIT
(Restated)
(#=&E7)
Value-added telecommunication HEEE KBRS
and related services:
— Back-office services — B IR%
e Provision of customer service o RERFPREHATE
solutions 247,043 -
e Setting up of contact service o BUBBRB ARG KA L
systems and centres 8,602 -
255,645 -
— Comprehensive marketing services — 2HEE R 931 =
— Data centre services — RO ARTE 7,792 =
264,368 -
Financial Services: & BARTS
— Corporate advisory services — PR ART 355 13,690
— Loan interest income — B F WA 1,440 1,406
Total 5t 266,163 15,096
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA RS IELE &)

(Continued)
Timing of revenue recognition U A TSR B RS
Value-added
telecommunication and
related services Financial services Total
BESEREARE SRR et

20214 20204 20214 20206 20215 20204
RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000

ARBFT ARBTT ARMFRT ARETT AR¥TrT ARETT

At a point in time F BB 8,602 - 355 13,690 8,957 13,690
Over time [Ffi=ar 255,766 - - - 255,766 -
264,368 - 355 13,690 264,723 13,690
No other analysis of the Group’s segment assets and BHRASEN S HEEKRBBEER T ETH
liabilities is presented as the information is not regularly RETEIBLERREUARERN  BAER
provided to the CODM for review. Pl E At AT
Geographical information HhEER
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) XKEIEBEFHKA
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥Fr ARSFT
(Restated)
(re=3%1))
The PRC =a 264,368 11,166
Hong Kong B 355 2,552
The United States of America EHERERE ([ ])
(the "USA") 1,440 1,378
266,163 15,096
The revenue information above is based on the FHRRABRTDERR MRS
location of the customers. Bl o
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA RS ZHER (&)
(Continued)
Geographical information (Continued) HEER (&)
(b) Non-current assets (b)) ¥REBEE
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20214 20204
3H31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FIT ARMTF T
(Restated)
(KeE3)
The PRC =5 820,111 -
Hong Kong BB 2,593 6,532
822,704 6,532
The non-current asset information is based on the ERBEEER NEREEMELR
location of assets and excludes financial instruments BT eE£mT A (R AFEFA
(e.g. equity instrument at fair value through other Hith 2 HWmOERTHE  BRER
comprehensive income, loan receivables and deposits) Kize) RIRERIBEEE -

and deferred tax assets.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E
REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 7. WA RS ZHER (&)
(Continued)
Information about major customers FTEEFEHR
During the year, revenue from customers individually FAEAEEZEWARBE10% 2 BRI =
contributing over 10% of total revenue of the Group are as Flg AT :
follows:
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT ARBF T
(Restated)
(& E5)
Customer A ZEA 32,462 =
Customer B ZFB 29,698 -
Customer C 2B C 29,328 -
Customer D ZFED - 5,191
Customer E ZF5E - 3,822
Customer F ZEF - 2,090
For the year ended 31 March 2021, customers A, B and C RNEZE2021E3A31BIEEE  EFA B
are from value-added telecommunication and related R CREEEESE RBEREDEE(20204F -
services segments (2020: customers D, E and F are from BED ERFREESRARGE D)

financial services segment).
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E
OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES, NET 8. HMtWAREGEFHE
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBTF T
(Restated)
(F&&E75)
Net investment income/(loss) BREWA(EE) BE
Net fair value gain/(loss) on financial BAFEF AR ([ZRAFER

assets at fair value through profit or AEm ) NS REERFERK

loss (“FVTPL") =/ (B518) F8 2,186 (2,863)
Fair value gain on convertible loan AT ER A B R AT A

receivable at FVTPL BERAFERES = 51,032
Dividend income A B A 63 113
Interest income FIEWA
Interest income from financial assets at  IZEE S5 ANHY & Bl & E B

amortised costs WA

— Bank deposits — RITER 3,424 4,737
Interest income from financial assets at ~ ZAF(EF ABRN S RVEE

FVTPL ORURSRON

— Structured deposit — BT 3,916 7,853
Other income and losses Hih AR EE
Government grants and subsidies U 8 B R 4 B (B 32 (1))

(note (i) 3,095 -
Value-Add Tax ("VAT") refund (note (i)  He(E®: ([SEF: ) BT (K153 (i) 5,580 —
Gain/(loss) on exchange differences [ Zra e (518) 9,235 (14,342)
Loss on disposal of property, plantand ~ HEWE  BE R B EERE

equipment (217) =
Loss on deregistration of subsidiaries B A REE = (2,766)
Others Efh 7,916 =

35,198 43,764
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 8= 202143 A 31 B IFFE

OTHER INCOME AND LOSSES, NET
(Continued)

Notes:

(i) The government grants and subsidies mainly represented the rent
subsidies, high-tech enterprise subsidies, subsidies related to software
and digital innovations enterprise, employment subsidies.

(ii) According to the Value-Added Tax Policy for Software Products (Cai
Shui 2011 No. 110), for sale of self-developed software products by a
general VAT tax payer, after VAT is levied at a tax rate of 17%, the
refund-upon-collection policy shall be applied and the portion of the
actual VAT burden that is in excess of 3% shall be refunded.

FINANCE COSTS

8. HMWAREEZFRHE®

st

0] B LB ERRHESMHE S RMEE
B - BRI EAARMEE) SR o

(i) MWEAHEREEHRBER(FB2011E5110
%) - B ARIBERATRARE B ERBNTTE
R 17% MR R BUCRERR - BRALRIR
RIRE - WHREREBBREEN B EBIB3% M

e

B AR AN

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREFIT

(Restated)

(r&=5))

Interest on bank borrowings RITHBEFE 507 =
Interest on other borrowings EMEERS 407 =
Interest on lease liabilities HEABZFE 811 183
Interest on consideration payable FERREZFE 4,688 =
6,413 183
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E
10. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 10. BRBEAER
Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging: Rk B il A &S0 BR R 51 38
2021 % 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARMFIT
(Restated)
(F&&=75)
Employee benefit expense (including EERNAX (BRRESHM
Directors’ remuneration (note 12)) (K1a£12))
— Salaries and other benefits — Hre RHALEF 139,214 18,052
— Discretionary bonus — BIBTEAL 2,790 205
— Retirement benefits scheme — R FIET B3k
contributions 7,955 247
— Amounts capitalised —BERfER (6,176) -
143,783 18,504
Auditor’s remuneration % BREM N & 1,595 1,622
Legal and professional fees EENBEER 16,592 28,136
Depreciation of property and equipment  #)% % &3 & (Ff5E 16)
(Note 16) 8,534 258
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE (it 19)
(Note 19) 10,198 3,507
Amortisation of intangible assets B EEEE (T 17)
(Note 17)
— Cost of services — BRAEACA 871 =
— Administrative expenses — ITHRFAX 8,174 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. BB
202145 2020 4
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFT AREFIT
(Restated)
(#2&E7)

Current tax BNHARH IR

PRC Enterprise Income tax (“EIT") RS ([EMETR]) 14,453 1,935
Under/(Over) provision in prior years BAFERBETR (BEEE) 2,385 (1,765)
16,838 170
Deferred tax (Note 34) EIEFRIE (M 7E34) (5,932) =
Income tax expense FriSHif 10,906 170

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill"”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of
the qualifying group entity is taxed at 8.25%, and profits
above HK$2 million is taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group
entities not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime continues to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

The Directors considered the amount involved upon
implementation of the two-tiered profits tax rates regime as
insignificant to the consolidated financial statements. Hong
Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

The basic tax rate of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries is 25%
under the law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and implementation regulations of the EIT Law. For
the current year, certain subsidiaries of the Group qualified
as advanced technology enterprises and have obtained
approvals from the relevant tax authorities for the reduction
of the applicable tax rate to 15%.
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 1. FRI8HB (#)
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to FRPETRAX AT SRS 18 KA 2 EK
the profit before tax per the consolidated statement of profit R ZBEADE AR T ¢
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFIT ARBTF T
(Restated)
(18E51)
Profit before tax B 5 B A 37,782 1,583
Tax calculated at domestic income tax TR PSR 8 R 25% (2020 4F ¢
rates of 25% (2020:16.5%) 16.5%) st E I 9,446 262
Under/(over) provision in prior year BEFERENR(BEEE) 2,385 (1,765)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax ~ BERBUA 2 BiF &
purpose (2,405) (9,042)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for “FA[INFLFE L 2 TS r £&
tax purpose 8,863 502
Tax effect of deductible temporary AERN AR E =5 2 %
differences not recognised % (300) =
Utilisation of tax losses previously not AR AMERR R IEIE 5k
recognised (399) (184)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERmARBAHIEIE R 2 1%
recognised TE - 9,773
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries E fih 7] [& & &M B A 7] i K
operating in other jurisdictions NEraZ- (6,978) 668
Others HAtb 294 (44)
Income tax expense for the year REEZMEHES 10,906 170
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12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 12. EERESTHRAEME
EMOLUMENTS
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year R 3E A GEM k71 27 Bl &2 2 B 1 3% 72 /9
disclosed pursuant to the applicable GEM Listing Rules and EERERTBRABFESFHOT
the CO is as follows:
Year ended 31 March 2021 BZ2021F3A31HLFE
Retirement
Salaries  Discretionary benefit
Directors' and other bonus scheme
fee benefits (note (iii))  contribution Total
¥oR Wi BIRIER
EShe HiEF (Bt i) B[ @5t

RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBFr  ARETT  AREFT  ARETR

Executive directors (note (i) BITES (K ()
Mr. NIU Zhanbin EmEE - 2,758 - 16 2,774
Mr. WU Hui RELE - 673 282 16 m
Mr. JIANG Yulin (chief executive officer) — BEMEA (7B #%) - 3,02 - 17 3,083
- 6,457 282 49 6,788
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BUFHTES
(note (ii)) (W (i)
Mr. Stephen Markscheid Stephen Markscheid % & 689 = = = 689
Mr. Zhang Weidong RERLE 689 - - - 689
Mr. Zhang Longgen REERALAE 689 - - - 689
2,067 - - - 2,067
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Fu Chi King Johnson FHREE 17 - - - 17
2,084 6,457 282 49 8,872
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12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12. EERBETHRAEME (@
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2020 HZE202063A31HLLFE
Retirement
Salaries  Discretionary benefit
Directors’ and other bonus scheme
fee benefits (note (iii))  contribution Total
ek HiERA BIRER
EzZhe Hit g7 (K& i) SHEIR @t

RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARMFr  ARETT  AREFT  ARETR

Executive directors (note (i)) BITES (HE ()
Mr. NIU Zhanbin FEmEE (20195
(appointed on 29 August 2019) 8A29REZH) - 1,410 = 7 1417
Mr. WU Hui REFE(R2019F
(appointed on 29 August 2019) 8ABEZ) = 405 - 11 416
Mr. JIANG Yulin (chief executive officer) B EMSEA (TR #£7 )
(appointed on 26 March 2020) (R2020%3 8268
BZ(T) - 49 - - 49
Ms. Duan Di Biagt (R 20195
(resignation effective on 29 August 2019) 8 A 29 BIEE(T) 747 - - - 747
Ms. Zhang Yun KRBT (R2019F
(resignation effective on 29 August 2019) 8 29 H&T) 511 - - - 511
1,258 1,864 - 18 3,140
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHTES
(note (ii)) (Kt (i)
Mr. Stephen Markscheid Stephen Markscheid J¢ & 701 - - = 701
Mr. Zhang Weidong REREE 701 - - - 701
M Zhang Longgen FREAE 701 ] ] ] 01
2,103 - - - 2,103
Non-executive director FHTES
Mr. Fu Chi King Johnson vt et 214 - - _ 214
3,575 1,864 - 18 5,457
Notes: Bt
(i) The chief executive officer’'s emoluments and executive directors’ (i) FXFIRTTRERRAITES S I EEE
emoluments shown above were for their services in connection with AAT MEMBRRERAEZIRG MR o
the management of the affairs of the Company and its subsidiaries.
(i) The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above (i) B IEMITEE 2 e DEEEEEEMR
were their services as Directors. i o
(i)~ Bonuses are discretionary and are based on the Group’s performance (i)  TEAERAEEFERRBIBFRE -

for the year.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

There was no arrangement under which any Directors
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during both
years.

None of the Directors received or will receive inducement
fees for accepting of office as directors.

Details of the material interests of the Directors in
transactions, arrangements and contracts entered into by
the Group are set out in note 39.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included two (2020: one) Directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 12 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2020:
four) highest paid employees who are neither a Director nor
chief executive of the Company are as follows:

12.

13.

BEENBRETHRAEME @)

BECAEENZMEFERZELRBNE
TR H B R 22 B

BEEF WA REIREREF AR E
B o

EERNAKETUARS - RERAHTH
BAR S IEHNHIE39 -

AfusEHMES

FR - AEEBRINSESHFMNE TRE2M
(2020%F : 1) EE - HHFIMFBHNR EX
BIEE12 - £ - 82 F 367 (20204F : 441)3F
ARRIEERNZSTHRAERSHHES D
FMFFIBT -

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARMTF T

(Restated)

(F&&=75)

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 -~ 2BI R EWAIZE 4,710 5,230
Discretionary bonus B TEAL 193 126
Retirement benefits BRIREF 47 55
4,950 5,411

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
Directors whose remuneration fell within the following
bands is as follows:

FEZEMETIREANRSFHESR
ABIAT

Number of employees

EE%HE
20214 2020 €
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7T 1,500,000 75 7T 1 3
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £ 2,500,000 %5 7T 2
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A31 HILF/E
14. DIVIDENDS 14. BE
No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders HZE2021F3HA31BIEFENLE R ARG
of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2021, nor TIBARAR R S M e IR IR MRS BREHA
has any dividend been proposed since the end of the AR LA B I £ 32 5% R ZE A ] IR B (2020 4F ¢
reporting period (2020: nil). ) o
15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. BIREF
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share KABHEE ANELHBREARESZHF TR
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the BATEURTE -
following data.
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
(Restated)
(Fe=%1)
Earnings: &H -
Profit for the year attributable to owners 72 &% A A 15 55 A% 7
of the Company 26,153 1,413
20215 20204
Number of shares: RHEE :
Weighted average number of ordinary HAEERERNREERT 2
shares for the purposes of calculating - 38 A% N 5 R
basic and diluted earnings per share 3,844,162,104 3,550,496,836
Diluted earnings per share amount was the same as basic AREZE2021F3A31BIEFEWEER
earnings per share amount as there were no potential BRTEE L AR (20204 : ) BERK
dilutive ordinary shares outstanding for the year ended 31 BSE RN G AREARRFAER o

March 2021 (2020: nil).
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16. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 16. MERRE
Furniture, Electronic
Leasehold fixtures and and other Motor
improvement  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
& ETR
HEMERE HKEREE Hinik s "E st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Cost (D%
At 1 April 2019 (Restated) 72201944 F 18
(E5) 237 758 - - 995
Additions NE - 53 - - 53
Disposals k- - () - = (8)
Exchange differences fE =R 15 46 - - 61
At 31 March 2020 and M202063A31A R
1 April 2020 (Restated) 20204 A1RH
(e =5) 252 849 - - 1,101
Acquisition of subsidiaries BB B 7] 13,326 - 8,260 3,250 24,836
Additions NE 8,893 10 2,426 462 11,791
Disposals & - - = (412) (412)
Exchange differences PE N =% (19) (64) - - (83)
At 31 March 2021 R2021%3A831H 22,452 795 10,686 3,300 37,233
Accumulated depreciation ZiHiTE
At 1 April 2019 (Restated) 7201944 A1 H
(fe=5) 20 586 - - 606
Provided for the year FNERE 82 176 = = 258
Eliminated on disposal RS FE 8 = (8 = - )
Exchange differences BE 5 =8 39 - - 43
At 31 March 2020 and ®2020F3A318 K
1 April 2020 (Restated) 20204 A 1H
€ =) 106 793 - - 899
Provided for the year FREE 6,013 28 2,186 307 8,534
Eliminated on disposal HERTH = = = (195) (195)
Exchange differences X ZE5 (11) (62) - - (73)
At 31 March 2021 R20215E3A31H 6,108 759 2,186 112 9,165
Carrying value EREE
At 31 March 2021 K2021F3A31H 16,344 36 8,500 3,188 28,068
At 31 March 2020 (Restated) 7202043 A31H
(RE5) 146 56 - - 202
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16. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 16. MERZRE#)
The above items of plant and equipment are depreciated on LR E kR EIE B RE SR A T ERYT
a straight-line basis at the following rates per annum: g
Leasehold improvement  Shorter of lease term or 20% THEYERE %A 20% (JABR
RERLE)
Furniture, fixtures and 20% to 50% Rh - HEBREE  20%E50%
equipment
Electronic and other 33% B REMEE 33%
equipment
Motor vehicles 20% RE 20%
17. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. B EE
Customer  Technology Development
Brand relationship  know-how Patent cost Total
g4 EFBFE RITSENH 7 BRAR o

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETrT
(note) (note) (note)

(Hi) (W) (W)

Cost KA
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 120203 A31B %

200F4 518 = = = = = =
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEHB AT 61,900 60,700 44,100 2,3% 16,351 185,947
Addition NE = = — - 7,791 7,791
At 31 March 2021 R20215E3F31H 61,900 60,700 44,100 2,396 24,642 193,738
Amortisation B
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 20203 A 318 k%

20204 A18 - - - - - -
Provided for the year FRRE = 3974 4,043 1,028 = 9,045
At 31 March 2021 202134318 = 3974 4,043 1,028 - 9,045
Carrying value BREE
At 31 March 2021 R2021E3F31H 61,900 56,726 40,057 1,368 24,642 184,693
At 31 March 2020 202063 F31H = = = = = =

173



17.

18.

ZHONGJIN TECHNOLOGY SERVICES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED 4 RHE RS EB R BB R A 7
2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT £ R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBEHRRMEE
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The patent of the Company is generated from the
acquisition of subsidiaries, which have finite useful lives.
Such intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis
over a period of 5 years.

Development costs in relation to an online training and
certain call centre platforms are internally generated and will
be used in provision of customer service solution business,
which have finite useful lives. Such intangible assets are
amortised on a straight-line basis over a period of 5 to 7
years.

As at 31 March 2021, the remaining amortisation period of
patent, customer relationship and technology know-how
were approximately 1 year, 7 years and 5 years respectively.

Note:

The brand is considered by the management of the Group as having indefinite
useful life because it is expected to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely.
The brand will not be amortised until its useful life are determined to be
finite. Instead they will be tested for impairment annually and whenever there
is an indication that they may be impaired. The recoverable amount of the
brand has been assessed together with the goodwill acquired on the same
business combination, as set out in note 36. The customer relationship and
technical know-how have definite useful lives and are amortised on a straight-
line basis over a period of 7 and 5 years respectively.

7. BEEE #)

ARRMEMNRERKEHRELRR  REH
RAIERFEY - ZEFBLEENREREN
5B A T AR SH -

B R LR R A T A AL & B R B A
ATIRBEL - WisARERTF IR HER
AREY  BAARRAEAFY - ZFE
BEDIRERENRSE7TFHBEA T IASE

R2021F3A31H 25 EPBEEE
MEERNBOFSREHEBORNNBIFE 7
FERSE o

Hist

AEBMERERRMEEERAERFY  ENE
EHeERATRESRANFE EAEAFHEER
BRZA - TEHREETHRE - MRESEFREL
A BERME IR 2 B0 TRERE TR E R o S KT
36 FTH - an i RO AR D & BRE R AR R KT A GRS R
BEE TG FEFAARENEXNZABERAR
REH - WIRERED BN 7F R 5 FHEA T ARH -

GOODWILL 18. &
RMB’000
AE®FT
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 7202043 A31 H&2020F4 A 1H =
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 36) W HEk B A A (ffaE 36) 581,824
Gross and net carrying amount at 31 March 2021 720214 3 A 31 B HBRE42E MR E 581,824

174



ZHONGJIN TECHNOLOGY SERVICES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED &Rt RIS E B R DB R A 7

2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT 5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 /£ 20213 A31 HILFE

18. GOODWILL (Continued)

KingNine Group

As at 31 March 2021, the recoverable amount of the
KingNine Group’s CGU has been determined based on a
value-in-use calculation and this valuation was performed by
an independent qualified professional valuer. The calculation
uses cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by management covering a 5-year period.
KingNine Group’s cash flows beyond the 5-year period are
extrapolated using a long-term growth rate of 3%. This
long-term growth rate is based on the KingNine Group's
historical growth and relevant industry growth forecasts and
does not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the
relevant industry.

Key assumptions used for the value-in-use calculation are as
follows:

Revenue growth rate 5.9%-38.8%
Long-term growth rate 3%
Pre-tax discount rate 24.4%

Revenue growth rate estimates

Rates were estimated ranging from 5.9%to 38.8% per
annum for the CGU throughout the 5-year budget plan.
Cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated by
using a steady growth rate of 3%.
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18.

ik 4C)
KingNine £ &

7202143 A318 * KingNine% B 3R ¢ &
A B Ak Bl e REA BB ERE
ErEEAMERBE LS EREEMERME
T B ERAREEEMEZRES
FHPRBESH 2 RS REEMN-
KingNine & & 5 4 B[R LASNRIR & 7 £ 5 A
REAERE3I%HYE - ZRAEEETIRE
KingNine &R B0V /E £ 3 R RABRAT TR IE R TR
BIfE - WERBREMITEZ FHRAER
K o

=

S BEERANEERIMT

WA S = & 5.9% % 38.8%
RHE R R 3%
T ATAG IR =& 24.4%
WA B REGEE

BESFREFINRSEEAEMNTFIER
R{L5HA59% £ 38.8% c AFHIE IR S
MENERBEEREI% INAESE -
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18. GOODWILL (Continued)

KingNine Group (Continued)
Discount rate

Discount rate represents the current market assessment of
the risks specific to KingNine Group CGU, taking into
consideration the time value of money and individual risks
of the underlying assets that have not been incorporated in
the cash flow estimates. The discount rate calculation is
based on the specific circumstances of the Group and its
operating segment and is derived from its weighted average
cost of capital (WACC). The WACC takes into account both
debt and equity. The cost of equity is determined using the
Capital Asset Pricing Model (“CAPM"). The CAPM depends
on a number of inputs reflecting financial and economic
variables, including risk-free rate and a premium to reflect
the inherent risk of the business being evaluated. These
variables are based on the market’s assessment of the
economic variables and comparable listed companies with
business scopes and operations similar to those of the CGU.
The cost of debt is based on the interest-bearing borrowings
the Group is obliged to service. Company specific risk is
incorporated by valuer’s professional judgement and
experience, including by consideration of unlisted company
risk premium, negative impact from Covid-19 and business
risk in sustaining the future growth.

Such estimation is based on KingNine Group’s past
performance and management’s expectations for the
market development. The pre-tax discount rate reflects the
current market assessments of the time value of money and
the specific risks relating to the relevant CGU.
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18. BE (&)

KingNine &£ & (%)
BB E

AL 4B KingNine £ E3R ¢ E £ B ER
B EIRITISZ R G - BRE R EE AR
BERREREMGEHLESROEEEE
BERRER - BRI AEERELE D
HHEEERAE  THEEMETHES
A ([IEFEHEESKA]) - MEFIHES
AT A R o IRERR A FEBERE
ETBRX([ELAEEEBENDEE - &
REETEBERTURARN 2 E R W% R A& H
FENE AR - SEERBRAERRMEAT
EEBC EERBAGRE ZZEENE
RETAOE B 2 DA R TS S B R A E LR E
CELEBNMAS LW ARB MG
TE o BB ATIRBEASEEREEENG
BEEHE - ARRINSERR B ER&
FEHERERIMAZRE - EHREEEER
LHARERRE BRARSHEHNEHEFE
REFRRERNEBRR

BB TR EKingNine S B 2 BERB R
EEEBHMBEEZBHER - HATHIRE
B E BEH BFR E E A IR 1T Th 35 A I EE 4
BReELASENABZEERAR
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18. GOODWILL (Continued)

KingNine Group (Continued)
Discount rate (Continued)

Sensitivity of value in use to reasonably possible changes in
key assumptions:
Key assumptions Revenue growth rate;
Discount rate

Further 5% decrease in pre-churn
revenue growth rate;
1% increase in discount rate

Possible Changes

Sensitivity An decrease in the pre-churn
revenue growth rate would result in
an decrease in value in use of

RMB35,972,000, and vice versa;

An increase in discount rate would
result in an decrease in value in use
of RMB61,087,000, and vice versa.

The directors of the Company believes that any reasonably
possible change in any of these key assumptions would not
cause the aggregate carrying amount of the goodwill and
other assets within KingNine Group CGU to exceed the
aggregate recoverable amount.

As at 31 March 2021, the recoverable amount of the
KingNine Group CGU was RMB867,423,000 which has
exceeded its carrying amount of the goodwill and other
assets including intangible assets (note 17) within KingNine
Group by RMB64,146,000. Accordingly, no impairment of
goodwill has been recognised during the year ended 31
March 2021.
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18. BE (&)

KingNine £& (&)
REBRE(E)

EREEHARERNEIENEEBHER
B

BRER  WARRE:
BT

AEEMEE) EFPRRFIKRARERRE—F
TFE5% :
BEIRE ETT1%

RS BEERKAIBMAERETRE
EHFEREARND ARE
35,972,0007C * R ZINA

AR E FASEHEREBET
& AN ER#61,087,0007T 2

ARBEFRE  EZEEREBRALE
B EMAEZ2E T & B KingNine KER
TELBEVNEREREMEENRTAER
HE R E SRR o

72021493 A31H - KingNine % @ IR & E
E BRI IRE £ R A AR 867,423,000
TC BB E B R HEME E (B FEKingNine
EEMEREE(KE17)) NEREARE
64,146,0007C & Lt -+ # £202143 A 31
BIEFE I EEREERE -
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19. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 19. ERAEEE

Office premises
and
staff quarters
BAEYER
BEIES
RMB’000
AREFT

Carrying value fREE
At 31 March 2021 7R20214F3 A31H 28,119
At 31 March 2020 (Restated) 202043 A 31 B (& &%) 6,330
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AE®FT
(Restated)
(#eE5)
Additions NE 6,659 -
Depreciation charge HEEHR 10,198 3,507
Total cash outflow for leases HERSRHESE 12,654 3,601
Expense relating to short term lease BRRBEENAS 1,931 =

For both years, the Group leases office premises and staff
quarters for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into
for fixed term of 1 to 5 years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines
the period for which the contract is enforceable.

In addition, lease liabilities of approximately RMB28,017,000
(2020: RMB6,339,000) are recognised with related right-of-
use assets of approximately RMB28,119,000 (2020:
RMB6,330,000) as at year end date. The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants other than the security
interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.
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MER AEEHEHAEMERETIRES
EHEE - ORI ETHRBIESFOHM
E6# - BEEMER AR EHE - REE
M MFHE NI RERAESRER - NEE
FERERMERLETE AR ARG HNITHH
& o

o RFEEEREAEEENHARK
28,017,000 7C (20204 : A R #6,339,000
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20. EQUITY INSTRUMENT AT FAIR VALUE

21.

THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME

The Group has approximately 12.14% equity interest in a
private entity established in the PRC upon the acquisition of
Kingnine Group on 15 October 2020. The directors of the
Company have elected to designate the investment in equity
instrument as at FVTOCI as they believe that recognising
short-term fluctuations in the investment in profit or loss
would not be consistent with the Group’s strategy of holding
the investment for long term investment purpose and
realising the performance potential in the long run. The
12.4% equity instrument was revalued at 31 March 2021.
The valuation was carried out by an independent professional
qualified valuer. The fair value of the investment is
RMB1,328,000 as at 31 March 2021, resulting fair value loss
of RMB3,235,000 was recognised in other comprehensive
income.

20. BAFPEFAEMCEEBEE

wmTH

NEEE K 20204 10 A 15 H K EE Kingnine &
BeEE—RHRFPBRKINLEEENLY
1214% B#E - AR R EEEREBER T
BRERTE AR ATFEFALMEAEKE
THREERESNIBRERIZEMNE K E
B EREEFEREERPIRERER
ERRAEEB IR - 124% ExnTH
ER2021F3 A3 HER - BUEELE
HAAEMBEEITHE - R202143 A31H
"ERNFEEARARE1,328,0007T ' BEA
SFEEIE A R 3,235,000 7T A E 4 2 mE Uk

W o

LOAN RECEIVABLES 21. EIWER
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20214 20204
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
(Restated)
(&&E5)
Fixed-rate loan receivables Bl E B E R 12,690 15,686

On 22 May 2018, the Group has signed an ancillary
transaction agreements with Aretex Capital Partners, LP
("Aretex Capital”) in which the Company agreed to advance
an amount of US$2,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB13,142,000) for a term of 7 years at an interest rate of
9.5% per annum payable on a quarterly basis to affiliates of
Aretex Capital so that they can make capital contributions in
order to satisfy the requirements of certain fund partnership
agreements for their investments in, among others, the
acquisition of GKD Index Partners, LLC’s equity interests
(conducting its business under the name “Alerian”).
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201845 422 B - ZRE&[H i Aretex Capital
Partners, LP ([ Aretex Capital |) 251 B X 5
Wk B AR ERERZRFEHNEISY M
Aretex Capital BB AR —ZE BH7 /)
2,000,000 7T (AHE R KA KR 13,142,000
TL)RIE - FIBEIREE S AEREER]
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21. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of loan
receivables amount to RMB 12,690,000 (2020: RMB
15,686,000). The loan receivables are secured by the
partnership interest in Aretex Capital. The borrowers are not
permitted to sell or repledge the pledged interest in Aretex
Capital and its affiliates, and Aretex Capital has certain
equity interest of Alerian. There has not been any significant
changes in the quality of the collateral held for the loan
receivables. The Group has not recognised a loss allowance
for the loan receivables as the amount is insignificant.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 41.

21. EWER &)

R2021F3A318 BRERNEMAEE
A A R #12,690,0007T (20204 : A R
15,686,0007T ) © F& W & 7 LA Aretex Capital
MEBRERERR - BRATSHEREIE
8 Aretex Capital M BB B A Rl A HE i s
il Aretex Capital # & Alerian B9 & T A& # o
RENESFAFERARCEETEAMNEXN
BE) o KEEIW AR EREREREBR
# AASBITEK -

W ERHE IR RN EE41 o

22. DEPOSITS 22. &€
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20214 20204F
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AE®FT
(Restated)
(r&&E751)
Rental and management fee deposits HeREBEBES - 2,043
Others Hit 4 5
4 2,048
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23. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 23. FEWRERFX
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20215 20204
3H31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBFT
(Restated)
(&&:7))
Accounts receivable FEUER X 311,636 3,210
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses S5 : T8 2R (= & & B RS (310) =
311,326 3,210

The Group allows a credit period of 3 to 6 months to its
customers. The directors of the Company are in the view
that there have been no significant increase in credit risk of
default because the amounts are from customers with good
credit rating and continuous repayment. Before accepting
any new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are
reviewed periodically.

The Group does not hold any collateral or credit
enhancements over these balances.

Details of impairment assessment are set out in note 41.
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23. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (Continued) 23. BWARR (&)
The following is an aged analysis of accounts receivable,
presented based on the date of services rendered at the end
of each reporting period.

AT BRE®ERRIZIBHERS B H2580
JE U AR SR AR e D AT

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

20215 20204

3A31H 3A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARETT

(Restated)

(&)

0 — 60 days 0&E60H 144,385 3,210

61 — 120 days 6121204 48,793 =

121 — 180 days 1212180 H 36,330 —

Over 180 days 180 HIA E 81,818 -

311,326 3,210

24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24. AN - BERHEMERKIE

RECEIVABLES

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

20215 20204

3A31H 3HA31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥FT ARKFT

(Restated)

(#eE5)

Prepayments TET IR 21,638 807
Refundable rental and management fee  AIREHA G NEEBZL S

deposits 1,890 -

Deposits and other receivables (note) Be REMEWRIE (M) 24,868 201,616

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses & : 78 Ei{= B E5 18 B4 (3) =

48,393 202,423
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24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

25.

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Note: As at 31 March 2020, the balance mainly included the consideration
receivable in connection with the assignment of the Group’s
convertible loan receivable. The amount has been received in full
during the year ended 31 March 2021. Details of the transaction were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 31 March
2020.

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables for
the year ended 31 March 2021 are set out in note 41.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT AND LOSS

24. AR  BEREMEBWRFRIR

(%)

BfaE : 720203 A310 - BB T EREEAEE
HRENATRREFEENERRE - ZREB
REZE 202143 A31 ALIEFEHBEEEKE - %
RS FHBERARARBHA2020F3 A31 HHNA

S -

HZE2021F3831HIELFE - Hap UK
HRR ARG BN T4 -

25. BAFEFABENEREE

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
2021 20204
3A31H 3H31H
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥TFIT ARBTF T
(Restated)
(fE:%))
Hong Kong and the USA listed equity DER/FHIEEEZBENER L
investments classified as held for MR E  HRFrskm(E
trading, at quoted market price 5,061 3,275

These investments include listed securities in Hong Kong of
RMB2,375,000 (2020: RMB2,127,000) and listed securities
in the USA of RMB2,686,000 (2020: RMB1,148,000), which
are level 1 financial instruments and the fair value are based
on the quoted bid prices in an active market. There are no
significant unobservable inputs.

183

ZEREABERBE LMESHRARK2,375,000
JC(20204F : AR 2,127,0007T) K3EE £
&5 A R#2,686,0007T (20204F © AR
#1,148,0007T) - W AF 1 ASHBITE - @
BERFEDENERMISHRESD - $I8
BAT A BB A UK o



ZHONGJIN TECHNOLOGY SERVICES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED 4 RHE RS EB R BB R A 7

2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT £ R

$
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBEHRRMEE
For the year ended 31 March 2021 /£ 20213 A31 HILFE
26. INVENTORIES 26. &

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20214 2020
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TFT ARETIT
Hardware and facilities R K2 2R 5 1,829 -
Accessories, phones and packages B SEkeE 251 -
2,080 -

27. CASH HELD ON BEHALF OF CLIENTS 27. REFEEZEE

The Group’s licensed subsidiary maintains segregated trust
accounts with a licensed bank to hold clients” monies arising
from its normal course of business. The Group has classified
the clients’ monies as cash held on behalf of clients under
the current assets section of the consolidated statement of
financial position, and recognised the corresponding
payables to the respective clients as accounts payable on the
grounds that it is liable for any loss or misappropriation of

BEPRIA -

clients” monies. The Group is not allowed to use clients’

monies to settle its own obligations.

28. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

28. MITHEBRRERAE

REB R R E QRN R R1TRRIET
ErERP  UEHEBEERBRTELN
AEECHEPRADBAER
MBRARRBDEERR TREFPHAZR
% BARAHETPHABZBRIENA
MAEET - Rt SRS HEREF ERARE
MR RBERENER - AEETEER
EEFBBEREHELR

31 March 31 March

2021 2020

2021 % 2020

3A31H 3A31H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ T ARMTFT

(Restated)

(F&=75)

Restricted bank balances SR FIRITAE B 4,501 4,852

Short-term bank deposits BRI 3K -
— with original maturity within — REEIRR=E AR

three months 76,826 191,831

Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 121,383 236,459

202,710 433,142
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28. BANK BALANCES AND CASH (Continued) 28. RITERRBAET )
Bank balances carried interest at floating rates ranging from IRITHEBRIZTZHHAENT0.01% £ 1.89%
0.01% to 1.89% (2020: 0.01%) per annum. (2020% : 0.01%) &8
As at 31 March 2021, the short-term bank deposits with an MR2021FE3 8318 REHAE A=A
original maturity of three months or less amounted to AR B BRER1T 7 B A R 76,826,000 7T
RMB76,826,000 (2020: RMB191,831,000). Term deposits (20204 : AR 191,831,0007T) ° ‘F HifF
bear interest rates of 0.8% (2020: from 1.46% to 2.80%) R F F| E0.8% (20204 : H1.46% %
per annum. 2.80%) °
ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 29. BERRX
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20214 20204
3HA31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFIT ARBTF T
(Restated)
(K&&E7)
Accounts payable FERTER K 10,564 -
Payables for clients monies B PR 2 S IR =
10,564 3

The ageing analysis of the accounts payable based on date
of services rendered at the end of each reporting period is

REHRERIZEHIRS B 250 EA R
RERREBEDMTEAT

as follows:

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20214 2020 4F
3A31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥FT AREFIT
(Restated)
(&&E7)
0 — 60 days 02 60H 5,649 -
61 — 120 days 61£120H 196 -
121 — 180 days 1212180 H 113 =

Over 180 days 180 BHIA E 4,606
10,564 3

The average credit period on accounts payable is 90 days.

185

PR RRRZ FIEEHIR90E -



31.

ZHONGJIN TECHNOLOGY SERVICES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED 4 RHE RS EB R BB R A 7
2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT £ R

*
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBEmRNE
For the year ended 31 March 2021 /£ 20213 A31 HILFE

30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 30. HttENREREFER

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20214 2020 FF
3H31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT ARBFT
(Restated)
(5&&E7)
Other payables Hfh AT 3OR 1,848 10,446
Payroll payables B TE 30,588 -
Other tax payables H b T IE 6,253 =
38,689 10,446

CONTRACT LIABILITIES 31. EHEE
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20214 2020 FF
3A31H 3A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
(Restated)
(#&=E7)

Contract liabilities from customer arising E{EEBZREELEHNETES L
from value-added telecommunication BE

services 1,406 -

The Group received payments from customers based on
billing schedule as established in contracts.

The significant changes in contract liabilities as at 31 March
2021 are related to (i) acquisition of subsidiaries of
approximately RMB943,000 (Note 36) and (ii) revenue
recognised related to those contract liabilities and less billing
in advance of value-added telecommunication services.
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32. BORROWINGS 32. &€&
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20214 20204
3A31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT AREFT
(Restated)
(Fe=3%1))
Bank borrowings repayable: AEEMRITEE
Within one year —F R 29,000 -
29,000 —
Less: Amounts due within one year B HIRNREIBE T —FA
shown under current liabilities Ell = o PO (29,000) =
Amounts shown under non-current TIRIERBI B E NHFEIA
liabilities - -
The carrying amount of the above borrowings are at fixed LB ENREEREEFRTEWAARE
rate and are secured by certain accounts receivables of the EETRBER  ANEE—FEfEARNSE
Group, certain properties owned by and the personal TRERMNEZEEHBOE TYERRERD
guarantees provided by certain current and former directors EAEREER -
of a subsidiary of the Group.
The effective interest rates of the Group’s borrowings were AEEBEENERFERMNT
as follows:
20214
RMB’000
AR¥Fr
Effective interest rate (per annum): BERERE
Fixed-rate bank borrowings EBRITEE 4.4% to 5.35%

4.4% £5.35%
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33. LEASE LIABILITIES 33. HE&A®E
31 March 31 March
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 FF
3H31H 3H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBFT
(Restated)
(&=E:75))
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEEARE :
Within one year —E R 11,247 3,592
More than one year but not exceeding —F L BT BBMRE
two years 8,761 2,747
More than two years but not exceeding ~ FI4EIA_F{B BB T E
five years 5,933 -
More than five years AFMNE 2,076 =
28,017 6,339
Less: Amount due for settlement with B IR REEE TR 12@AR
12 months shown under current FIHBERMFIE
liabilities (11,247) (3,592)
Amount due for settlement after 12 W FIRIEREBBE TR 121EA
months shown under non-current % B HE BRI FRIE
liabilities 16,770 2,747
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34. DEFERRED TAXATION 34, IEIERIIE
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated MRNGEE I EARRERYRMES @ & FIEE

statements of financial position, certain deferred tax assets
and liabilities have been offset. The following is the analysis
of the deferred tax balances for financial reporting purposes.

MREERBBCDEE - AT RMMBERE
B AR IE R IR ERE DA ©

31 March 31 March
2021 2020
20215 2020 F
3A31H 3A31H
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBETIT
(Restated)
(&e&E5)
Deferred tax assets BRI A E 8,720 =
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBBE (23,818) =
(15,098) =
Fair value
adjustment of
Fairvalue intangible
adjustment assets arising
on accounts from
Unrealised and other acquisition of
profit  receivables subsidiaries Others Total
BRES KEMEAE
REMEK EENER
X8 HENAF EEAYE
BiEH ERE HE Hit st
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT ARETTL
At 1 April 2019 201964 A1 = = - - -
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss AR/ ( WE i) = = = - -
At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 202063 A31B R
2020418 - - - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHB A - 4,057 (25,005) (82) (21,030)
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss FA Eﬁﬁ/ Baik) 5,488 (825) 1,203 66 5,932
At 31 March 2021 2021463 A31H 5,488 3,232 (23,802) (16) (15,098)
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34. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

35.

The Group has unused tax losses of RMB490,863,000 and
RMB417,910,000 as at 31 March 2020 and 2021 which are
available for offset against future taxable profits. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised for the tax losses as
at 31 March 2020 and 2021 due to the unpredictability of
future profit stream. Included in unrecognised tax losses as
at 31 March 2021 are losses of RMB1,381,000,
RMB5,128,000 and RMB3,591,000 and RMB17,278,000
will expire in 2022, 2023, 2024 and 2025 (2020: Nil).

34, JRAEFIE (&)

AREBE N 20204 K 202143 A31 R KRS
AR EEE A R ¥ 490,863,000 7 K A R #
417,910,000 7T + E 7] K §5 K 2R FE 3R B %
Fl o BB R OE T m A AT FER M R
20204F % 202143 A 31 B ERFHIEE B
MRELEHIBEE - 20213 A31 BHK
ERFIBEIEEERE R 20224 « 20234
20244 R2025F Bl HIM BB AR
1,381,0007C + AR¥5,128,0007T « AR
3,591,000 & A K # 17,278,000 7t (2020
F ) o

SHARE CAPITAL 35. IR
Number of
shares Amount
R EE Kok |
RMB’'000
ARBTIT
(Restated)
(Fe=3%1))
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each A% 0.01 B TH TR
Authorised: VRRE ¢
As at 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020, M2019F4H1H ~ 20204
1 April 2020 and 31 March 2021 3H31H 2020F4H1H
202143 A31H 10,000,000,000 87,661
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR
As at 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020, R2019F 4818 202063 B
1 April 2020 318 - 2020F4H1H 3,550,496,836 29,848
Share issued BT 638,022,754 5,547
As at 31 March 2021 M2021%F3A31H 4,188,519,590 35,395

The ordinary shares entitle the holder to participate in
dividends, and to share in the proceeds of winding up the
Company in proportion to the number of and amounts paid
on the shares held.
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 36.

On 15 October 2020, the Company acquired 100% of
equity interests of KingNine Group for a consideration of
RMB1,012,224,000. KingNine Group has been accounted
for as subsidiaries of the Group since the acquisition date.
The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s strategy to
expand its business.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
KingNine Group as at the date of acquisition was as follows:

EBaot

72020410 A 15 8 » & A & 4 & KingNine
£ B M10%kE REARARK
1,012,224,000 7T ° KingNine &£ & & U & H
HEE AR AXREBENHB AR - B1T7Z
W RN EBETEEB R 2 —55 -

KingNine S2 B 69 ] & iRl B E M B ERWE
HER R FENT

Notes RMB’000
HtaF AR¥FT

Purchase consideration transferred: BRI MRE
Cash consideration RENRE @) 646,149
Contingent consideration HARE (b) -
Fair value of 638,022,754 ordinary shares RN TIE %717 638,022,754 i%
of the Company issued TRARE AT E (© 366,075
1,012,224
Fair value: NE -
Plant and equipment 5 K 35 4 24,836
Intangible assets EAE 185,947
Right-of-use assets EREEE 26,084
Equity instrument at fair value through BEAFEGTAEMEERERD
other comprehensive income EmTH 4,563
Deferred tax assets BIETRIBE = 4,057
Inventories ey 2,006
Accounts receivable FE U AR X 267,412
Prepayments and other receivables TE AN RIE B L At FE W R IE 289,593
Cash and bank balances e RIRITLHEER 45,771
Borrowings Epct (55,000)
Accounts payable FEfTRRER (12,249)
Other payables H At e 5RIE (276,766)
Contract liabilities EHBE (943)
Tax payable FERTFRIE (9,936)
Lease liabilities HEAE (26,084)
Deferred tax liabilities BLEHIBEE (25,087)
Net identifiable assets acquired BUEE AT RIEEFE 444,204
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M AR (d) (13,804)
Goodwill Bk 581,824
Total consideration RBEEEE 1,012,224
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued) 36. (50t

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of
subsidiaries is as follows:

BRAWBEHBARNRSRESTAOT

RMB’000
AR¥Fr
Cash and cash equivalents paid ENBReRBESEEY (390,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BRERE KRS EEY 45,771
Total net cash outflow FIR e AT (344,229)
Pro-forma wE

The acquired business contributed total revenue of
RMB264,368,000 and net profit of RMB65,835,000 to the
Group from their acquisition date to 31 March 2021. Had
these companies been consolidated from 1 April 2020, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income would have shown pro-forma
revenue of RMB507,892,000 and profit for the year of
RMB42,261,000.

Notes:

(a) The valuation of the consideration payables was carried out by an
independent professional qualified valuer. Cash consideration of
RMB390,000,000 was settled at the acquisition date. The remaining
cash consideration of RMB280,000,000 will be settled by the
Company in four instalments of RMB70,000,000 each on 31 July
2021, 31 July 2022, 31 July 2023 and 31 July 2024 as per the sale
and purchase agreement. The fair value of the consideration payables
as at 15 October 2020 is approximately RMB256,149,000, which is
based on the present value of the consideration payables discounted
using the discount rate of 4%.

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amount is the consideration
payables is RMB260,837,000.
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BB HWERABEE2021F3 A

31H

TtAAEEERMBRAZBRBARYE

264,368,000 7T & 41 ] A R ¥ 65,835,000
TT o MZZEAFIE 202054 B 1 BE&EE A
iR AlfraEa Rk EtmeARE RSB T~E
E A AR 507,892,000 7T M F A% F A
R # 42,261,000 7T °

Htat

BYEESEREEMEETENRENGE -
e KRB ARK 390,000,000 AU EE B HILE ©
# T IR & KB A K 280,000,000 T #512 B & 1
FBAR RS ME S H A R # 70,000,000 TR
202147 A31H 202247 A31H - 202347
H31 B %2024%7 A31 B ft %2020 10 A
15 AENRENATENR AR 256,149,000
T DERKAURERA%BRHOENRENE
BB -

R2021F3A31 8 ENREZEEERARE
260,837,000 7T ©
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Certain founders of the KingNine Group (the “Founders”) have
undertaken to the Company pursuant to the sale and purchase
agreement that the audited consolidated profit attributable to the
equity holders of the KingNine Group would not be less than:

(i) RMB60,000,000 for the financial year of the KingNine Group
commenced on 1 April 2019 and ended on 31 March 2020;

(ii) RMB90,000,000 for the financial year of the KingNine Group
commenced on 1 April 2020 and ending on 31 March 2021;

(iii) RMB120,000,000 for the financial year of the KingNine Group
commencing on 1 April 2021 and ending on 31 March 2022;

(iv) RMB 150,000,000 for the financial year of the KingNine Group
commencing on 1 April 2022 and ending on 31 March 2023;
and

(v) RMB 180,000,000 for the financial year of the KingNine Group
commencing on 1 April 2023 and ending on 31 March 2024.

In the event that the actual amount of the audited consolidated net
profit attributable to the equity holders of the KingNine Group for any
guarantee period is less than the guaranteed profit in respect of such
guarantee period, the Founders are expected to compensate the
Company by paying the Company an amount in cash equal to ((A —
B)/C) x D) - E

Where

A = the sum of: (i) the amount of the guaranteed profit in respect of
such guarantee period; and (i) the amount of the guaranteed profit in
respect of each guarantee period preceding such guarantee period;

B = the sum of: (i) the actual amount of the audited consolidated net
profit/net loss attributable to equity holders of the KingNine Group for
such guarantee period; and (ii) the actual amount of the audited
consolidated net profit/net loss attributable to equity holders of the
KingNine for each guarantee period preceding such guarantee period;

C = RMB600,000,000 (i.e. the sum of the amount of the guaranteed
profit in respect of each guarantee period);

D = RMB779,392,971 (i.e. the consideration less the amount of the
consideration paid, or payable, by the Company to Zhong Zhi Xin
Zhuo Capital Company Limited (“Zhongzhi Xinzhuo"), one of the
sellers);

E = the sum of the amount of any such compensation which has been

paid by the Founders in respect of each guarantee period preceding
such guarantee period.
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(b)

KingNine &£ & TRI# A (BB A D ERIZEE
Wk A AR Bl A& + KingNine # &35 8 A FEAG A
EEAENTEER

(i) KingNine ££[® 1 20194F 4 A 1 B #£ = 2020
FIANBIEN M B FENARK
60,000,000 JT.

(ii) KingNine & B F1 20204 4 5 1 H £ 2021
FIABNBIEMNBBEENARE
90,000,000 7T

(i) KingNinef B 202144 A1 H#BZE2022
FIANBLEMNTBRFENARE
120,000,000 JT

(iv) KingNine £ B #2022 4 A 1 H#£ = 2023
FIANBIENHMBFENARK
150,000,000 ¢ : K&

(v) KingNine 58 B f1 20234 5 1 H2 £ 2024
FIABNBIEMNMBEENARE
180,000,000 7T °

T EfAI AR & AR MY KingNine (R Bl = 5 B A FE(G
LEZER S HANER S BENZRFHEOR
FaF - EHAIMABGTARAGEE  FRE
MARAAR & X HHEZER (A - B)YC) x D) - EMY
BESHE

Hop

A = () Z R E R R E S M SRR - B (i) R R
HIR AT S REHRNRBEN ST M

B = () R & B A KingNine SE B &5 58 A &
HEEREAEN/BIRFROERSE : 5i)
%R 8 HATE A 54 78 B3R RO KingNine #2235 A A
[EEEERESET BRFENEREE M

C = AR # 600,000,000 7T ( BN & 1R 75 HA B AU (R &
EREFEZ)

D =AR#¥779,392,971 T (AR ERARFE M
5 F& [A1Zhong Zhi Xin Zhuo Capital Company
Limted([PREE=E] EHz—)XTHRES
)

E =8I A B 192 R B A SR E R ERA
BEESE M-
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(b)

Subject to the compliance of all applicable laws and regulations
(including the GEM Listing Rules and the Takeovers Code), in the
event that the sum of the actual amount of the audited consolidated
net profit attributable to equity holders of the KingNine for each
guarantee period is equal to or more than RMB1,000,000,000, it is
expected that:

i the Company would pay the sellers an additional consideration
in the amount of RMB150,000,000, subject to the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s grant of the approval for the listing of and
permission to deal in the additional shares, and would settle
such payment by issuing additional shares to one of the sellers
on the 10th business day after the date on which the audited
consolidated financial statements of the KingNine Group for
the last guarantee period is approved by the board of directors
of the KingNine; and

ii. such additional shares would be issued at an issue price per
share equal to the volume weighted average closing price per
share for the 30 consecutive trading days up to and including
the last trading day that is five business days immediately prior
to the date on which such additional shares are allotted and
issued.

The valuation of the contingent consideration was carried out by an
independent professional qualified valuer. The fair value of the
contingent consideration as at 31 March 2021 is insignificant, on the
basis that profit guarantee could be fulfilled by the KingNine Group in
respect of each guarantee period and that the audited consolidated
net profit attributable to equity holders of the KingNine for each
guarantee period equal to or more than RMB1,000,000,000 could not
be fulfilled by the KingNine Group.

The fair value of the shares issued was determined by reference to
their quoted market price of HK$0.66 at the date of acquisition.

The Group has elected to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree at the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

The acquisition-related costs of RMB13,391,000 have been expensed
and are included in administrative expenses. The attributable costs of
the issuance of the equity instruments of approximately RMB44,000
(equivalent to HK$50,000).

The gross amount of accounts and other receivables was

RMB566,367,000 and it is expected that certain portion of the
contractual amounts cannot be collected.
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Hfat -

)

FEESTAEAERRER (B1EGEM Emi Al
KASEE PR ARTIR T » S R7E HAR A9 KingNine
ERFE AELEERGAEANNERESE M
Z e B AR 1,000,000,000 7T © AR ¢

i. ARBEME-—EHXNEIMEARE
150,000,000 7T + M 78 £ 75 5 B 22 T #E /&
BIMRID ETIREE @ R REREH
fE KingNine & B B & B 247 & BT I KRB
KingNineZEEg# 2 BEF 10HE% B
FEBBITRINRG AT A X AFZHRIE - R

. ZERINR D IR TR ETEET - BT
BENEE30ER S REEEELFHI
Bt Bo 3k M3 1T 2 BRI REE X A RE
X5 R (BFEZR) BEAZEIMNEF IR
Mg -

BYEELERGEMSETHRARNENGBE -
R2021F3 A31 BXARBHRATFELTEK -
Ty £ R KingNine £ B 7] 5 & & (R HA R 4% K 355 )
AR - MKingNine& B S )X E K S R B A
KingNine 1z 15 5 A FE(h £ BAR AR & HE I F R Bk
#Bi A R 1,000,000,000 7T °

BEETENHAFEDLE2ENSE
M5B 0.66 B TTHEE °

RUE B HE

AEERRERREMERTASGREKESE
HpEEFENE RSN L HIF BRI
JTHIFEE R R -

Ur BB RE AN AN A R #5 13,391,000 T E F A% 2 I
SPATTERRY « B#ITHETARERANABAR
# 44,000 7t (FH& 7 50,0004 7T )

ENERRAEMENRERERARR
566,367,000 7T * BIEMM AW EIE T HH AL
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37. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Hong Kong

The Group participates in the MPF Scheme established under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in
December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of trustees.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group contributes 5%
of the relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme subject only
to the maximum level of payroll costs of HK$30,000 per
employee, which contribution is matched by the employees.

The PRC

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of a
state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the
PRC government. The Group is required to contribute a
specified percentage of payroll costs as determined by
respective local government authority to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is
to make the specified contributions under the scheme.
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38. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flow were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statements of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

BHEBDELERENER

TRHAVNAEBRY K EHELAENE
B BREASNIFRSEY - MKEHEL
WEBERZEHREREEHIARARRCRER
ERAEENGERERERD BRAMEE
@Ji_giiﬁét}mui °

Lease Consideration

Borrowings liabilities payable Total
B8 HESE EARE et
(Note 32) (Note 33) (Note 36)
(Hiz£32) (Hiz£33) (Kiz36)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARMTFT ARMTFT ARMTF T
At 1 April 2019 (Restated) R201964A1H
(e &751) - 9,247 - 9,247
Interest expenses AMERT - (183) - (183)
Repayment Bg - (3,418) - (3,418)
Addition NE = = = =
Exchange difference MEH =58 - 693 - 693
At 31 March 2020 and R 2020563 A31H
1 April 2020 (Restated) K% 2020564 A 1H
(& =51) - 6,339 - 6,339
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B B A 7 55,000 26,084 256,149 337,233
Interest expenses AMERY 9214 811 4,688 6,413
Interest paid BEASFIE (914) (811) = (1,725)
Repayment E= (26,000) (9,807) - (35,807)
Addition INE = 6,660 - 6,660
Exchange difference ME =58 - (1,259) - (1,259)
At 31 March 2021 R2021 %63 A31H 29,000 28,017 260,837 317,854
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions detailed in notes 36 and 43
to the consolidated financial statements, the Group had the
following transactions with related parties during the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

The executive Directors are the key management personnel
of the Group. Details of their remuneration are disclosed in
Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged over years.

The capital structure of the Group consists of bank balances
and cash, borrowings and equity attributable to owner of
the Company, comprising share capital, retained profits and
other reserves.

The Directors review the capital structure on a periodical
basis. As part of this review, the Directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
Based on recommendations of the Directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues and share buy-backs as well as
the issue of new debts or the redemption of existing debt.
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40. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

A subsidiary of the Group (i.e. ZZCF) is regulated by the
Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”) and is
required to comply with certain minimum capital
requirements according to the rules of the SFC. The required
liquid capital according to the rules of the SFC was
HK$3,000,000 as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.
The management monitors ZZCF's liquid capital regularly to
ensure it meets the minimum liquid capital requirement in
accordance with the Securities and Futures (Financial
Resources) Rules adopted by the SFC.

The gearing ratio is computed by dividing the Group’s
borrowings by the Group’s equity as follow:

40.

EXAMER®)

REE—FHBAR (AP EEADERE)
XEHFLMPEEHERZE e ([BE2])R
T BARBEIRZESRAETETREER
FIE o 202143 A31H K 202043 A 31
H BERAUMAEZIRDIELRR
3,000,000 7T - EEETHEEPEEARN
TEREZRBERN  UBREBRBREES
Bz (BHFRAE (FMHRER) KA - me
HIERBERIRE °

BREERARENEERANEENEDS
AHET

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETFT ARBTIT

(Restated)

(&e&E51)

Borrowings BE 29,000 -
Total equity AR 1,015,631 648,630
Gearing ratio BELL R 2.9% Nil £
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 41. €@MIT H
Categories of financial instruments R ITEER
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR F T AREFIT
(Restated)
(Fe=51)
Financial assets SREE
Equity instrument at FVTOCI BRAFE A LM 2 ERES
KRS T A 1,328 =
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABENEMEE 5,061 3,275
Amortised cost B PR 553,485 655,705
559,874 658,980
Financial liabilities sRas
Financial liabilities at amortised cost WK AT EN AR 360,854 16,788

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments comprise of bank
balances and cash, loan receivables, deposits, accounts
receivable and other receivables, convertible loan receivable
at FVTPL, financial assets at FVTPL, cash held on behalf of
clients, accounts payable, other payables and accruals,
consideration payable, borrowings and lease liabilities.
Details of the financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risks (currency risk, interest rate risk and
other price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on
how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely
and effective manner. There has been no change to the
types of the Group’s exposure in respect of financial
instruments or the manner in which it manages and
measures the risks.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk
Currency risk

The Group's exposure to currency risk attributable to loan
receivables, deposits, accounts receivable the convertible
loan receivable at FVTPL, other assets and receivables, bank
balances and other payables and accruals which are
denominated in the currencies other than the functional
currency of the entity to which they related. The

.ERTH®

MHREREEREREEE)

45 E B
B

AEEEEAREERBNEEEIAIINEE
SHEMRKER - B - BUREN  RAF
Bt A\BEMBRATRRER - R EER
FEWRIA ~ SRITAERR M EL At 5 SRR I AT
ERELNERAR EREEEWERL
R - ARESR K B A ROt R BUE Z it

management manages and monitors this exposure to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency RIEER - AEB AN ENEEEE
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the rEBaENERENT :

end of the reporting period are as follows:

Liabilities Assets
=L EE
20214 2020 4F 20214 2020 F

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT AR¥FR ARETT

(Restated) (Restated)
(&&&7)) (#2&E7)
US$ ETT - 5,209 32,350 290,928
HK$ BT 4,391 11,579 84,992 352,996
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on
a 5% increase/decrease in functional currency of respective
entities against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk
internally to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated
monetary items and adjusts their translation at the end of
the reporting period for a 5% change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates an increase in post-
tax profit, where functional currency of respective foreign
entities had weakened 5% against the relevant foreign
currency. For a 5% strengthening of functional currency of
respective entities against the relevant foreign currency,
there would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit
and the balances below would be negative.

41. €RMITEH &)

MBEREEBERBR )

i E R ()
E¥mEp (E)
BT

A TSRES T IRIEAEER 2 RN
HIEBINE 2 FHEBRES%ETE ° 5% &
REEEEEABERRREINERRKE
BREEINEE RSB EEMER 2
FREL X - HREDHMEBFENINEGHE
ZHARZNERIRE AR IRERIL5%
ZINBERBERENFEZRE o U TIEH
RRBRBRENIE N - EPERAEINERD
WEEE® L HEINERES% - MEEERE
DB L HEINETES% - B E A
EEREMARZZE  MATEHERE -

uUs$ HK$
EH BT
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREFT ARBFT
2021 20215

Decrease in profit for the year F 3 ek > 1,351 3,365

2020 (Restated) 2020 F (RREF)
Decrease in profit for the year F R AR A 11,929 14,519
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances (see note 28 for
details). The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of interest rates on bank
balances and deposits.

The management considers the cash flow interest rate risk
in relation to variable-rate bank balances is insignificant and
therefore no sensitivity analysis on such risk has been
prepared.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from held
for trading investments. The Group’s equity price risk is
mainly concentrated on equity instruments operating in
securities and brokerage and internet industry sectors
quoted in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and National
Association of Securities Dealers Automated Quotations. The
Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising from the
convertible loan receivable at FVTPL.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based
on the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date. If
the equity prices of the held for trading investments had
been 5% higher/lower (2020: 5%), post-tax profit for the
year ended 31 March 2021 would increase/decrease by
RMB211,000 (2020: post-tax loss would decrease/increase
by RMB137,000) as a result of the changes in fair value.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

Before accepting any new customer, the Group uses an
internal credit scoring system to assess the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by
customer. Limits and scoring attributed to customers are
reviewed twice a year. Other monitoring procedures are in
place to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. The Group’s major customers are mostly
reputable public entities.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 23% of the
total accounts receivable was due from the Group’s largest
customer and 62% of the total accounts receivable was due
from the Group’s top five customers as at 31 March 2021.

At the end of each reporting period, the carrying amount of
the respective recognised financial assets of the Group as
stated in the consolidated statements of financial position,
respectively best represents the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk which will cause a financial loss to the Group
due to failure to discharge an obligation by the
counterparties.

203

. R TH®

MBEREEBERBR )

1= B /m B2 K 6l B 7P 1

ERZEMAFHEF A AKESERAAE
FEENDEGHEBEETPNEEER X
REZBEFPHEERE - RTEFPZEEL
REFDBFRFITMR - HBEEREFET
BE - URERRIBRETE R @A MET -
AEENEEEPAZHAEERINAR

=
B

R2021F3A31H AREREREE
23% REAEBRAR S REUER BT 2
62% REAEBRARE  WASEBES
RIEERE -

REREMR - AEEDRINEGE T BN
REJINBHECER TR EENREERE
RTAHF I REBTEEMBSARER
RPBRINAEERSEERR



41.

ZHONGJIN TECHNOLOGY SERVICES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED 4 RHE RS EB R BB R A 7
2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT £ R

—

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 /£ 20213 A31 HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk for accounts receivable,
the management of the Group has delegated a team
responsible for determination of credit limits, credit
approvals and other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, upon application of HKFRS 9, except for items that
are subject to individual evaluation, which are assessed for
impairment individually, the remaining accounts receivable
are grouped under a provision matrix according to internal
credit rating based on shared credit risk characteristics by
reference to repayment histories for recurring customers and
current past due exposure for the new customers. In
addition, the Group performs impairment assessment under
ECL model upon application of HKFRS 9 on accounts
balances individually or based on provision matrix for the
year ended 31 March 2021, and performs impairment
assessment under expected credit loss model for the years
ended 31 March 2020 and 2021, respectively. Details of the
quantitative disclosures are set out below in this note.

For other receivables, management makes periodic collective
assessments as well as individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables based on historical
settlement records and past experience. The directors of the
Company believe that there is no material credit risk
inherent in the Group’s outstanding balance of other
receivables. As such, the directors of the Company
considered the risk over ECL to be immaterial after
considering counterparty financial background and
creditability. Accordingly, the loss allowance of other
receivables is measured under 12m ECL in respect of other
receivables, amounting to RMB3,000 (2020: RMB Nil) as at
31 March 2021.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. TR R @)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

Before granting the loan advances, the management of the
Group has obtained an understanding to the credit
background of the debtors and undertaken an internal
credit approval process. The management closely monitored
the subsequent settlement of the individual loan. The loss
allowance is individually measured at an amount equals to
12m ECL since as there had been no significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. In determining the ECL
for these assets, the Directors have taken into account the
financial position of the counterparties, the industries they
operate, as well as their latest available operating results, in
estimating the probability of default of each of these
financial assets occurring within their respective loss
assessment time horizon, as well as the loss upon default in
each case. Based on assessment by the Directors, the loss
given default is low by reference to value of collateral and
repayment histories of the debtors. The Directors consider
the 12m ECL for loan receivables is insignificant.

Credit risk on bank balances is limited because the
counterparties are reputable banks with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit agencies. The Group
assessed 12m ECL for bank balances by reference to
information relating to probability of default and loss given
default of the respective credit rating grades published by
external credit rating agencies. Based on the average loss
rates, the 12m ECL for bank balances is considered to be
insignificant.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The Group's internal credit risk grading assessment
comprises the following categories:

41. €RMIT EH &)

MHREREEREREEE)

1= B B2 R B 1B = A (48

AEBENABEERBRFEFEEEATER

Al

Category Description Accounts receivable Other receivables

LYl 4 A FE W R X H At FE W R IR

Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL
and does not have any past-due credit-impaired
amounts

(Ve HFEFTNEORRERIE - BXEEMR > HRBEEER 1218 ARBEEERE
BHATRIR — WEEERIE

Watch list The counterparty frequently repays after  Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL
due dates but usually settle in full credit-impaired

BixeE HFEFLERINBHRRER RS 2 HRBEEER 12 ARBEEERE
BEUBE — UEEERE

Doubtful There have been significant increases in Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL — not
credit risk since initial recognition credit-impaired credit-impaired
through information developed
internally or external resources

Tkt i B AR B B R S SRR AR RN > HIRHEEERE 2 HRBEEER
EERR BV SRR REEIE N — WEEERE — WEEERE

Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is Lifetime ECL — credit-  Lifetime ECL — credit-
credit-impaired impaired impaired

&8 BRBRREEHREERE > HIRHEEERE > HIRHBEEEE

— EERE — EERE
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. €EWMITEH )
Financial risk management objectives and BREREEEERBE®)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1= B fe R R E 7 (2)
The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of the TRV AEBBETEBEEBRERTIEHY
Group's financial assets which are subject to ECL S REENEERRLRAE
assessment:
Financial assets at External Internal Gross carrying amount
amortised cost Notes credit rating credit rating 12m or lifetime ECL as at 31 March
BB ATTEMN
CREE M SHEBEEFR ABEEFR 2@ARZHEHEEEFE R3A3MBNERELE

20204 20214
RMB’000  RMB’000
AREFIT ARETrR

(Restated)
(#&=51)
Accounts receivable 23 N/A Note Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 3,210 311,636
JE U BR R TiER BiEE FHRBEEER (BAEER)
Deposits and other 24 N/A Note 12m ECL 203,664 26,762
receivables
B AR YA AR BiEE REARBREEER
Loan receivables 21 N/A Note 12m ECL 15,686 12,690
U E R NEA (i3 12 ATESEEERE
Bank balance 28 IG* Note 12m ECL 433,142 202,710
RITEEER RER/A* s REARREEER
* Investment Grade — The Standard & Poor’s rating of the Group’s * RERE — FEEE BRITIRF IR EE BT
significant bank accounts R
Note: As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group applies Kz - ERAKEEERREEMN 27  AEEGE
internal credit rating for its customers. The following table provides EFEANSEEFR - TRIEHA BN
information about the exposure to credit risk for accounts receivable A RIES REAMEKRFE(HBIER2HESE
and deposits and other receivables which are assessed based on BERERER 128 A EREEERETE)
lifetime ECL provision matrix and 12m ECL, respectively. R EERBAENEF
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. €T H (%)
Financial risk management objectives and BXRKREEEERBEEK®)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1= B f2 R E 1 (2)
31 March 2020 31 March 2021
2020F3H31H 2021%3H318
Deposits
Average Accounts  and other ~ Average  Accounts Other
Internal Credit rating REEEFR lossrate  receivable  receivables  lossrate receivable receivables
e REM Hith
THBEE  ERER EUGUE EHEBEE  BRERR  ERRE
RMB RMB RMB RMB
ARE ARE AR AR
(Restated)  (Restated)
(&=&5)  (£=350)
Receivables carried forward from 5 ENTBA A4
acquired of subsidiaries* SR R TIA * 0.00% - - 0.00% 82,421 19,196
Low risk Ve 0.05% 3210 203,664 0.05% 211,595 7,566
Watch list R L8 1.15% - - 1.15% 17,620 -
3,210 203,664 311,636 26,762
*  The accounts receivable and deposits and other receivables acquired in * BB GIERERERERIU R ITe RE M EWR I TE
a business combination were initially measured at fair value. There is no WL -TFAEETE o (o s 18 1 Bk A8 (B Rl P H {5
material difference had it been carried at gross carrying amount less ECL EEREEIRRTHFEENLA < Bt - FREE
allowance since acquisition. Accordingly, no expected credit loss BRI A AR (A TR B 5 BB 1R /R 1 -
allowance is recognised for this balance during the year.
The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical fhFTE B R TR B W RN BT F BN A
observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors BECBRENEMGG  YHBEARKETE
and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is PR ANSKEE I BN AI 1S RO BT IE M B BHE L
available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is 2. BEEEGTHRN DA - ARERE B
regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant TEEWHIBHRB AR B ER
information about specific debtors is updated.
As at 31 March 2021, the Group provided RMB310,000 R2021F3A31H  AEERBEZEHES
(2020: nil) impairment allowance for accounts receivable, FEEEEREEERERRIGTRARE
based on the lifetime ECL provision matrix. 310,000 7T (20204 : &) BB (EHHE -
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. €EWMITEH )
Financial risk management objectives and BREREEEERBE®)
policies (Continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued) 1= B fe R R E 7 (2)
As at 31 March 2021, the Group provided RMB3,000 (2020: 2021563 A31H - AKERE 12 ATE
RMB Nil) impairment allowance for deposits and other HEEEBORIGIZS R A EKIETR
receivables respectively, based on the 12m ECL. AR 3,0007T (20204 : ARBZIT) KR
B -
The following table shows a movement in lifetime ECL that TRITREARR B AR E R KT AR
has been recognised for accounts receivable under the a2 HITEHA = B famy et &) o
simplified approach.
Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL
(not credit- (credit-
impaired) impaired) Total
2 HITRH 2 HATEH
FEBE FEEE
(Y EEERE) (EERE) et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFIT ARETFIT AREFIT

As at 31 March 2019 (Restated) M2019F3 A31H
(ge=5) = = =
Expected credit losses recognised B HERTE (S EEHE = - -

As at 31 March 2020 (Restated) M2020F3 A31H

€c==7)) = = =
Provision of expected credit loss TEHREEEEEE 310 = 310
As at 31 March 2021 R20219F3 A31H 310 - 310

209



ZHONGJIN TECHNOLOGY SERVICES GROUP COMPANY LIMITED 4 RHE RS EB R BB R A 7
2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT £ R

—

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBEHRRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 /£ 20213 A31 HILFE

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and

policies (Continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment (Continued)

The following tables show reconciliation of loss allowances
that has been recognised for deposits and other receivables.

41. €RMIT EH &)

MHREREEREREEE)

1= B B2 R B 1B = A (48

TRINRE IR S K H A FEUGR IR RE R #O &5
BRI -

Lifetime ECL

(credit-
12m ECL impaired) Total

2 HITEHA

1218 A FEBR
BHREEER (EERE) At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFIT ARETFIT ARETFIT

As at 31 March 2019 (Restated)

Expected credit losses recognised

201943 A31H
(&&=51))
EERBESEEEE

As at 31 March 2020 (Restated)

M2020%F3 A31H

(F&E5) - — —
Provision of expected credit loss ~ JBHAZEES1BH & 3 - 3
As at 31 March 2021 7R2021%F3 A31H 3 - 3
Liquidity risk mEBE LR

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash

flows.
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41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 41. TRTH 4w
Financial risk management objectives and BREREEEERBE®)
policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) mEELEE (F)
The following table details the Group’s remaining TRFAVNEBIETESHBEZRTNEY
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. FEH - ZRTIBESRABEZAIRIRS
The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted MERAEENHERNMNAZZE B R
cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date Bl o XBIENBERASIHES RS °
on which the Group can be required to pay. The table
includes both interest and principal cash flows.
Repayable
Weighted  on demand Total
average or within More than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate one year 1-5 years 5years  cash flows amount
g RERS AERRE
THAE RA-FhEE 1855 BiB5E REAH REE
% RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
% AREFTT ARETT ARETT AREFr ARETR
At 31 March 2021 ®2021%3A318
Accounts payable R - 10,564 - - 10,564 10,564
Other payables and HERFER
accruals EER - 32,436 - - 32,436 32,436
Consideration payable EARE 4 70,000 194,324 - 264,324 260,837
Borrowings e 5.35 29,000 - - 29,000 29,000
Lease liabilities BEGE 5.5 13,765 15,141 2,877 31,783 28,017
155,765 209,465 2,877 368,107 360,854
At 31 March 2020 1202053 A31R
(Restated) (&&5)
Accounts payable IR - 3 - - 3 3
Other payables and HERFIER
accruals T ER - 10,446 - - 10,446 10,446
Lease liabilties HERE 282 3,699 2,774 - 6,473 6,339
14,148 2,774 - 16,922 16,788
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42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(i) Fair value of the Group's financial assets (i)
and financial liabilities that are measured
at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are measured at
fair value at the end of the year. The information
about how the fair values of these financial assets are
determined (in particular, the valuation techniques and
inputs used) are disclosed in respective notes.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated statement of
financial position approximate their fair value.

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020,
there were no transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and

Level 3.

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2021

42. TRWMIT R AFEE

AEEREHLEEUATE
HE>EMEERSBARS
ATE

AEBEZETERMEENRFERZA
FEFE - BRFeMEEATFEN
BEIE(LERAAMETER2E)
BERENERRENSMEE -

EERREAMBIRNR P IREHK
ALHENERMEENERBBEIRE
BERENFERES -

#H =202145 K2020563 A318 Ik F

B 8% F_RKKRB=RZEL

202143 H31H2Z R FEER

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
& et B= et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT AR®FT AR%TrT
Financial assets SRMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL 2 AFEFFAEZEA
SREE 5,061 - - 5,061
Unquoted equity BRAFEFAEME
instrument at FVTOCI T L 2 O R SR A
%TA - - 1,328 1,328
5,061 - 1,328 6,389
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42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF 42. EMIAZAVEFE®

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(i) Fair value of the Group's financial assets (i) XEERLEMEEUQNFE
and financial liabilities that are measured FTEzEREERSRAEZ
at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued) DNEEE)

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 March 2020 20203 A31Hz2 A FEER
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F— FE_R F=R #a
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTFIT AREFT AREKEFT ARETT
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(geE3) (g E5) (geE7) (&eE5)
Financial assets SEMEE
Financial assets at FVTPL 1R A {EF ABZRAY
TREE 3,275 - - 3,275
(ii) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value (i) F=RAFEFTENHIER
measurements
2021 2020 4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TFIT ARBTFT
(Restated)
(#eE5)
Unquoted equity investment mREERNE
Opening balance R4 o4 - -
Acquired from the acquisition of B W B B A A Uk B
subsidiary 4,563 -
Total gain in other comprehensive REMZER S 2 W 4258
income (3,235) -
Closing balance HAAR g 1,328 -
Convertible loan receivable FEM AT AR B K
Opening balance HRR 4 84 - 144,097
Repayment Bz - (7,323)
Change in fair value NEHEES - 51,032
Disposal HE - (193,146)
Exchange difference P& H =58 - 5,340
Closing balance HaR it e - =
Change in fair value for the year STABENEEATEES
included in profit or loss - 51,032
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42. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF 42. EMIAZAVEFE®
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
(ii) Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value (i) F=RAFETENEEREE)
measurements (Continued)
Significant Relationship of
Fairvalueasat  Fairvalue  Valuation technique(s) and unobservable unobservable inputs
Financial assets 31 March hierarchy  key input(s) input(s) to fair value
TEESHH
SREE WIAMNBAZATE AVEER #EFERIESH EXTIERSY ATENBE
2005 2001%
RMB'000  RMB'000
ANEETFTT AREFR
Unquoted equity N/A 1328 Level3 Market approach — in this Market multiples  The higher the market
investment at approach, the appraisal value is multiples, the higher
FVTOCI — 12.14% based on the market fair value
equity investment in capitalisation of the entities in
a private company in similar industries with Discount of lack of  The higher the discount,
the PRC consideration of marketability marketability the lower fair value
of discount
BRATESTAEMZE  TEA 1328 £=4 MimE— EZAEN  HEEE THEH ERmSREEER A
KamEREEs TERERERNTENME FEEE
RE — R E—fd B R RERATSRE
TLARRIH12.14% i3 A Vi oA FREs  ATEYE
ERRE
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COMPANY

Details of the Group’s principal subsidiaries at the end of the

43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE

reporting period are set out below:

43. XRAWNHBEAAFE

BERRAEB T ZMBARNFEETIW

T

Particulars of
issued share

Place of capital/
establishment/ registered  Attributable of interest held
Name of subsidiary operations capital by the Group as at 31 March  Principal activities
BRTRE/ M3A318
WEARERE R/ EEw%  EMEREE AEBFEERNG TEER
2021 % 20204
% %

Z7ZCI Corporate Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$10,141,140 100 100  Provision of corporate advisory
and investment advisory
services

PEERCRBERRAA 0 10,141,140 T R ERER RIRE BRRG

ZZC| Credit Limited Hong Kong HK$10 100 100 Money lending

PEEREEFRAR 00 1037t fEE

Z77C] Corporate Services Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100 100  Provision of corporate services
and money lending

REERCERBER AR 00 13T RECERBRES

ZZ Capital International (US) LLC ~ USA - 100 100 Money lending

7Z Capital International (US) LLC - BE

Asian Capital (Qianhai) Investment  The PRC US$400,000 100 100 Investment holding
Management Limited* (note 5)

AAEEDRERERGERE HH 400,000 7T REZR
BRAR (KizE5)

KingNine Holdings Limited Cayman Islands US$1,548 100 N/A  Investment holding

KingNine Holdings Limited HEHS 1,548 % 7T TEA  REER

Kingwisoft Technology Co., Ltd.*  The PRC US$10,000,000 100 N/A  Investment holding
(notes 1 and 5)

SERERRERAR H 10,000,000 7T TER REER
(Brx1%5)

Dalian Kingwisoft Technology Co., The PRC RMB 100,000,000 100 N/A  Data centre services and
Ltd.* (“DaLian Kingwisoft") back-office services
(note 1)

RESZRENMBEROHAERRA  HE ARE NER  BEPORERE SRS
(TRELE(Hz1) 100,000,000 /¢
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 43. XD T KB D TS &)

COMPANY (Continued)
Particulars of
issued share
Place of capital/
establishment/ registered  Attributable of interest held
Name of subsidiary operations capital by the Group as at 31 March  Principal activities
BRTRE/ M3A318
WEAREE R/ EEuwE  EMERFHE AEBFSERMGT TEER
20215 20205
% %
Shenzhen Kingwisoft Data Services The PRC RMB33,500,000 100 N/A  Data centre services and
Co., Ltd.* back-office services
Ry e ZRE BERE i AEH TER  BBPURBRE SRS
BRAH 33,500,000 7
Qingdao Nanyou Information The PRC RMB10,000,000 100 N/A  Back-office services
Technology Co., Ltd.* (note 2)
EEEBERRIMERAR g AEH TER  RERK
(Hix2) 10,000,000 7
Dalian Kingwisoft Internet Service ~ The PRC RMB2,000,000 100 N/A  Back-office services
Outsourcing Co., Ltd.* (formerly
known as Dalian Zhiyun
Consulting Services Co., Ltd.)
REEEREBRREINE i AEH TER  RERE
BRAA (AIBAEEEBAR 2,000,0007¢
BERDA)
Chengdu Rongzhi Hudong The PRC RMB10,000,000 100 N/A  Back-office services
Technology Co., Ltd.* (note 2)
HARE BB ERAR i AEH TER  #RERK
(Hix2) 10,000,000 7¢
Wuhan Kingwisoft Technology The PRC RMB10,000,000 100 N/A Back-office services
Co., Ltd.* (note 2)
RESEREMRERAA i AEH TER  #RERK
(Hix2) 10,000,000 7
Leshan Kingwisoft Technology Co., The PRC RMB10,000,000 100 N/A  Back-office services
Ltd.* (note 2)
I ZREMRBERAT i AEH TER  RERK
(Hix2) 10,000,000 7
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 43. QAT KB D BFEE &)

COMPANY (Continued)
Particulars of
issued share
Place of capital/
establishment/ registered  Attributable of interest held
Name of subsidiary operations capital by the Group as at 31 March  Principal activities
BRITRA/ M3A318
WEARER R/ EEHY  aAMERFHE AEBFEERMG TEER
20215 20205
% %
Kunshan Kingwisoft Information ~ The PRC RMB10,000,000 100 N/A  Back-office services
Technology Co., Ltd.* (note 2)
RLUEEEEMRARRDA i AEH TER  ReRE
(Hiix2) 10,000,000 7
Chengdu Kingwisoft Data Services  The PRC RMB10,000,000 100 N/A  Back-office services
Co., Ltd.* (note 2)
AL ZRBEBREERLRA & AEH TER RERE
(Hiz2) 10,000,000 7
Luzhou Kingwisoft Technology The PRC RMB10,000,000 100 N/A  Back-office services
Co., Ltd.* (note 2)
ENeERMESBEREERAR HE AEH TER  ReRE
(Hfiz2) 10,000,000 7
Xiangyang Kingwisoft Internet The PRC RMB10,000,000 100 N/A  Back-office services
Technology Co., Ltd.* (note 2)
EGeSEMBNEERAR  TE AEH TER  RERE
(Hiz2) 10,000,000 7
Dalian Zhiyin Internet Technology ~ The PRC RMB28,000,000 60 N/A Back-office services
Co., Ltd.* (note 2)
("Dalian Zhiyin")
AERREMBRURERRE  F ARH TER #%ekE
(HreE2) [REER]) 28,000,000 70
Mianyang Kingwisoft Zhiyuan The PRC RMB10,000,000 60 N/A  Back-office services
Internet Service Co., Ltd.*
(note 2)
e EBUR TR ARY HE ARE NER  Bek®
BRRA(HE2) 10,000,000 7¢
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)

note 1: Dalian Kingwisoft and its subsidiaries (collectively the “DaLian
Kingwisoft Group”), which are among the entities acquired in the
Acquisition, engage in business of provision of value-added
telecommunications services that is subject to restrictions imposed by
relevant PRC laws on foreign investors of foreign-invested
telecommunication enterprises which engage in the provision of
value-added telecommunications services.

Due to such restrictions under the relevant PRC laws, and as advised
by the PRC legal adviser of the Company, it was not viable for
KingNine to directly hold any equity ownership in the Dalian
Kingwisoft Group. Instead, KingNine, in line with common practice in
industries in the PRC subject to restrictions imposed by the PRC laws
on relevant foreign investors and/or foreign ownership on foreign-
invested enterprises, achieves effective control over, and receives the
entire economic benefits generated by the DaLian Kingwisoft Group
through a series of contractual agreements entered between
Kingwisoft Technology Co., Ltd.* (& 2 & & &} #% & R 2 &) (the
“WFOE"), an indirect wholly foreign owned subsidiary of KingNine
established in the PRC, on one hand, and each of the Dalian
Kingwisoft and its registered shareholders, on the other hand (the
“Contractual Arrangements”).

As a result of the Contractual Arrangements, the Group has rights to
variable returns from its involvement with the DalLian Kingwisoft
Group, has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the Dalian Kingwisoft Group, and is considered to have control over
the DaLian Kingwisoft Group. Consequently, the DaLian Kingwisoft
Group is considered to be subsidiaries of the Group and the financial
statements of the DaLian Kingwisoft Group are included in the
Group's consolidated financial statements from 15 October 2020, the
date of the Completion.

However, there are uncertainties regarding the interpretation and
application of current and future PRC laws and regulations which
could affect the Company’s ability to exercise control over the DaLian
Kingwisoft Group, its right to receive substantially all of the economic
interest generated by the DaLian Kingwisoft Group, and its ability to
consolidate the financial results of the DaLian Kingwisoft Group into
the Group's consolidated financial statements. The Company believes
that, based on the legal opinion obtained from the Company’s PRC
legal adviser, the Contractual Arrangements are legally binding and
enforceable and do not violate current PRC laws and regulations.

note 2: These are subsidiaries of DaLian Kingwisoft.

note 3: The above summary lists only the subsidiaries which, in the opinion of
the Directors, principally affected the results or assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

Directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

note 4: Except for KingNine Holdings Limited, the above principal subsidiaries
are all held indirectly by the Company.

note 5: These are wholly foreign owned enterprises.

note 6:None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end of
the year.

* English name for identification only
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 43. QAT KB D BFEE &)

COMPANY (Continued)
Details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries that have material A EAJEIERERIER BB A TR
non-controlling interests 5
The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned TRIREEE AR ERNAEFIESD
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling BB ARBEE -
interests:
Proportion of
ownership
Place of interests and (Loss)/profit
incorporation and  voting rights held allocated to Accumulated
principal place of by non-controlling non-controlling non-controlling
Name of subsidiary business interests interests interests
I IR R 2R
o 1A B S itk B % BENREE SsREFERER
MEAR B FEEEME RIBRZERELLHI # (E518), SR F Rt EEZERER
20214 20215 2021
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AE®FT AE®FT
Dalian Zhiyin Dalian 40% 1,023 12,921
NEER NiE
Individual immaterial subsidiaries with non-controlling interests (300) 2,806
A IFERERERI EEARME QA
723 15,727
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43. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 43, ARQRIMKIEB A BFE @)
COMPANY (Continued)
Summerised financial information in respect of the Group's EBBAE A AEERESHANEENB AR
subsidiary that has material non- controlling interests is set M AR EZE ST o LA T B8 E R
out below. The summarised financial information below ZHEHIIARFTTEBRAN R RIELHENEEE
represents amounts before intragroup eliminations.
Dalian Zhiyin REER
20214
RMB’000
AR¥FT
Current assets MENEE 32,835
Non-current assets JEMENE E 3,566
Current liabilities mENBE (4,223)
Non-current liabilities EmEBIE -
Equity attributable to owners of the Company RRAREE AELER 19,307
Non-controlling interests of Dalian Zhiyin RERRIFERAE R 12,871
Revenue WA 26,398
Expenses =53 (23,841)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 4 A5 K1 & 2 W 25 42 58 2,557
Profit and total comprehensive income attributable ZNA F1EAE A B @A R 2 E WK 4858
to owners of the Company 1,534
Profit and total comprehensive income attributable A& %7 $R IEPE AR AE 25 PR % A R 2
to the non-controlling interests of Dalian Zhiyin g ] 1,023
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year & 79 Fl| &2 2 M Uk 25 42 58 2,557
Net cash outflow from operating activities RESEENIE S R R (4,708)
Net cash outflow from investing activities KEETHEe T 5 (552)
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEEHR S TAFRE -
Net cash outflow WEMHEFEE (5,260)
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44, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

—

44, KRR Tz MBRR KRR HEE

20214 2020 4F 20194
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Wit AR¥EFr AREKEFT ARKETFT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&&&E75)) C<=27l))
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries KB A RIHIRE 43 1,032,276 20,839 19,566
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note) &Y B A w1z 8 (MfaL) 179,001 - -
Plant and equipment T K 3% 26 45 -
Total non-current assets FRBEELLE 1,211,303 20,884 19,566
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note) &Y E A 72038 (K1) = 570,994 581,565
Other assets and receivables (note) — E & &= R JE 3K 18
(K1zE) 396 459 355
Bank balances and cash (note) IRITHEH RIS (FaE) 1,092 3,472 3,725
Total current assets RBEELR 1,488 574,925 585,645
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals HitEN AN ETER 919 8,687 313
Amounts due to subsidiaries D ENGIE ] 17,681 9,752 =
Consideration payables ERRE 70,000 = =
Total current liabilities BB EEEE 88,600 18,439 313
Net current (liabilities)/assets RE(BEEE),
EEFRE (87,112) 556,486 585,332
Non-current liabilities FknBERE
Consideration payables ERRE 190,837 - -
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBERE 190,837 = -
Net assets EERE 933,354 577,370 604,898
Equity =
Equity attributable to owners RRAREE AELER
of the Company
Share capital % 35,395 29,848 29,848
Reserves HE 897,959 547,522 575,050
Total Equity EREE 933,354 577,370 604,898
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 44, KRB 2R R K S (#4)

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)

Note: ECL for amounts due from subsidiaries, other assets and receivables Bt - R B R A - BB E R EUGRIAARIRITH
and bank balances and cash are assessed on a 12m ECL basis as there #HREBENEREEEEBR 12EAFEREEREE
had been no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition EARETIHE - RARBVSERAREERR
and impairment allowance is considered to be insignificant. W EPEE RN R ERBRERLTERX -

Movement in the Company’s reserves ARATRZFEEES

Share  Contributed
premium surplus  Translation Accumulated

(note) (note) reserve loss Total
R4 EE MABE

(M) (Hiz) EHimE iR @5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTLT ARETT ARETT ARETT

At 1 April 2019 (Restated) R2019564F1H
(& =51) 584,124 16,655 21,323 (47,052) 575,050
Loss and total comprehensive loss ~ FREE R 2@
for the year Jpikeks - - 37,658 (65,186) (27,528)
At 31 March 2020 and 202063 A31H
1 April 2020 (Restated) %2020F4 A1 H
(RE5) 584,124 16,655 58,981 (112,238) 547,522
Share issued ERTRH 360,528 - - - 360,528
Profit and total comprehensive loss I R 2 E
for the year FRGE - - (17,737) 7,646 (10,091)
At 31 March 2021 R2021F3A31H 944,652 16,655 41,244 (104,592) 897,959
Note: The Company's contributed surplus represents the excess of the fair Bzt - RARBABERIER | AR 3% B A WS O T
value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the BARKRM AT ERBANILETRIENE TR
reorganisation prior to the Listing, over the nominal value of the ARA RN EE A EREE o

Company's shares issued in exchange thereafter.
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EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

On 7 May 2021, Zhong Zhi Xin Zhuo Capital Company
Limited, being one of the controlling shareholders of the
Company within the meaning under the GEM Listing Rules,
has entered into the Performance Incentive Agreement with
Mr. ZENG Long, a director and a shareholder holding
approximately 49.0% of the total issued share capital of
Qingdao Jinliang Technology Co., Ltd. Details of the
Performance Incentive Agreement has been set out in the
Company’s announcement dated 7 May 2021.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of the Company on 22
June 2021.
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TR AN 4B R4 49.0% ) 7] 3 E BB ez o
FARERBHENFBERRNAATBEA
20215 A7 EHRE -
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Five Years' Financial Summary
LFEMBHE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited financial statements and
restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out below.

AEENBERAEMRFELFEAREE AR
RIFEREREE (e B B2 KEXUE
Wk KBS EHHRWEM)) WA TX :

2020/215  2019/204F  2018/194F  2017/18%F  2016/17 4
Restated Restated Restated Restated
KE5 & E 7 KE & E7
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETFT AREFT AREFT AREFT AREFTL
RESULTS ES
Revenue WA 266,163 15,096 3,367 224,368 185,320
Profit (loss) before tax BRI AR A (518) 37,782 1,583 (242,925) 22,757 58,860
Income tax (expense) credit FTie®i () K% (10,906) (170) (696) (5,108) 9,808
Profit (loss) for the year FEREM (B18) 26,876 1,413 (243,621) 17,649 68,668
Attributable to: AR AT
Owners of the Company KARHEBA 26,153 1,413 (243,621) 17,649 68,668
Non-controlling interests FEE R R 723 = - - -
26,876 1,413 (243,621) 17,649 68,668
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥EREE
As at 31 March
M3A31H
20214 20204 20194 20184 20174
Restated Restated Restated Restated
#EE5 KE #EE7 KE
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARKEFT AREFT AREFT AREFT ARKFTL
Total assets BEE 1,415,441 668,692 613,220 809,723 905,668
Total liabilities wafg (399,810) (20,062) (8,322) (16,154) (42,521)
Net assets BESE 1,015,631 648,630 604,898 793,569 863,147
Attributable to: AT AL
Owners of the Company ZAN/NGIE SN 999,904 648,630 604,898 793,569 863,147
Non-controlling interests FEE R 15,727 - - - -
1,015,631 648,630 604,898 793,569 863,147
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